
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Suzanne     Jim    Shawn    Chris     Gregory   Don      Rebecca  
Hawkins    Munn   Barigar   Talkington   Lanting   Hall     Mills Sojka 

Vice Mayor                    Mayor 
                   
 

 
 
 

 
5:00 P.M. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG  
CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA  

PROCLAMATIONS:  Girl Scout Week 
   Fair Housing Month  

GENERAL PUBLIC INPUT   

AGENDA ITEMS Purpose By: 

I.  CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1. Consideration of a request to approve the Accounts Payable for March 3 –10, 2014. 
2. Consideration of a request to approve the following Council Minutes:  February 18, 2014
 and February 24, 2014. 
3. Consideration of a request to approve the Findings of Fact,  Conclusions of Law, and 
 Decision for the Final Plat of the Westpark No. 8 – A PUD. 

Action 
Action 
Action 
 
Action 
 

Staff Report 
Sharon Bryan 
Leila A. Sanchez 
 
Mitchel Humble 

II.  ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
1. Update on the Downtown Commons and to formally request to name the project, “The 

Downtown Commons”. 
2. Presentation of the City of Twin Falls’  2013 audited financial statements by Scott Hunsaker 

of Mahlke Hunsaker & Company, PLLC. 
3. Consideration of a request to approve a contract with CSHQA Architects for Phase I, 

Schematic Design and Feasibility Study, for the Airport Terminal Modification Project. 
4. Consideration of a request to adopt an ordinance for a zoning district change and zoning 

map amendment from R-4 to RB; Residential Business, for property located at the northwest 
corner of Filer Avenue and Adams Street. 

5. Consideration of a request to adopt an ordinance to amend Twin Falls City Code 10‐9‐9(K); 

Real Estate Signs, to allow temporary real estate open house signs in the public right‐of‐way 
under specific conditions. 

6. Consideration of a request to adopt a resolution authorizing certain city officials to receive 
informal bids, objections and specifications and procedures and to approve the lowest 
responsible bid in the informal bidding process. 

7. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 

 
Update/Action 
 
Presentation 
 
Action 
 
Action 
 
 
Action 
 
 
Action 

 
Terry McCurdy 
 
Lorie Race/  
Scott Hunsaker 
Bill Carberry 
 
Mitchel Humble 
 
 
Mitchel Humble 
 
 
Travis Rothweiler 

III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00 P.M. 
1. Request to adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit the application 

materials for an Idaho Community Development Block Grant (ICDBG) to partially finance 
infrastructure development for Clif Bar’s new baking facility. 

2. Request for a PUD Agreement Amendment to amend the Magic Valley Mall, LLC PUD 
Agreement #215 to allow a modification to the sign criteria on property located at 1485 
Pole Line Road East.  

3. Request for a PUD Agreement Amendment to amend the WS&V PUD Agreement #263 to 
allow a mixed use development; consisting of professional and residential uses, on the 
remaining four (4) undeveloped lots within the WS&V First Amended Subdivision-A PUD, 
consisting of lots 2-5 Block 1 and totaling 16 (+/-) acres, located west of the 1000 block of 
Field Stream Way and southwest of Cheney Drive West, extended.  

 
Action 
 
 
Action 
 
 
Action 
 
 
 

 
Carleen Herring/ 
Region IV 
 
Jonathan Spendlove 
 
 
Jonathan Spendlove 

V. ADJOURNMENT TO:   Executive Sessions: 
1. 67-2345 (f) To communicate with legal counsel for the public agency to discuss the legal 

ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation, or controversies not yet being 
litigated but imminently likely to be litigated.  The mere presence of legal counsel at an 
executive session does not satisfy this requirement. 

 
 

 

Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in the above noticed meeting could contact Leila Sanchez at (208) 735-7287 at 
least two working days before the meeting.  Si desea esta información en español, llame Leila Sanchez  (208)735-7287. 
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Twin Falls City Council-Public Hearing Procedures for Zoning Requests 
 

1. Prior to opening the first Public Hearing of the session, the Mayor shall review the public hearing procedures. 
2. Individuals wishing to testify or speak before the City Council shall wait to be recognized by the Mayor, approach the 

microphone/podium, state their name and address, then proceed with their comments.  Following their statements, 
they shall write their name and address on the record sheet(s) provided by the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall make 
an audio recording of the Public Hearing. 

3. The Applicant, or the spokesperson for the Applicant, will make a presentation on the application/request (request).  
No changes to the request may be made by the applicant after the publication of the Notice of Public Hearing.  The 
presentation should include the following: 

 A complete explanation and description of the request. 

 Why the request is being made. 

 Location of the Property. 

 Impacts on the surrounding properties and efforts to mitigate those impacts. 
Applicant is limited to 15 minutes, unless a written request for additional time is received, at least 72 hours prior to 
the hearing, and granted by the Mayor. 

4. A City Staff Report shall summarize the application and history of the request. 

 The City Council may ask questions of staff or the applicant pertaining to the request. 
5. The general public will then be given the opportunity to provide their testimony regarding the request.  The Mayor 

may limit public testimony to no less than two minutes per person. 

 Five or more individuals, having received personal public notice of the application under consideration, may 
select by written petition, a spokesperson.  The written petition must be received at least 72 hours prior to 
the hearing and must be granted by the mayor.  The spokesperson shall be limited to 15 minutes.   

 Written comments, including e-mail, shall be either read into the record or displayed to the public on the 
overhead projector. 

 Following the Public Testimony, the applicant is permitted five (5) minutes to respond to Public Testimony. 
 

6. Following the Public Testimony and Applicant’s response, the hearing shall continue.  The City Council, as 
recognized by the Mayor, shall be allowed to question the Applicant, Staff or anyone who has testified.  The Mayor 
may again establish time limits. 

7. The Mayor shall close the Public Hearing.  The City Council shall deliberate on the request.  Deliberations and 
decisions shall be based upon the information and testimony provided during the Public Hearing.  Once the Public 
Hearing is closed, additional testimony from the staff, applicant or public is not allowed.  Legal or procedural 
questions may be directed to the City Attorney. 

* Any person not conforming to the above rules may be prohibited from speaking.  Persons refusing to comply with such 
prohibitions may be asked to leave the hearing and, thereafter removed from the room by order of the Mayor. 



Office of the Mayor 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho 

Proclamation 
Girl Scout Week 

 
 
 WHEREAS, March 12, 2014, marks the 102nd  anniversary of Girl Scouts of the USA, founded by 
Juliette Gordon Low in 1912 in Savannah, Georgia; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, throughout its distinguished history, Girl Scouting has inspired millions of girls and 
women with courage, confidence, and character to make the world a better place; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, through the Girl Scout Leadership Experience girls develop the skills and lessons that 
will serve them throughout their lives so that they may contribute to their communities; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Girl Scouting takes an active role in increasing girls’ awareness of the opportunities in 
math, science, sports, technology, and many fields of interest that can expand their horizons; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, current Girl Scout members nationwide will be celebrating this American tradition, and 
welcome girls from every background to join;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Don Hall, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of Twin Falls, do 
hereby applaud the commitment Girl Scouting has made to support the leadership development of 
America’s girls and proudly proclaim the week of March 12, 2014, as Girl Scout Week, in the City of Twin Falls 
and urge all City of Twin Falls citizens to join in this observance. 
 

  
        In witness whereof I have hereunto set my  
        hand and caused this seal to be affixed. 

 
___________________________________________ 
Mayor Don Hall 
 
___________________________________________ 
Deputy City Clerk Leila A. Sanchez 
 
March 10, 2014 
 
 

 



 
 

P.O. Box 1907              321 Second Avenue East             Twin Falls, Idaho   83303-1907                       Fax: (208) 736-2296 
                 

FAIR HOUSING MONTH PROCLAMATION 
 
 WHEREAS, April 2014 marks the 46th anniversary of the passage of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, 
commonly known as the Federal Fair Housing Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Idaho Human Rights Commission Act has prohibited discrimination in housing since 1969; and 
 
 WHEREAS, equal opportunity for all-regardless of race, color, religion, sex, disability, familial status or national 
origin-is a fundamental goal of our nation, state and city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, equal access to housing is an important component of this goal-as fundamental as the right to equal 
education and employment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, housing is a critical component of family and community health and stability and 
 
 WHEREAS, housing choice impacts our children’s access to education, our ability to seek and retain employment 
options, the cultural benefits we enjoy, the extent of our exposure to crime and drugs, and the quality of health care we 
receive in emergencies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the laws of this nation and our state seek to ensure such equality of choice for all transactions 
involving housing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, ongoing education, outreach and monitoring are key to raising awareness of fair housing principles, 
practices, rights and responsibilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, only through continued cooperation, commitment and support of all Idahoans can barriers to fair 
housing be removed; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Don Hall, Mayor of City of Twin Falls, Twin Falls County, do hereby proclaim April 
2014 to be FAIR HOUSING MONTH in the City of Twin Falls/Twin Falls County, State of Idaho. 
  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand at the 
 City of Twin Falls/Twin Falls County in Twin Falls on this 
  10th  day of March in the year of our Lord 2014. 
 
 ____________________________________ 

Don Hall 
Mayor of Twin Falls  

Attest: __________________________ 
 Leila A. Sanchez 
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5:00 P.M. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG  
CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 
INTRODUCTION OF STAFF 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA  
PROCLAMATIONS 

GENERAL PUBLIC INPUT   

AGENDA ITEMS Purpose By: 

I. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1. Consideration of a request to approve the accounts payable for February 11-17, 2014. 
2. Consideration of a request to approve the minutes from the following City Council meetings: 

January 13, January 21, January 27, and February 3, 2014. 
3. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Completion of Right of Way Activities for three Local 

Highway Safety Improvement Projects (keys 13544, 13545, and 13546) 

Action 
Action 
Action 
 
Action 

Staff Report 
Sharon Bryan 
Leila Sanchez 
 
Jackie Fields 

II. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
 

1. Presentation of POST certificates to the following individuals before the Twin Falls City 
Council:  Officer Brad Baisch, Officer Denis Suljevic, Officer Jerry Hutchison, Officer Dan 
Heil, Detective Nate Silvester, and Detective Eric Barzee. 

 
 

2. Request from Local 1556 to support legislation being proposed at the Idaho Legislature.   
 

 
3. Present Council with an update regarding the Wood Waste site. 

 
 

4. Discussion and possible action seeking direction on how to proceed with Canyon Springs 
grade after impacts from construction traffic during the Waste Water Treatment Plant 
expansion, along with a request for direction in regard to public access to Auger Falls. 

 
 

5. Discussion and a request for direction regarding the City’s regulation of on-street large truck 
parking.  
 
 

6. Consideration to authorize the City Manager to sign an agreement with Kushlan & 
Associates to review and assist the City Manager in aligning the organization around the 
City’s 2030 Strategic Plan. 
 

7. Discussion on City Council advisory committees/commissions member appointment 
process. 

8. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 
9. Executive Session 67-2345( c ) To conduct deliberations concerning labor negotiations 

or to acquire an interest in real property which is not owned by a public agency. 

 
 
Action 
 
 
 
 
Discussion and 
Possible Action 
 
Discussion and 
Possible Action 
 
Discussion and 
Possible Action 
 
 
 
Discussion and 
Possible Action 
 
 
Discussion and 
Possible Action 
 
 
Discussion and 
Possible Action 
 

 
 
Chief Brian Pike, 
Capt. Anthony 
Barnhart, and Capt. 
Bryan Krear 
 
Ed Morris 
 
 
Jon Caton 
 
 
Troy Vitek 
 
 
 
 
Mitch Humble 
 
 
 
Travis Rothweiler 
 
 
 
Don Hall 

III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS:   

IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00     None.  
 

 
 

V. ADJOURNMENT:     
 

 
 

Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in the above noticed meeting could contact Leila Sanchez at (208) 735-7287 at 
least two working days before the meeting.  Si desea esta información en español, llame Leila Sanchez  (208)735-7287. 
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Present:   Suzanne Hawkins, Jim Munn, Shawn Barigar, Chris Talkington, Greg Lanting, Don Hall, Rebecca Mills Sojka 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Travis Rothweiler, City Attorney Fritz Wonderlich, Community Development Director Mitchel Humble,  
 Public Works Director Jon Caton, Chief Brian Pike, City Engineer Jacqueline Fields, Captain Anthony Barnhart,  
 Captain Bryan Krear, Assistant City Engineer Troy Vitek, Streets Department Director Dean Littler,  
 Deputy City Clerk/Recording Secretary Leila A. Sanchez. 
 
Mayor Hall called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  He then invited all present, who wished to, to recite the pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  A 
quorum is present.   
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:    
 
City Manager Rothweiler requested the following to be removed from the Items for Consideration: 
 

7. Discussion on City Council advisory committees/commissions member appointment process. 
 

MOTION: 
Councilperson Talkington made the motion to approve the amendment to the agenda.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson 
Lanting and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 

 
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC INPUT:   None 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Consideration of a request to approve the accounts payable for February 11-17, 2014, $368,967.50 and Payroll, Feb 14, 2014, 
$115,031.68 

2. Consideration of a request to approve the minutes from the following City Council meetings: January 13, January 21, January 27, and 
February 3, 2014. 

3. Authorize the Mayor to sign the Completion of Right of Way Activities for three Local Highway Safety Improvement Projects (keys 
13544, 13545, and 13546) 

 
 MOTION: 
 Councilperson Lanting made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.   The motion was seconded by 
 Councilperson Hawkins. 
 
 Discussion followed. 
 -Definition of Stop Bars  
 
 Roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 
II. ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

1. Presentation of POST certificates to the following individuals before the Twin Falls City Council:  Officer Brad Baisch, Officer Denis 
Suljevic, Officer Jerry Hutchison, Officer Dan Heil, Detective Nate Silvester, and Detective Eric Barzee. 

 
 Captain Barnhart gave the presentation.   
 

Mayor Hall and Chief Pike presented certificates to Officer Brad Baisch, Officer Denis Suljevic, Officer Jerry Hutchison, and Officer 
Dan Heil. 

 
 Captain Bryan Krear gave the presentation. 
  
 Mayor Hall and Chief Pike presented certificates to Detective Nate Silvester and Detective Eric Barzee. 
 

2. Request from Local 1556 to support legislation being proposed at the Idaho Legislature.   
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 Ed Morris explained the request.  Members of Local 1556 are seeking support from the City Council on legislation that would 
 amend the Workers’ Compensation Act.   
 
 Majority of the Council stated they would like to review Senate Bill 1273, prior to making a decision on the request. 
 
 Discussion followed. 
 -Firefighter occupational diseases 
 -Burden of proof of diseases  
 -Cost Summary of Workers’ Compensation 
 -Fiscal impact on taxpayers throughout the state 
 -Component in the bill addressing fraudulent use 
 

Councilperson Barigar stated that Senate Bill 1273 is on line.   The estimated total fiscal impact for state government entities is 
approximately $48,500 to $165,000, with no impact to the general fund.  The bill outlines the presumptive diseases.    

 
Mayor Hall requested that the Item for Consideration from Local 1556 to support legislation being proposed at the Idaho Legislature   
be brought back to the Council on February 24, 2014. 
 

3. Present Council with an update regarding the Wood Waste site. 
 
Public Works Director Caton gave an update on the City’s wood waste site located at 967 Rose Street.  The site was originally 
intended to provide a convenient place for citizens to dispose of their tree trimmings and landscape waste.  The past years the site 
has been used for dumping trash.  Last year, Southern Idaho Solid Waste, for many reasons, is unable to process the wood waste.  
Currently there are approximately 300 truckloads to process. 
 
Staff recommends that the City inform and educate the public on suitable alternatives to the wood waste site including regular 
curbside garbage pickup, local waste transfer station, landfill and personal recycling of these items. The Street Department intends to 
clean up the site using the most economical means.  Staff recommends that the wood waste processing site remain closed and after 
clean-up, discontinue wood and other solid waste processing and transporting to the landfill.  
 
Staff is seeking Council’s direction. 
 
Discussion followed. 
-Curbside wood waste 
-Education period for citizens 
-Possible fire hazard at wood waste site 
-Breeding ground for rodents, etc. 
-Signage at wood waste site indicating wood waste locations 
-Possible purchase of Southern Idaho Solid Waste’s used wood waste chipper 

 
Streets Department Director Littler explained the Streets Department is unable to process the wood waste at the current site.   The 
City does not own a chipper.   Southern Idaho Solid Waste purchased a chipper and is unable to run the chipper at the City’s wood 
waste site.  Southern Idaho Solid Waste will have the chipper at designated locations throughout Southern Idaho.  Locally, wood 
waste to be chipped can be sent to a location south of the Airport. 
 
Public Works Director Caton stated that Southern Idaho Solid Waste will accept waste at the transfer station and landfill.  Curbside 
wood waste combined with trash is sent to the landfill. 

 
Streets Department Director Littler explained the costs associated with purchasing the “old” wood waste chipper from Southern Idaho 
Solid Waste.  Costs would entail the purchase of a truck for transport of the equipment, fuel, repair, and manpower costs.   Southern 
Idaho Solid Waste has indicated they will assist the Streets Department in chipping the wood waste at the current site. 

 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Munn made the motion to permanently close the wood waste located at Rose Street and South Park West, and 
secondly include to dispose and clean out existing wood waste site and place reasonable signage from the Street Department stating 
that wood waste can be disposed of at HUB Butte or dispose at transfer station.   
 
Councilperson Talkington made an amendment to the motion to include an aggressive advertising awareness program through the 
City services as to what the public can and cannot do.   
 



MINUTES 
Tuesday, February 18, 2014 
Page 4 of 7 

Councilperson Munn requested that the verbiage “to include an aggressive advertising awareness program through the City services 
be added to his motion.   Councilperson Barigar concurred.   
 
Roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of them motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 

4. Discussion and possible action seeking direction on how to proceed with Canyon Springs grade after impacts from construction traffic 
during the Waste Water Treatment Plant expansion, along with a request for direction in regard to public access to Auger Falls. 

 
 Troy Vitek, Assistant City Engineer, gave an update on Waste Water Treatment Plant.    
 

With the estimated 24 heavy concrete trucks a day at the peak of construction, Canyon Springs Road would be vastly impacted and 
show signs of wear, this combined with impacts to citizens and their safety on the roadway.  Staff would like to discuss options with 
the Council and determine the future course of action. 

Options may include the cost of addressing the wear on Canyon Springs Grade as part of the Sewer Bond improvements and address 
the wear in a future streets project. 

In addition, he asked the following questions:  1) Does the council wish the grade to function in the same way it currently does with 
two small lanes and full pedestrian access. Reconstruction efforts currently are estimated at $700k/lane mile.  2) Limit traffic to one 
lane through signalization which provides pedestrians more room but impacts neighboring residences as vehicles stack up waiting for 
the signal to change at the top of the grade. This option would require installation of a timed signal estimated at $500k in addition to 
the $700k/lane mile listed above.  3) Install two small lanes, place a jersey barrier separating the vehicles from the pedestrians and 
provide a pedestrian walking area that is capable of handling people in a single file line. The cost of the jersey barrier and guard rail is 
estimated at $160k in addition to the $700k/lane mile listed above.  Small pedestrian overhang walkways will need to be constructed 
in several locations due to width issues and are estimated at $100k.  4) Reconstruct the roadway to accommodate two lanes each 
direction and a wider pedestrian walking area. This is by far the most far-reaching and expensive project at approximately 
$1.5million/lane mile.  This would require acquiring easements and blasting of the existing wall, as well as stabilizing the existing 
slope and constructing large retaining walls.  Traffic control during construction would be extreme. 

Staff recommends that the Council discuss the options and direct Staff with a recommendation of how to proceed with reconstruction 
of the Canyon Springs Grade and Auger Falls Access. 

 Council discussion followed regarding the following options: 

 -Rock blasting the canyon wall  

 -Involve the public on options (pros/cons) 

 -Closing Canyon Springs Road to pedestrians 

 -Use of foregone balance to widen the road 

City Manager Rothweiler explained the use of the foregone balance adds to the permanent revenue streams of the City.  The City 
Council has the ability to allocate the foregone balance during the appropriation process.  Based upon the numbers that staff 
provided, it would take a few years of accumulated foregone balance after it was collected to be able to cover some of the projects.  
Currently, the City’s foregone balance is approximately $1.472 million.  The options staff provided range from $1 million to $3.5 million 
projects.  Another option would be to use tax resources as they were captured, whether that would be foregone balance, direct 
appropriation process, as well as the use of sewer bond proceeds that may not be used directly for the WWTP facility or collections. 
This may be an eligible expense because the cause and the damage to the roadway would be as a result of the construction.  The 
challenge is whether there will be enough money.  At the 60% review of the project, the WWTP project was coming in at $34 Million.  
The bond sale captured $39.5 million.  Capacity fees and connection fees accumulated amounts to $3.4 million.   With the project at 
$34 million and adding $6 million to offset some of the improvements to the collection system, there appears to be some amount for 
roadway improvement, but it is important to realize the engineering estimates are preliminary and potential change orders may need 
to be applied to the project.   

The Engineering Department places the City on an annual project list on an eight year rotation basis.  The Council could forego 
projects on the project list and dedicate available resources under the constrained revenue sources to apply to the roadway project.  
Bond proceeds can also be used. 

 Streets Department Superintendent Littler stated his concern of spending money on road improvements prior to addressing rock falls.  
  Road construction complicates the issue with rock fall. 
 
 Council discussion followed. 
 -Pedestrian access needs to be addressed 
 -Cost estimate to create a pedestrian trail 
 -Stabilization of roadway / unstable wall 
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 -Weight limits of concrete trucks  
 -Traffic control 
 -Public education 
  

Assistant City Engineer Vitek stated that construction will begin in April.  He stated he will come back before Council with information 
requested. 

 
 City Manager Rothweiler stated staff has received Council input and will bring back to Council options with costs, and provide a series 
 of financial opportunities for review and consideration. 
 

Assistant City Engineer Vitek explained that with the WWTP upgrades an extremely large area will be excavated for the IFAS system 
and secondary Clarifier.  Staff is recommending the excavated material be transported to Auger Falls and placed in an area identified 
in the attached exhibit.  The engineering consultants estimate 33 trucks a day hauling material from the WWTP to Auger Falls in 20 
cubic yard dump trucks.  These are extremely large vehicles on a narrow roadway.  Staff feels this is a safety issue with people who 
plan on using Auger Falls as a recreation facility during construction.  Options are to 1) Require the contractor to haul materials 
elsewhere.  This would be a substantial cost to the project and would require smaller street licensed vehicles resulting in a larger 
number of loads.  This would impact Canyon Springs grade even more and the safety hazard would be shifted there. 2)  Close Auger 
Falls throughout the duration of the project.  This of course impacts those who use the site for recreation. 3)  Allow only the contractor 
to use Auger Falls from 8:00am to 5:30pm Monday through Friday then the public only from 5:30pm to 8:00am the next morning and 
all day Saturday and Sunday during the peak months of construction. 

 
 Council discussion followed. 
 -Time frame of project 
 -Ramifications of placing time restrictions on the contractor  
 -Compromise of time periods for use by contractor and public 
 -Signage at top of grade indicating public use of Auger Falls 
 

Parks & Recreation Director Bowyer stated the large user groups of Auger Falls indicated they are not in favor of closing Auger Falls.  
He stated his support of allowing the contractor use of Auger Falls from 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. Monday through Friday, and public use 
from 5:30 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. the next morning and all day Saturday and Sunday during the peak months of construction.   

 MOTION: 
Councilperson Talkington made the motion to approve Option 3, to allow only the contractor to use Auger Falls from 8:00 a.m. to 5:30 
p.m., Monday through Friday; the public only from 5:30 p.m. to 8:00 a.m., the next morning and all day Saturday and Sunday during 
the peak months of construction.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Lanting and roll call vote showed all members present 
voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 

5. Discussion and a request for direction regarding the City’s regulation of on-street large truck parking.  
 
Community Development Director Humble explained the request. 
 
Staff recommends that the Council authorize staff to prepare an amendment to City Code 9-6-8 regarding the regulation of on-street 
large truck parking.   

 
 Staff is requesting Council direction. 

-Fall/Spring Fred Meyer and Walmart trucks 
-Issuance of citations   
-Review Idaho cities codes on truck parking 
-Trash in the North Haven area 
-ZOAC’s opinion on the regulation of on-street large truck parking 
 
Community Development Director Humble stated he would not call Fred Meyer and Walmart a truck parking lot because they are 
making deliveries.  Issues would occur if the stores were selling parking spaces to trucks as overnight storage.   
 
The Zoning Ordinance Amendment Committee was established to deal with zoning ordinance amendments.  The Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment Committee has not discussed the City’s regulation of on-street large truck parking.   Council may direct ZOAC to review 
Title 9. 
 
-Big trucks in a C-1 Zone 
-Nuisance of trucks in North Haven 
-Trash in the area   
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-Keeping City clean and friendly 
-Measuring complaints received  
 
Community Development Director Humble stated discussion was made adding signage in the area. 
 
City Manager Rothweiler stated that signage has been placed in other areas including the Shilo Inn area because of the high volume 
of complaints. 
 
Community Development Director Humble stated that the Police Department traffic sergeant has indicated that a large number of 
complaints have been received for the North Haven area.  Dispatch will explain to the caller that the trucks are legally allowed to park 
in the area.  Dispatch does not count the number of complaints.  Code Enforcement has received five complaints.    
 
Gerald Martens, property owner and developer, spoke in favor of the regulating on-street parking and signage.  He explained that 17 
trucks were parked in the neighborhood the past weekend, 9 trucks had generators running, and most of the trucks are unoccupied.    
 
Bob Veeh, Canyonside Realty, explained that trucks parking on the street are detrimental to marketing of the site. 
 
Evan Robertson, property owner, stated that nightly, the road is down to a single lane, because trucks are parking on both sides of the 
street.  He spoke in favor of signage in the area.   
 

 MOTION: 
Councilperson Talkington made the motion that the Council issue a code amendment to 9-6-8 allowing large truck parking only in the 
M-1 and M-2 Zones.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Munn. 
 
Councilperson Mills Sojka stated that she has not received enough information to make a decision on this motion.  She stated that on-
street parking has not been addressed in the Canyon Crest Drive and North College between Falls and Locust and asked the 
process.  She stated she was bothered that the request presented came up so quickly but the other on-street parking has not been 
addressed. 

 
Community Development Director Humble stated that the on-street parking at Canyon Crest is residential cars in front of the River 
Crest Apartment Complex.  No parking signage can be placed on the street.  Staff did not believe there was a big enough problem to 
post signs.  
 
Councilperson Mills Sojka spoke in favor of signage in the areas discussed. 

 
 Roll call vote showed Councilpersons Hawkins, Munn, Barigar, Talkington, Lanting, and Hall voted in favor of the motion.  
 Councilperson Mills Sojka voted against.  Approved  6 to 1. 
 
 City Manager Rothweiler stated that staff will look at the parking issues at the Canyon Crest location. 

 
6. Consideration to authorize the City Manager to sign an agreement with Kushlan & Associates to review and assist the City Manager in 

aligning the organization around the City’s 2030 Strategic Plan. 
 

City Manager Rothweiler explained the request.  The recent departure of the Assistant to the City Manager, in addition to the 
impending retirement of several key department directors, will translate into an organizational transition, managed or not.  To ensure 
the most effective long-term outcomes, it is incumbent on leadership to purposefully move the organization to a well-considered new 
era.    
 
In the agreement, as a part of the scope, the consultant and the City Manager will review the current organizational structure, seek 
comments and thoughts from members of the City Council and City’s staff, and explore opportunities to enhance organizational 
efficiency and effectiveness.  At the end of the project, the consultant will assist the City Manager in developing a reorganization 
strategy, including an implementation strategy that will be presented to the City Council for its review.  
 
Council discussion followed. 
-Time frame of the agreement 
 
City Manager Rothweiler reviewed the steps in the agreement and discussed the temporary internal internship program. He estimated 
that the project will be completed in six months and a course of action can be implemented in conjunction with the budgeting process.   
 
-Transitions in the community 
-Cost of the contract 
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 City Manager Rothweiler stated that the cost of approximately $20,000 will be paid for with salary savings from the vacated 
 assistant to the city manager position that recently occurred.  He stated for clarification that the agreement will not go beyond June 

 2014.  The adjustment will be made to the contract. 
 

Councilperson Talkington stated his concern of the City Manager’s ability to run the City effectively and monitor the strategic plan.  He 
suggested the hiring of an ombudsman to assist the City Manager. 
 
-Deadline date of June 2014 

 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Lanting made the motion to authorize the City Manager to sign an agreement with Kushlan & Associates to review and 
assist the City Manager in aligning the organization around the City’s 2030 Strategic Plan for the expenditure of up to $20,000.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilperson Mills Sojka.   

 
-Clarification of expenditure not to exceed $20,000 
 
Roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 

7. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 
 
Councilperson Lanting gave an update on the Friends of Muni Tournament.  
 
Councilperson Barigar stated for clarification that a comment was made February 10, 2014, during the presentation on the Twin Falls 
School District Bond Levy Election 2014, by Councilperson Mills Sojka that 85% of our citizens in Twin Falls are within the poverty 
range and in the lower income.  The comment was picked up in a Times News article.  This was an extreme overstatement of that 
number.  In fact, the U.S. Census Bureau reports the city’s persons below poverty level are 17%, 15.1 % in the state, and 15.4% in 
the County.  The clarification is being made because they get picked up in newspaper articles and then are all over the internet, 
challenging us in the recruitment of companies and in showing a positive image of the community. 
 
Vice Mayor Hall stated he spoke to Councilperson Mills Sojka prior to the meeting and she stated she would go back and research.  
Vice Mayor Hall stated that staff contacted Carleen Herring, Region IV, who provided the 2010 American Communities Report that 
showed all families below the poverty level is 14% and 17% in the Twin Falls area. 
 
Councilperson Talkington stated that he wanted to refute the comments with some figures.  Idaho as a whole, not Twin Falls, has the 
lowest weekly family paycheck of any state of the nation.   
 
Councilperson Mills Sojka thanked Councilperson Barigar for bringing it to her attention.  She stated that she didn’t mean to say 
poverty level; she was meaning to say low income.  The median household income is $41,000.  She was referring to the level of 
income in our community.  There are different charts in different areas where low income falls but she would not consider $41,000 as 
being upper income level.   
 
Mayor Hall stated that he has information if anyone is interested.   
 

8. Executive Session 67-2345( c ) To conduct deliberations concerning labor negotiations or to acquire an interest in real property 
which is not owned by a public agency. 

 
MOTION: 
Councilperson Lanting made the motion to adjourn to Executive Session 67-2345( c ).  The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor 
Hawkins and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 
 

III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00     None. 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 
 
 
Leila A. Sanchez 
Deputy City Clerk/Recording Secretary 

 



COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Suzanne     Jim    Shawn    Chris     Gregory   Don     Rebecca  
Hawkins    Munn   Barigar   Talkington   Lanting   Hall     Mills Sojka 
Vice Mayor                    Mayor 

                   
 

 
 
 

 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG  
Boy Scouts from Troop 74. 
CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 
INTRODUCTION OF STAFF 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 

GENERAL PUBLIC INPUT   

AGENDA ITEMS Purpose By: 

I.  CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1. Consideration of a request to approve the Accounts Payable for February 19 – 24, 2014. 
2. Consideration of a request to approve the annual Saint Patrick’s Day Parade Application and 
 Special Event Celebration sponsored by Bev and Steve O’Connor to be held on Monday, 
 March 17, 2014.   
3. Consideration of a request to approve the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and 
 Decisions for Cedarpark #10 Subdivision.   

 

Action 
Action 
Action 
 
 
Action 

Staff Report 
Sharon Bryan 
Sgt. Ryan Howe 
 
 
Mitchel Humble 

II.  ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
1. Consideration of a request to waive the residency requirement for Dan Olmstead during the 

last 18 months of his second term on the Airport Advisory Board.  
 

2. Consideration of a request to authorize the Mayor to sign the Sub-Agreement Material 
Purchase Contract for Local Falls Ave. Intersection Improvements, Key No. 13544 and 
approve payment of the local match. 

 
3. An update on the $38 million bond issuance for the voter-approved projects and 

improvements at the City’s Waste Water Treatment Plant.   
 

4. Consideration of a request to approve the implementation of a Cross-Connection Program. 
 

5. Consideration of a request to adopt an ordinance for a Zoning District Change and Zoning 
Map Amendment from R-4 to R-4 PRO for property located at 840 Addison Avenue. 

 
6. Consideration of a request to adopt an ordinance amending City Code 9-6-8 regarding the 

City’s regulation of on-street large truck parking.   
 

7. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 
 

 
Action 
 
Action 
Action 
 
Update 
 
Action 
 
 
Action 
 
Action 

 
Bill Carberry 
 
Rob Bohling 
Ed Morris 
 
Lorie Race 
 
Jacqueline Fields 
 
 
Mitchel Humble 
 
Mitchel Humble 
 
 

III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

  

IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00 P.M. 
1. Public hearing to consider adoption of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit 

an application to the Idaho Department of Commerce to partially finance improvements to 
the Twin Falls Senior Center.  

2. Public Hearing to consider the City’s intent to dispose of a 6,200± square foot portion of a 
City owned lot located at on 2nd Avenue South, Block 119 Lots 9 & 10. 

 

 
Action 
 
 
Action 
 

 
Jeanette Roe/ 
TF Senior Center 

 
Melinda Anderson 

V. ADJOURNMENT:     
 

 
 

Any person(s) needing special accommodations to participate in the above noticed meeting could contact Leila Sanchez at (208) 735-7287 at 
least two working days before the meeting.  Si desea esta información en español, llame Leila Sanchez  (208)735-7287. 
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Present:   Suzanne Hawkins, Jim Munn, Shawn Barigar, Chris Talkington, Greg Lanting, Don Hall, Rebecca Mills Sojka 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Travis Rothweiler, City Attorney Fritz Wonderlich, Community Development Director Mitchel Humble,  

Public Works Director Jon Caton, Sgt. Ryan Howe, Airport Manager Bill Carberry, Water Superintendent Rob Bohling,  
Chief Finance Director Lorie Race, City Engineer Jacqueline Fields, Economic Development Director Melinda Anderson. 

 Deputy City Clerk/Recording Secretary Leila A. Sanchez. 
 
Mayor Hall called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  He then invited all present, who wished to, to recite the pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
Boy Scout Troop 74 led the pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  A quorum is present.   
 
CONSIDERATION OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA:    
 
City Manager Rothweiler requested a change to the lineup for Items for Consideration. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS:  None 
GENERAL PUBLIC INPUT:  None 

AGENDA ITEMS 
I.  CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Consideration of a request to approve the Accounts Payable for February 19 – 24, 2014, total:  $1,156,377.95; and Payroll for Feb 25, 
2014; $5,064. 

2. Consideration of a request to approve the annual Saint Patrick’s Day Parade Application and Special Event Celebration sponsored by 
 Bev and Steve O’Connor to be held on Monday,  March 17, 2014.   
3. Consideration of a request to approve the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decisions for Cedarpark  #10 Subdivision. 

 
 Council discussion followed. 

-Accounts Payable to Bank of New York for $715,000.  Chief Finance Officer Race stated that the payment was made on the existing 
debt.  City Manager Rothweiler stated that all fees associated with the new debt will be taken out of the proceeds. 

 
 -To purchase bonds, local citizens may contact Cameron Arial with Zions Bank.  This should be done prior to the issuance of bonds. 
 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Lanting made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson 
Barigar and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 

 
II.  ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

1. Consideration of a request to waive the residency requirement for Dan Olmstead during the last 18 months of his second term on the 
Airport Advisory Board.  

 
 Airport Manager Carberry explained the request.   
 

Dan Olmstead has attended meetings regularly and has been a contributing member to the Airport Board.  Staff recommends the City 
Council waive the city residency requirement for the remainder of Dan Olmstead’s current term as a member of the Airport Board. 

 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Talkington made the motion to waive the residency requirement for Dan Olmstead during the last 18 months of his 
second term on the Airport Advisory Board.   The motion was seconded by Councilperson Lanting and roll call vote showed all 
members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 

 
2. Consideration of a request to authorize the Mayor to sign the Sub-Agreement Material Purchase Contract for Local Falls Ave. 

Intersection Improvements, Key No. 13544 and approve payment of the local match. 
 
 City Engineer Fields explained the request. 
 

Staff recommends that the Council authorize the Mayor sign the Sub-Agreement Material Purchase Contract for Local Falls Ave. 
Intersection Improvements, Key 13544 and approve payment of $1,000 towards the match for the project. 

 MOTION: 
Vice Mayor Hawkins made a motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Sub-Agreement Material Purchase Contract for Local Falls 
Ave. Intersection Improvements, Key No. 13544 and approve the local match payment of $1,000.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilperson Munn and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 



Minutes 
Monday, February 24, 2014 
Page 3 of 7 
 Council discussion followed on the startup of the signal at the intersection of North College Road and Fillmore Street will start up on 
 March 3, 2014. 
 

4.  Consideration of a request to approve a letter of support for SB1273: Firefighter presumptive illness.  
 

 Ed Morris, Twin Falls Firefighter Local 1556, explained the request. 
 
 The Twin Falls Firefighter Local 1556 and the Professional Firefighters of Idaho (PFFI) would like to ask for your support on Senate 
 Bill 1273. 
,  
 MOTION: 
 Councilperson Munn made the motion to approve the letter to support for Senate Bill 1273: Firefighter presumptive illness.  The 
 motion was seconded by Councilperson Barigar. 
 
 Council discussion followed. 
 Councilperson Talkington stated the average impact on overall department budgets in the State is 1/10th of a percent off 44/100’s of 
 1% which translated dollars is $48,500 to $165,000 annually of all Idaho government entities.   
 
 Councilperson Mills Sojka stated that the Association of Idaho Cities is taking a neutral stand on Senate Bill 1273, therefore she will 
 remain neutral. 
 

Mayor Hall stated he understands the hazards of chemicals and asked what technology is being used as turnouts to shield 
firefighters.    Ed Morris stated that the International Fire Chiefs and other groups are working on positive pressure turnouts where 
exhalation goes in and creates a positive pressure inside, which will help keep some of the smoke out.  The Fire Department is 
making sure repository protection is being used at the right times.   Turnouts are cleaned out on a regular basis and inspected on an 
annual semi basis. 
 
Councilperson Lanting stated that he would be in favor of replacing tanks. 
 
Roll call vote showed Councilpersons Hawkins, Munn, Barigar, Talkington, Lanting, and Hall voted in favor of the motion.  
Councilperson Mills Sojka abstained from voting.  Approved 6 to 0.  1 abstained. 

 
5.  An update on the $38 million bond issuance for the voter-approved projects and improvements at the City’s Waste Water Treatment 
 Plant.   
 

Chief Finance Officer Race gave the update on the bond issuance and background of why the City is using the Idaho Bond Bank, and 
two different types of sales.  The Idaho Bond Bank has easy access to the capital markets and by issuing debt through the bond bank 
the City benefits by a better interest rate.  Their credit rating is typically rated AA1, which is high grade for long term debt; AAA is 
considered prime.  The City benefits by having lower underwriting costs and because of the state shared revenues’ attractive feature 
for bond buyers it can result in even lower rates.  The two kinds of sales are negotiated and competitive.  A negotiated sale is used 
when you need to explain the terms of the sale.  A negotiated sale is what the City has done in the past.  A competitive sale is straight 
forward and easily explainable.  Because of its competitive nature, it typically results in the best rates.  The City has used this for the 
last two sales.  On February 12, 2014, bonds were sold.  The total issuance was $51.6 Million.   

 
There have been 182 bond sales in Idaho since 1990, and this was the largest competitive sale, with a record number of twelve 
bidders.  When the sale was over, interest rates were ranging from 3.47% to 3.73% on the total issuance.  The difference between the 
lowest and the highest bid will result in a total savings of more than $5 million in total interest costs over the life of the debt.  Because 
the City share of the debt has a shorter duration (twenty years) than the other bonding entity, the City’s true interest cost is at 3.31%.   
 
A credit rating is an evaluation of credit worthiness of the debtor, and is made by a rating agency on the debtor’s ability to pay back 
the debt and the likelihood of default.  AGM issued the City of Twin Falls a bond surety policy without going through the process or 
expense of having to be rated.  The surety bond policy cost $226,460.  If the City was unable to obtain the policy, the City would be 
required to set aside $3.5 million to be held in a debt reserve fund for the duration of the debt.  This would have taken the deposit for 
the project construction fund from the $39.5 Million to $36.2 Million.  Cameron Arial, Zion’s Bank, shared that this is the first time his 
organization has seen a surety policy issued without going through the process of being rated.   
 
The bonds were issued at a premium and were attractive to the investors based on the results.  This was a very successful bond 
issuance for the City, but most importantly for the rate payers.  The type of sale used saved millions of dollars in interest costs plus 
the strength of the Waste Water Fund allowed the City to not have tie up $3.5 million in a debt reserve fund.  These dollars will go 
directly to the project.   
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 Council discussion followed. 
 -The City of Twin Falls paired up with the City of Jerome 
 -AA 1 rating 
 - Rate of 3.31% rate is out of the range of 3.47% – and 3.73% 
 -$226,460 payment for surety policy 
  

Chief Finance Officer Race stated that the City of Jerome’s portion of the issuance was $13.6 million.  Twin Falls’ portion was $38 
million.  The AA 1 rating is typical of the Idaho Bond Bank’s debt.  The City of Jerome true interest cost (TIC) will be higher than the 
City’s because their portion of the debt is longer (25 years).  The $226,460 is the cost the City pays to not have to place the $3.5 
million in the debt reserve fund.   

 
City Manager Rothweiler stated that the true interest cost that is assessed is the average over the course of the entire 25 year period 
will be at 3.47%.  The City of Twin Falls’ TIC is 3.31% and the City is Jerome’s TIC is 3.89%.  The City of Twin Falls is not responsible 
for the entire 25 years.  The interest being assessed in years 2021 – 2025 was substantially larger on the whole than the interest 
being issued in the first twenty years.  This drove up the true interest costs of 3.47%, which is the responsibility of Jerome.   

 
 Councilperson Barigar commended Chief Finance Officer and her team for saving money for the ratepayers, allowing improvements 
 to be made at less costs. 
 

3. Consideration of a request to approve the implementation of a Cross-Connection Program. 
 

Water Superintendent Bohling introduced Mike Brown with Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). 
 
Mike Brown, DEQ, explained that that in September, 2013, DEQ performed a Sanitary Survey.  One of the significant deficiencies 
found was the lack of a Cross Connection Control Program as required by the Idaho Rules for Public Drinking Water Systems – 
Community Water Systems.   Significant deficiencies pose a threat to human health through inaction or deficiencies in apparatus, 
plumbing and operations of the water systems.  DEQ requires that a plan is in place within 180 days.  He explained how backflow may 
occur in the drinking water system.   

 
Water Superintendent Bohling explained a backflow device is not required for a hose bib and for pressure irrigation systems.   
Systems hooked to City water are required to have a backflow device on a lawn sprinkler system. A backflow device on a lawn 
sprinkler system helps protect the drinking water system and the homeowner’s water supply.  
 
In moving forward with the Cross – Connection Program the plan is to provide (1) public education through commercials, movie house 
clips, bill stuffers, blips on water bills, work with the local media, and making a specific site for backflow on the City’s website.  (2) 
Industry involvement, through landscape and maintenance companies, fire suppression companies and pipe companies.  (3) 
Enforcement with the backing of City officials, compliance with the City’s ordinance, and backing from the local DEQ.  (4) Manpower 
from City employees from building inspection, water employees, meter readers, and lawn sprinkler/fire suppression companies.  (5) 
Listing of certified testers on the City’s web page, and require paperwork on file providing certification of tester and equipment.  
Requiring a city tester to agree on a set price that the Council deems fair.  The average price for a tester is $45.   
 
Staff is seeking direction from the Council. 
 
Council discussion followed. 
-Homeowner costs associated with compliance 
-Certified city tester 
-Enforcement of compliance 
 
Water Superintendent Bohling stated that a 1” backflow device is roughly estimate at $50, and installation may cost $200 to $1,000. 

 
 City Manager Rothweiler stated that the Council has the opportunity to determine the maximum price for advertising on the website.  
 However, the City is not setting a maximum price for the service.  This is what is done for tow trucks.  
 

Water Superintendent Bohling explained he has a list of 2,000 backflow devices on record.  Software is in place to collect data of 
sprinkler system users. The Water Supply Department will send out a total of three letters to a homeowner who is non-compliant prior 
to turning off the water.  

 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Munn made the motion to have staff proceed forward with the Backflow Cross Connection Program with testers who 
chose to be on the city’s web page as certified testers to proceed with $35 or less for the certification.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilperson Mills Sojka. 
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-Discussion followed on the sample form letter to the homeowner 
-Priority in contacting homeowners who are non-compliant  
 
Roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 

 
Public Works Director Caton stated that an open house will be scheduled to inform the public. 

 
4. Consideration of a request to adopt an ordinance for a Zoning District Change and Zoning Map Amendment from R-4 to R-4 PRO for 

property located at 840 Addison Avenue. 
 

Community Development Director Humble explained the request.   
 
On February 10, 2014 the City Council unanimously approved the request for a Zoning District Change and Zoning Map Amendment 
from R-4 to R-4 PRO for property located at 840 Addison Avenue as presented and directed staff to prepare and present an 
ordinance.  Staff recommends the City Council adopt the ordinance so it can be published and codified.    

 
MOTION: 
Councilperson Talkington made the motion to suspend the rules and place Ordinance 3062, on third and final reading by title only.  
The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Hawkins and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  
Approved 7 to 0. 
 

  Deputy City Clerk Sanchez read Ordinance 3062 by title only, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO, REZONING REAL PROPERTY BELOW DESCRIBED; 
PROVIDING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION THEREFOR; AND ORDERING THE NECESSARY 
AREA OF IMPACT AND ZONING DISTRICTS MAP AMENDMENT. 

 
  MOTION: 

Councilperson Lanting made the motion to adopt Ordinance 3062.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Munn and roll call 
vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion.  Approved 7 to 0. 

 
5. Consideration of a request to adopt an ordinance amending City Code 9-6-8 regarding the City’s regulation of on-street large truck 

parking.   
 

Community Development Director Humble explained he request.   

This topic was discussed at the February 18, 2014 City Council meeting.  Traffic Sergeant Howe is present for Council’s questions 
that may relate to enforcement.   At that meeting, the Council directed staff to prepare an ordinance making the change as described 
to City Code 9-6-8.  This use would be what a large truck parking lot would be regulated as, if established on private property.  For 
this use to be outright permitted on private property requires a M1 or M2 zoning designation.  Staff believes that City Code 9-6-8 
should be amended to allow on-street large truck parking only in the M1 and M2 zones to be consistent with zoning regulations for off-
street large truck parking.  A large truck is defined as a one and one-half ton capacity.    
 
Council discussion followed. 
 
-Availability and location of manufacturing zones for truck parking 
-Cost of violating the proposed ordinance 
 
Community Development Director Humble showed on overhead projection the M1 and M2 designation zones where trucks will be 
allowed to park.  Code Enforcement’s intent is to have an education program in place.  This would include placing flyers on trucks. 
 
City Attorney Wonderlich stated that violating the on-street parking is a traffic infraction.  The violation is $75 including court costs and 
if violation is not paid are turned over to collections, and failure to pay may cause license suspension. 

 
 MOTION 
 Councilperson Lanting made the motion to suspend the rules and place Ordinance 3063 on third and final reading by title only.  The 
 motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Hawkins. 
 
 AMENDMENT TO THE MAIN MOTION:  
 Councilperson Talkington made an amendment to the motion to place Ordinance 3063 on first reading.  The motion was seconded by 
 Councilperson Mills Sojka. 
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 Councilperson Talkington explained this is a logistical log jam for the truckers and to give them the courtesy of a week or so for the 
 word to get out and for them, if they so choose, to come out and try to defend themselves.  
 

Councilperson Mills Sojka stated this could be like the food truck ordinance, to inform the public and allow for some time so people 
can be aware, because we have the opportunity to change city code without a public hearing and without any really outreach to let 
people know we are doing it. 

 
Councilperson Lanting stated that this is the second time the Council has discussed the issue and staff has stated education will take 
place for several weeks prior to issuing tickets.  This will give truckers ample time to find new places.  If the truckers cannot find 
places in three weeks they will have to go somewhere else.   

 
 Roll call vote on the motion showed Councilpersons Hawkins, Munn, Barigar, Talkington, and Mills Sojka voted in favor of the motion.  
 Councilperson Hall and Lanting voted against the motion.  Approved 5 to 2. 
 

Deputy City Clerk Sanchez read Ordinance 3063 by title only. AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO, THAT TWIN FALLS CITY CODE §9-6-8  BE AMENDED 

TO PROHIBIT ON-STREET TRUCK PARKING EXCEPT IN MANUFACTURING DISTRICTS, OR 

WHILE ENGAGED IN LOADING OR UNLOADING. 

 
Mayor Hall stated that Ordinance 3063 will come before the Council on March 3, 2014. 

 
 

6. Public input and/or items from the City Manager and City Council. 
 

Councilperson Mills Sojka reported that the Intermountain Fair Housing Council will conduct a workshop on March 19, 2014, 9:00 a.m. 
to 12:00 p.m. in Boise, Idaho.  City Manager Rothweiler stated that staff will be attending the workshop. 
 
Recess at 6:29 p.m. 
Reconvened at 6:35 p.m. 

 
 Mayor Hall reported that a Mayor and Manager Breakfast meeting will be conducted once a month and are inviting the public to attend 
 to discuss questions and concerns.  The meeting will be held on March 10, 2014, at 7:00 a.m. at Kelly’s located at 110 Main Avenue 
 North. 
 
III. ADVISORY BOARD REPORTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS:              6:00 P.M. 

1. Public hearing to consider adoption of a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit an application to the Idaho Department of 
Commerce to partially finance improvements to the Twin Falls Senior Center.   

 
Jeannette Roe, Twin Falls Senior Center, explained the request.  The City of Twin Falls is submitting a proposal to the Idaho 
Department of Commerce for an Idaho Community Development Block Grant (ICDBG) in an amount of no more than $150,000.  The 
proposed project is to make improvements to the Twin Falls Senior Center.    
 
Council discussion followed. 
- Senior Center building not built to City standards 
-Inspection prior to the City acquiring property 
 
Mayor Hall stated that the building was privately built as Treasure Cove. 
 
City Manager Rothweiler stated the City had a two year levy override that allowed the City to acquire the existing structure.  The 
building was not built by the City.   At the time the original building was constructed it was an era before the state had mandatory 
mechanical inspections.  He also stated that Carleen Herring, Region IV, was present for any questions the Council may have. He 
stated he is unable to answer if an inspection was done prior to the City acquiring the property.   
 
Jeanette Roe stated that she and Community Development Director Humble have been unable to locate a record of inspection. 
 
Councilperson Hawkins thanked Jeanette Roe for her tour of the Senior Center and commended her and her staff for their hard work 
on the improvement at the center. 
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City Manager Rothweiler stated that Carleen Herring, Region IV, was present for any questions the Council may have on how 
approval of the resolution may impact other block grants.  He stated that this will not impact other block grants.  All federal 
requirements that are associated with this will be running through the City’s grant processes to alleviate them of those concerns.  
Carleen Herring shared with him that Region IV will run them associated with the two Clif Bar.  Staff is supportive of the request. 

 
Mayor Hall opened and closed the public testimony of the public hearing with no public input. 

 
 MOTION: 

Councilperson Talkington made the motion to approve Resolution 1919, authorizing the Mayor to sign and submit an application for 
an Idaho Community Development Block Grant to partially finance improvements at the Twin Falls Senior Center.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilperson Lanting and roll call vote showed all members present voted in favor of the motion. Approved 7 to 0. 

 
2. Public Hearing to consider the City’s intent to dispose of a 6,200± square foot portion of a City owned lot located on 2nd Avenue 

South, Block 119 Lots 9 & 10. 
 

Economic Development Anderson explained the request.   
 
The City received a request from Twin Falls Urban Renewal Agency to acquire this vacant lot to combine with a building it owns at 
242 2nd Avenue South.  TFURA would like to combine the City’s vacant lot with its building to offer as a package for redevelopment. 
 
Staff recommends that the Council open a public hearing and then provide Staff direction as to the transfer of City owned property 
located on 2nd Avenue South, Block 119, Lots 9 & 10.  March 3, 2014, staff will bring back to the Council a proposed ordinance for 
approval. 
 
Mayor Hall opened and closed the public testimony of the public hearing with no public input. 

 
MOTION: 
Councilperson Lanting made the motion to approve the request of the City’s intent to dispose of a 6,200± square foot portion of a City 
owned lot located at on 2nd Avenue South, Block 119 Lots 9 & 10, to the Urban Renewal Agency and brings back an ordinance for 
Council consideration.  The motion was seconded by Councilperson Barigar.  Roll call vote showed Councilpersons Hawkins, Munn, 
Barigar, Talkington, Lanting, and Hall vote in favor of the motion.  Councilperson Mills Sojka voted against the motion.   
Approved 6 to 1. 

 
V.   ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 
 
 
   Leila A. Sanchez 
   Deputy City Clerk/Recording Secretary 



 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS 

 

 

1 of  3 
  

In Re:                                   ) 
                                         ) 
Final Plat Application,   )                 FINDINGS OF FACT, 
                                         )      
Westpark Commercial No. 8 –A PUD                                     )                   CONCLUSIONS OF LAW, 

c/o EHM Engineers, Inc.  ) 
Applicant(s).                          )                    AND DECISION 

           
  This matter having come before the City Council of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho on March 3, 2014 for 

consideration of the final plat of the Westpark Commercial No.8 Subdivision‐A PUD consisting of 2.03 (+/‐) acres with 2 

lots and 1 tract for commercial development on property located north of Pole Line Road & west Canyon Crest Drive, and 

the  City  Council  having  heard  testimony  from  interested  parties,  having  received  written  Findings  from  the 

Planning and Zoning Commission and being fully advised in the matter, now makes the following 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Applicant has requested approval of the final plat of the Westpark Commercial No.8 Subdivision‐A PUD consisting 

of 2.03  (+/‐) acres with 2  lots and 1 tract  for commercial development on property  located north of Pole Line Road & 

west Canyon Crest Drive. 

  2.  The property in question is zoned C‐1 PUD pursuant to the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Twin 

Falls.   The property  is designated as Commercial/Retail  in the duly adopted Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Twin Falls. 

  3.  The existing neighboring  land uses  in  the  immediate area of  this property are:    to  the north, 

Undeveloped; to the south, Pole Line Road/Undeveloped; to the east, Farmer’s National Bank; to the west, Undeveloped 

 

  4.  The City Engineering Office has reviewed the final plat and has approved the proposed street 

accesses and public utility extensions, subject to availability of such services at the time of development.     The 



 

 

developer will pay all costs of public improvements, including but not limited to streets, curb gutter and sidewalks, 

sewer, water and pressurized  irrigation  systems.   The proposed development  includes dedication of additional 

right‐of‐way in compliance with the Master Street Plan.  

  Based on  the  foregoing Findings of Fact and  the  regulations and  standards  set  forth below,  the City 

Council hereby makes the following 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

  1.  The  final plat of  the Westpark Commercial No.8 Subdivision‐A PUD  consisting of 2.03  (+/‐) acres 

with 2  lots and 1 tract for commercial development on property  located north of Pole Line Road & west Canyon Crest 

Drive is in conformance with the objectives of the zoning ordinance and the policy for developments in Twin Falls 

City Code §10‐1‐4.  Specifically, the land can be used safely for building purposes without danger to health or peril 

from  fire,  flood  or  other menace,  proper  provision  has  been made  for  drainage, water  sewerage  and  capital 

improvements including schools, parks, recreation facilities, transportation facilities and improvements, all existing 

and proposed public improvements conform to the Comprehensive Plan. 

2. The  final plat  is  in conformance with  the Comprehensive Plan as required by Twin Falls City 

Code §10‐12‐2.3(H)(2)(a). 

3.  Public  services  are  currently  available  to  accommodate  the  proposed  development,  as 

required by Twin Falls City Code §10‐12‐2.3(H)  (2)  (b).   Public  services may not be available at  the  time of 

development, depending upon the speed of development of this and other subdivisions and the ability of the 

City to obtain additional water and/or sewer capacity. 

  4.  The development of streets, sewer, water,  irrigation, dedication of park  land and other public 

improvements  at  the  cost  of  the  developer will  not  adversely  affect  any  capital  improvement  plan  and will 

integrate with existing public facilities, as required by Twin Falls City Code §10‐12‐2.3(H)(2)(c). 

  5.  There  is  sufficient  public  financial  capability  of  supporting  services  for  the  proposed 

development, as required by Twin Falls City Code §10‐12‐2.3(H)(2)(d). 



 

 

  6.  There  are no other health,  safety or environmental problems  associated with  the proposed 

development that were brought to the City Council’s attention, per Twin Falls City Code §10‐12‐ 2.3(H)(2)(e). 

  7.    The final plat is in conformance with the Preliminary Plat. Based on the foregoing Conclusions 

of Law, the Twin Falls City Council hereby enters the following 

DECISION 

  The  request  for  approval  of  the  final  plat  of  the Westpark  Commercial  No.8  Subdivision‐A  PUD 

consisting of 2.03 (+/‐) acres with 2 lots and 1 tract for commercial development on property located north of Pole Line 

Road & west Canyon Crest Drive is hereby granted, subject to final technical review by the City Engineer’s Office 

and subject to the conditions which are attached as “Exhibit No. A”, and incorporated by reference as though 

fully set  forth herein.   The applicant shall comply with all applicable  requirements of  the Adopted Standard 

Drawings, the Zoning Ordinance, and the City Code of the City of Twin Falls. 

 

MAYOR ‐ TWIN FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

DATE 

 
“EXHIBIT NO. A” 
 

1. Subject to final technical review and amendments as required by Building, Engineering, Fire and 
Zoning Officials to ensure compliance with all applicable City Code requirements and standards. 

2. Subject to compliance with Northbridge PUD 
3. Subject to the deed being revised in Westpark Commercial Subdivision #3, Lot 4 exclude this 

subdivision, if approved. 

   
 



 

TWIN FALLS COMMUNITY FOUNDATION 
P. O. BOX 5632 

TWIN FALLS, IDAHO 83303-5632 
(208) 734-6181 ext 113 

 
 
 
 
 

UPDATE ON DOWNTOWN COMMONS 
TO 

TWIN FALLS CITY COUNCIL 
 

March 10, 2014 
 

 
1- Request to officially name the project The Downtown Commons 
2- Disclose the change in Leadership with Terry C. McCurdy leaving for three   

years on an LDS Mission to the Philippines (Cebu) 
3- Invitation to the Annual Meeting of the Twin Falls Community Foundation 

on March 28, 2014, at noon at the Twin Falls Senior Center.  Lunch optional  
4- Financial/ Fundraising update 
5- Timetable to begin and end construction – Begin August 20, 2014, 

completed December 31, 2014 
 
 
Estimated timing – 10 -15 minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DOWNTOWN COMMON PROJECT 
MAIN AVENUE PLAZA AND SPLASH PARK 

January 2014 
 

CURRENT FINANCIAL STATUS 
 
 Original Project Cost      $376,205.75 
  
 City Commitment- Bathrooms                  ($  58,000.00) 
 
 Chobani Commitment         ($  50,000.00) 
 
 Glanbia Commitment                       ($  10,000.00) 
 
 Clif Bar      ($    5,000.00) 
 
 Maurice Bowers Trust      ($    5,000.00) 
 
    Idaho Power (Rotary)    ($    2,000.00) 
 
 Idaho Power (TFCF)       ($       500.00) 
 
 Kapstone (Longview)       ($    1,000.00) 
 
 TFCF Fund (Inman/Bricks)            ($  38,738.51) 
  
 MagicFest  Fund            ($  14,519.53) 
 
 The Times News     ($    1,000.00) 
 
 Rotary Fundraising 2012    ($  15,788.88) 
 
 Rotary Fundraising 2013           ($    6,723.42) 
 
 Rotary Death by Chocolate 2013          ($  13,693.50) 
 
 Rotary Death by Chocolate 2014   ($  12,500.00) 
 
 Rotary Danny Marona Show           ($  11,415.00) 
 
 Ice Cream Funday – 2013                ($    6,100.00) 
 
 Already paid to The Land Group        ($  39,835.20) 
 
 Urban Renewal Commitment      (  $50,000.00)  Subject to Final Approval 
  
 
  Balance to raise      $34,391.71 
 
 
 OTHER GRANTS SUBMITTED 
  St. Lukes MVRMC, INL, Wells Fargo 
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Request: 

A presentation of the City of Twin Falls’ 2013 audited financial statements.  The presentation will be made 
by Scott Hunsaker of Mahlke Hunsaker & Company, PLLC. 

 Time Estimate: 

Scott will give a brief presentation, followed by questions from the Council.  I would estimate this item 
taking approximately 10 minutes. 

Background: 

The finance team, led by Brent Hyatt, prepared an audit plan for 2013.  We met with Susan Klein and Scott 
Hunsaker to ensure the plan was reasonable and worked for all involved.  Scott and Susan began field 
work on the City’s 2013 audit in late December.  Their work was completed by the end of January 2014, 
and statements were issued February 10, 2014.   

Budget Impact: 

There is no budget impact. 

Regulatory Impact: 

Idaho Code 67-450B states “The governing body of a local governmental entity whose annual expenditures 
(from all sources) exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) shall cause a full and complete 
audit of its financial statements to be made each fiscal year.” 

Conclusion: 

There is no action required by the City Council. 

Attachments: 

Electronic copy of the 2013 audited financial statements.  

 A copy of the statements is also available on the City’s website at www.tfid.org . 

 

 

 

 

Date:  Monday, March 10, 2014 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Lorie Race, CFO 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

February 10, 2014 
 

City Council 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of City of Twin Falls, Idaho, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho, 
as of September 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

1 



   
 

 

 

Mahlke Hunsaker & Company pllc 
www.m-hcpa.com  |  208.734.1809| 139 River Vista Place, Suite 202 Twin Falls, ID  83301 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion 
and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-12 and 54-62 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10, 2014, on our 
consideration of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance 

 
Sincerely, 

 

MAHLKE HUNSAKER & CO., pllc 
Twin Falls, Idaho 
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho   
____________________________________________________ 

 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2013 

 
 
This section of the City of Twin Falls’ annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City’s 
financial performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013.  Please read it in conjunction with the 
School’s financial statements, which begin on page 13. 
 
Financial Highlights 

 During the year, the City’s revenues generated from taxes and other revenues of the governmental and 
business-type programs were $4,445,346 more than the $47,748,486 governmental and business-type 
program expenditures.  Of that total, governmental activities increased by $1,706,016 and business-type 
activities increase by $2,739,330. 

 The general fund reported a $3,431,117 current year surplus primarily due to a repayment of $2,900,000 
from the Wastewater Fund. 

 The capital improvement fund reported a $253,071 current year surplus, but this can be attributed to the 
timing of work completed and billed by outside sources.  Funds are encumbered to cover projects where 
there was a legal obligation to pay, but work has not been completed. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This report consists of three parts – management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial 
statements and required supplementary information.  The basic financial statements include: 

 
 Government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-term information about the 

City’s overall financial status. 
 Fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City’s government, reporting the City’s 

operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
 Fiduciary fund statements that provide reporting on the financial relationships where the City acts solely as 

a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.  The City of Twin 
Falls has no fiduciary statements this year. 

 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed information or date.  The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
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The table below summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements. 
 
Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements 

 Government-wide 
Financial Statements 

Fund Financial Statements 
Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope Entire City government and 
the City’s component unit 

Activities of the City that 
are not proprietary  

Activities of the City that 
are operated similar to 
private business 

Required 
financial 
statements 

- Statement of net position 
- Statement of activities 
 

- Balance sheet 
- Statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes 
in fund balances 

- Statement of net position 
- Statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in 
net position 
- Statement of cash flows 

Accounting 
basis and  
measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Type of 
asset / liability 
information 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets included 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term 

Type of 
inflow / outflow 
information 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 
paid 

- Revenues for which cash 
is received during or soon 
after the end of the year 
- Expenditures when goods 
or services have been 
received and payment is due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 
paid 

 
Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole 
 
Analysis of Condensed Statement of Net Position 
 
The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources.  The statement presents the assets and 
liabilities in order of relative liquidity.  The liabilities with average maturities greater than one year are reported in 
two components – the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year.  The long-term 
liabilities of the City, consisting of revenue bonds, and compensated absences payable, have been reported in this 
manner on the Statement of Net Position.  The difference between the City’s assets and liabilities is its net position. 
 
The table below presents the City’s Condensed Statement of Net Position as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, 
derived from the government-wide Statement of Net Position.  The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities (net 
position) at the close of the year by approximately $177,319,000 for governmental activities and by $60,063,000 
for business-type activities, for a combined total of $237,382,000 for the primary government. Governmental 
activities increased by approximately $1,764,000 from 2012 to 2013, while the net position for business type 
activities increased by approximately $2,682,000 during the same period. 
 
The three components of net position include net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.  The 
largest component of net position, totaling approximately $190,996,000 at year end, is the investment in capital 
assets, which includes all of the sewer and water lines and roads of the City.  The City uses these capital assets to 
provide services to the citizens and businesses in the City; consequently, these net assets are not available for future 
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spending.  Restricted assets totaling approximately $16,459,000 represent resources that are subject to external 
restrictions and other provisions on how they can be used.  The remaining balance of approximately $29,928,000 is 
unrestricted and available to meet the ongoing obligations of the City to its citizens and creditors. 
 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Current and other assets 31,281,615    24,411,262    21,381,952 16,765,072 52,663,567   41,176,334     
Capital assets 149,862,775  153,880,017  79,523,131 78,468,832 229,385,906 232,348,849   
   Total assets 181,144,390  178,291,279  100,905,083 95,233,904 282,049,473 273,525,183   
Current liabilities 1,613,903      682,553         2,332,606   5,537,204   3,946,509     6,219,757       
Noncurrent liabilities 2,211,509      2,053,394      38,509,741 32,315,664 40,721,250   34,369,058     
   Total liabilities 3,825,412      2,735,947      40,842,347 37,852,868 44,667,759   40,588,815     
Net position:
   Investment in capital assets 149,862,775  153,880,017  41,132,893 44,224,642 190,995,668 198,104,659   
   Restricted 16,259,022    15,353,423    199,519      1,781,582   16,458,541   17,135,005     
   Unrestricted 11,197,181    6,321,892      18,730,324 11,374,812 29,927,505   17,696,704     
Total net position 177,318,978  175,555,332  60,062,736 57,381,036 237,381,714 232,936,368   

Total Primary
Government

Condensed Statement of Net Position
As of September 30

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Charges for 
services
20%

Grants or 
contributions

20%
Property taxes

58%

Other taxes
1%

Investment and 
other earnings

1%

Sources of Revenue for FY 2013
Governmental Activities

Charges for 
services
94%

Grants or 
contributions

4%

Investment and 
other earnings

2%

Sources of Revenue for FY 2013
Business‐type Activities

General 
government

34%

Public safety
35%

Streets
15%

Culture and 
recreation

10%

Airport
6%

Program Expenses  for FY 2013
Governmental Activities

Water
41%

Sewer
39%

Sanitation
18%

Recreation 
enterprises

2%

Program Expenses  for FY 2013
Business‐type Activities
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Analysis of Condensed Statement of Activities 
 
The following table presents the City’s condensed statement of activities for the fiscal year 2012-13 and fiscal year 
2011-12, as derived from the government-wide Statement of Activities.  Over time, increase and decreases in net 
position measure whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.  The City’s total net position 
increased during the fiscal year 2012-13 by approximately $4,445,000.  Of that total, governmental activities 
increased by approximately $1,763,000 and the net position of business-type activities increased by approximately 
$2,682,000.  These changes differ from those detailed on the previous page due to the elimination, in the current 
year, of some smaller funds and the transfer of their balances to the general fund, a governmental type fund. 
 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Program revenues

Charges for services 5,652,382        5,629,074         19,902,491     18,906,147      25,554,873      24,535,221       
Grants and contributions

Operating 5,882,115        5,898,413         -                 -                  5,882,115        5,898,413         
Capital 2,314,982        668,580            845,391          81,463             3,160,373        750,043            

Total program revenue 13,849,479      12,196,067       20,747,882     18,987,610      34,597,361      31,183,677       
General revenues and payments

Property taxes 16,651,268      16,075,739       -                 -                  16,651,268      16,075,739       
Other taxes 223,358           196,323            -                 -                  223,358           196,323            
Investment earnings (44,176)            259,959            (56,627)          111,004           (100,803)          370,963            
Other revenues 370,696           554,904            451,952          122,845           822,648           677,749            

Total general revenues 
  and payments 17,201,146      17,086,925       395,325          233,849           17,596,471      17,320,774       

Total general revenues
and payments 31,050,625      29,282,992       21,143,207     19,221,459      52,193,832      48,504,451       

Program expenses
General government 11,474,562      10,564,109       -                 -                  11,474,562      10,564,109       
Public safety 11,799,703      11,326,990       -                 -                  11,799,703      11,326,990       
Streets 4,803,308        4,073,657         -                 -                  4,803,308        4,073,657         
Culture and recreation 3,396,872        3,321,978         -                 -                  3,396,872        3,321,978         
Airport 2,050,091        1,380,459         -                 -                  2,050,091        1,380,459         
Water -                   -                   5,842,097       5,398,289        5,842,097        5,398,289         
Sewer -                   -                   5,528,219       4,560,436        5,528,219        4,560,436         
Sanitation -                   -                   2,524,489       2,479,909        2,524,489        2,479,909         
Recreation enterprises -                   -                   308,754          368,731           308,754           368,731            
Other -                   -                   20,391            111,407           20,391             111,407            

Total program expenses 33,524,536      30,667,193       14,223,950     12,918,772      47,748,486      43,585,965       
Excess (deficiency) before

gain (loss) and transfers (2,473,911)       (1,384,201)       6,919,257       6,302,687        4,445,346        4,918,486         
Transfers 4,179,927        (5,274,297)       (4,179,927)     5,274,297        -                   -                   
Change in net position 1,706,016        (6,658,498)       2,739,330       11,576,984      4,445,346        4,918,486         
Beginning net position 175,555,332    182,213,830     57,381,036     45,804,052      232,936,368    228,017,882     
Transfers of net position 57,630             -                   (57,630)          -                   -                   

Ending net position 177,318,978    175,555,332     60,062,736     57,381,036      237,381,714    232,936,368     

Total Primary
Government

Condensed Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities
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Governmental Revenues 
 
The City is heavily reliant on property taxes and shared state revenues to support governmental operations.  Total 
revenues for 2013, in the governmental funds, are comprised of property taxes (54%), shared state revenues are 
(21%), charges for services (18%), and federal grants (6%), with all other sources of revenue account for the 
remaining (1%) governmental revenues. 
 
Program Expenses and Revenue for Governmental Activities 
 
The following table presents the net costs for governmental activities.  Net program costs increased 6.5% compared 
to the prior year.  Overall program revenues increased 13.5% this year and contributed 41% to programs expenses, 
with the balance coming from general revenues, i.e. property taxes and state shared revenues. 
 
Program revenues for 2013 are more than in 2012 by approximately $1,653,000 and program expenses for 2013 are 
more than in 2012 by approximately $2,857,000. 
 
The City again renewed an operating agreement for management of the City’s pool.  The City does not receive any 
revenue from the pool and has provided support for the pool with an allocation of governmental revenues.  Budget 
expenditures are kept at a level where it can keep the pool operational and provide it as a recreational resource for 
community members. The pool activities are included in the culture and recreation function below. 
 

Less
Program Program
Expenses Revenues

2013 2013 2013 2012 2013 2012

General government 11,474,562    5,135,835      6,338,727    5,654,451    44.8% 46.9%
Fire 3,949,996      401,375         3,548,621    3,313,263    10.2% 10.4%
Police 7,849,707      799,935         7,049,772    6,846,806    10.2% 10.2%
Engineering & planning 1,492,029      868,107         623,922       639,916       58.2% 41.8%
Library 1,521,534      62,454           1,459,080    1,431,393    4.1% 8.4%
Culture & recreation 1,705,144      205,040         1,500,104    1,405,029    12.0% 12.3%
Highways & streets 3,311,279      3,428,845      (117,566)     (551,312)      103.6% 125.5%
Pool 170,194         124,974         45,220         34,166         73.4% 125.5%
Airport 2,050,091      2,822,914      (772,823)     (302,586)      137.7% 189.8%

Totals 33,524,536    13,849,479    19,675,057  18,471,126  41.3% 41.3%

Functions/Programs

as a Percentage of
Program Expenses

Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Net Program
Costs

Program Revenues

 
 
Program Expenses and Revenue for Business-type Activities 
 
The following table presents net income and costs for business-type activities.  Program revenues generated from 
business-type activities were generally sufficient to cover most program expenses.  An exception is the City’s golf 
activities.  In the previous year the City entered into a new contract leasing the golf course.  The contract reduced 
the City’s exposure to losses and still allows the City to retain enough input to assure that this asset of the City 
retains its value and continues to provide recreation services to the community. Even though the program revenues 
from this activity did not cover program expenditures in the current year, the loss is a significant improvement over 
historical averages and the golf course financial activities are projected to be trending up.  The lease allows the City 
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to participate in profits of its lessee/partner at a certain level. This year the golf course achieved that level and the 
lessee sent the City a distribution of the excess earnings. The City is cautiously optimistic this level of profitability 
will continue or increase. 
 
In an earlier year the City opted to offer curbside recycling as part of its sanitation services.  The City elected to 
subsidize the additional costs of that service initially.  Last year the City reevaluated that position and adjusted rates 
to make sanitation services self-funding. This year is the first full year that the Sanitation function has had the 
benefit of those increased rates and the Sanitation Fund was able to cover all of its operating costs. 
 
Revenues in the water fund are impacted by weather’s effect on irrigation usage, growth in the city, and rates. The 
current year was the first full year the City was using a new system for blending a new source of City water from 
the Pristine Springs area with other City water sources having a higher arsenic content. This process now fully 
assures the City’s compliance with new mandated federal arsenic level requirements. Bonds secured to finance the 
project were schedule to be repaid with an $11.15 monthly charge to all the City water users. After review the City 
was able to reduce that rate to $10.75 for each water user. 
 
In the Wastewater Fund and the Water Fund the City implemented an increase in rates for residential and industrial 
users. Those increased rates along with increased usage, particularly among the City’s industrial users, resulted in 
better than projected revenues in the funds. The rate increases were on historical information and the City’s need to 
remain in compliance with rate requirements in its bond covenants. Another significant increase is scheduled to 
take place for the 2013-2014 fiscal year. The City must maintain significant profits in the Water and Sewer area to 
be able to repay bond liabilities and fund capital improvements. 
 

Less
Program Program
Revenues Expenses

2013 2013 2013 2012 2013 2012

Water 9,440,638      5,842,097      3,598,541    3,796,199    61.9% 58.1%
Sewer 8,500,465      5,528,219      2,972,246    2,425,405    65.0% 85.3%
Sanitation 2,567,778      2,524,489      43,289         (2,297)          98.3% 113.0%
Golf 7,378             82,998           (75,620)       (93,014)        1124.9% 133.0%
Dierkes Lk/Shoshone Fls 202,547         225,756         (23,209)       86,306         111.5% 71.5%
Parking -                -               -              8,771           0.0% 86.9%
Common Area Maintenance 29,076           20,391           8,685           (9,179)          70.1% 138.3%

Totals 20,747,882    14,223,950    6,523,932    6,212,191    68.6% 77.5%

Functions/Programs

as a Percentage of
Program Revenues

Net Income (Costs) of Business-type Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Net Program
Income (Costs)

Program Expenses

 
 
Fund Analysis 
 
Governmental Funds 
The City’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of approximately $27,789,000 at 
September 30, 2013, with approximately $14,534,000 reported as unassigned; compared to a combined ending fund 
balance of approximately $21,959,000 at September 30, 2012.  The most dramatic change was in the General Fund 
itself.  The General Fund experienced an increase in its fund balance by approximately $3,341,000.  The bulk of 
that increase came from transfers into the general fund of approximately $4,558,000. In a previous year the General 
Fund had transferred approximately $2,900,000 to the Wastewater Fund to finance a construction project. The City 
Council made a conscience decision this year to “repay” the General Funds those funds after long-term financing 
was secured, through the bonding process, for those construction projects. 
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Proprietary Funds 
The City’s proprietary funds reported combined ending net position of approximately $60,063,000 at September 30, 
2013, with approximately $41,133,000 invested in capital assets (net of debt) and approximately $18,730,000 
reported as unrestricted.  On September 30, 2012 the funds net position were approximately $57,381,000, of which 
approximately $44,225,000 was invested in capital assets (net) and approximately $11,375,000 was reported as 
unrestricted. 
Capital Asset Activity 
 
At September 30, 2013 the City reported, on a government wide basis, net investment in capital assets of 
approximately $229,386,000, a decrease of approximately $4,017,000 for governmental activities and an increase 
of approximately $1,054,000 for business-type activities from the previous year. Most of the major increases in 
capital assets for the government activities fell into two groups.  Assets between $20,000 and $100,000 which 
related to scheduled asset replacements due to equipment wear and obsolescence or significant improvements in 
infrastructure. During the year the City committed resources to improvements for the airport runways, initial design 
planning to make the airport terminal more functional, park improvements, and road development on Eastland 
Drive North, final construction costs associated with the arsenic project, a new fire truck, and engineering costs 
associated with future projects. 
 
Most of the City’s large construction projects take several years from conception to completion. During the course 
of construction those costs are inventoried annually in a category called Construction in Progress. As projects are 
completed they are transferred out of this temporary holding account into an asset classification.  During the year 
the City’s water system enhancement called the Arsenic System became fully operational and allowed the City to 
meet Federal water quality requirements. $18,771,000 was moved out of construction in progress and classified as 
infrastructure in the Water Fund for the project. 
 
In its mission to provide citizens of the City the services and protections they require, the City maintains a 
substantial investment in streets, water systems, waste treatment and disposal structures, offices, a pool of vehicles, 
and general and heavy equipment.  All of those capital assets have a definitive useful life and are subject to 
depreciation, or a decrease in value, over time.  During the current year that depreciation was estimated to be 
around $8,671,000 for the government funds and $2,041,000 for the business type activities. One way to quantify 
the average capital replacement needed is through depreciation. Using the City’s current depreciation amounts the 
City would need to average $10,700,000 in capital acquisitions each year to maintain its present level of services.  
The City will continue to maintain a balance with its budgeting efforts to assure that this investment in capital 
assets is appropriately maintained at a level which will allow the City to fulfill its mission and still assure that those 
needs are met in an affordable way. 
 
Long-Term Debt Activity 
 
The City is fortunate enough to have operated without incurring any outstanding general obligation bonds. The only 
long-term debt in the governmental activities is compensated absences.  Compensated absences have been included 
as a future obligation of the City in the amount of $1,407,000.  That obligation represents unused vacation pay that 
employees have earned and not used as well as hours worked that an employee has elected to defer payment for 
until a future period. As the City has grown, the number of employees has also increased.  That has caused a natural 
increase in the balance of compensated absences being reported as a liability. The City never anticipates reducing 
or eliminating this liability. 
 
In its business type activities for this year, the City secured new financing from the Idaho Bond Bank totaling 
$14,670,000. The City typically undertakes major infrastructure projects through borrowed funding. Half of the 
new bond proceeds were used to pay off old wastewater and water bonds from previous projects. In doing so the 
City took advantage of better rates and terms it could now secure. The other half was used to fund capital projects 
in the Sewer Fund. In addition to paying off the bonds just mentioned, the city made principal payments of 
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$2,970,000 on existing debt in the enterprise funds leaving a balance due at September 30, 2013 of $38,341,000; 
this excludes $120,000 for future compensation issues outlined above. 
 
One issue that has been festering over the past several years for state and local entities relates to the reporting of 
unfunded liabilities, primarily retirement benefits. Several studies have attempted to quantify the amount of 
unfunded liabilities that exist and are not reported on the financial statements of state and local municipalities, 
estimates exceed a trillion dollars. Fortunately the City has been very judicious in the benefits it has awarded to 
retiring employees. The City participates in the State sponsored retirement program, the Public Employee 
Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI). The administrators of PERSI have been fairly conservative in forecasting the 
performance of investments within portfolios as well as designing a system that is fair to retirees and not too 
burdensome to the taxpaying citizens. Beginning this next year municipalities and states will have to compute and 
report unfunded liabilities. The City will have to reflect its proportionate share of any unfunded liability PERSI has. 
We are not anticipating a significant impact on the net financial position the City has as a result of these new 
requirements. 
 
Economic Factors 
 
Twin Falls continues to grow but at a very modest pace.  Like the rest of the nation, residential construction is not 
as robust as it has been in the past, but it does show signs of strengthening. Activity levels continue to exceed 
budgeted forecasts. Single family building permits issued by the City for the past five years are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending  Permits Issued 
2009  158 
2010  159 
2011  96 
2012  151 
2013  182 

 
As measured by the number of permits issued, commercial construction also remained relatively flat increasing 
from 19 permits issued for the last fiscal year to 20 this year. The total estimated value of building permits issued 
increased from $58.4 million last year to $65.1 this year. 
 
Differing a little from national trends where there is some moderation of high unemployment rates, unemployment 
levels increased within the City.  A year ago the City’s unemployment level was reported at 6.8% at year end.  At 
the end of the current year, unemployment stood at 7.3%.  That 7.3% was somewhat higher than the State and 
National rates.  It occurred at a time when the Idaho State unemployment was 6.8% and the National 
unemployment was 7.2%. 
 
The reduced rate of building growth has impacted the city utilities as well, with water service accounts only 
increasing from 15,757 to 15,786 between September 30, 2012 and 2013. 
 
Appraised values within the City decreased from $2,314,981,873 to $2,152,055,074. This is the third year the City 
has experienced a slight decrease in property values which is very unusual. Perhaps one factor contributing to the 
decrease may be the way the County cycles through its appraisal process. Every five years properties are required to 
be reassessed by the County Appraiser. It may be that these properties have lost value in earlier years but the impact 
of that reduction is manifesting itself as the five year cycle plays out. One related note of interest is that State 
shared revenues came in ahead of the budgeted amounts. Further investigation into the cause revealed that even 
though City property values had decreased, the decrease was less than the average drop in values State wide. 
Property values are one factor used by the State to allocate revenues. The City received a larger proportionate share 
of these allocated revenues because property values within the City had been negatively affected less. 
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Following is a table showing a comparison of the levy rates for 2012 and 2011. 
 

2012 Levy 2011 Levy
Rates (funded Rates (funded Percent

Taxing District 2012-13 budget) 2011-12 budget) Change

City of Twin Falls 0.007713994           0.006922194           11.4%
Twin Falls County 0.004526841           0.004190567           8.0%
Twin Falls County Ambulance District 0.000206622           0.000187362           10.3%
Twin Falls County Abatement District 0.000125974           0.000115022           9.5%
Twin Falls School District 411 0.003788780           0.003706993           2.2%
Twin Falls Highway District 0.001181484           0.001077720           9.6%
College of Southern Idaho 0.000957570           0.000904474           5.9%
   Combined 0.018501265         0.017104332         8.2%

 
 
Future Issues 
 
During the previous year the City engage in a process of strategic planning whereby it analyzed the needs of the 
community and the role the City may have in meeting those needs.  A plan was established and goals were 
identified along with specific timelines.  Those goals have been and will continue to be integrated with the 
budgeting process and regularly reviewed and reevaluated to determine the best way to move forward. 
 
Compensation 
One issue that the City has dealt with, and that will continue into the future, is City wide compensation. The City 
was able to determine that many employees were being compensated at a level that was below the surrounding 
market. An attempt was made to compute the indirect costs to the City of the excessive turnover this caused. A 
strategy was planned which will eventually bring compensation up to a level that is competitive with the local 
market and maintain it going forward. The strategy is being implemented over several years and a determination is 
being made during the budgeting process at the level of progress that can be made and sustained. 
 
Wastewater Capacity 
For a number of years the City has been advised by its engineers that the wastewater system was reaching capacity 
limitations on the amount of waste water that could be collected in the community and processed. City Engineers 
evaluated the community’s future needs and the best way to meet any increased demand on the wastewater system. 
They developed a basic idea of what the needs were and the City went to its voters with a request to fund those 
treatment needs.  The citizens approved a bond issuance of $38,000,000 to rehabilitate and expand the existing 
sewer treatment plant and replace sever miles of sewer lines.  Over the next several years, work will commence on 
detailed design and construction to create the needed infrastructure. 
 
Road and Street Maintenance 
The City has gone through a process to organize its regular road and street maintenance program.  Instead of just 
listing critical needs and starting with those that are the worst, the City was divided up into eight geographic areas. 
Each year the City will focus on one area and rotate through these natural occurring zones.  This will allow the 
Street Department to be more efficient in meeting road overlay and maintenance needs on a regular basis. An 
additional advantage is that the Water and Wastewater Departments will be able to coordinate with the Street 
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Department for repairs and maintenance in the same areas so the roads and streets are only damaged once. The 
repair zone concept will require a stabilized approach to street maintenance funding. 
 
Water Supply 
Over the years the City’s water supply vacillates between drought conditions, which frequently jeopardize existing 
water supplies and wet water years that impact water revenue. The City has developed a new water source with the 
purchase and development of the Pristine Springs area.  However, a commitment has been made to not use that 
water source for meeting expanding needs. The City will need to monitor water supply and demand issues going 
forward. 
 
Building Capacity 
Other than constructing some outlying fire stations to trim response times and the remodeling of a warehouse to 
accommodate public works, the City has not constructed a major building in nearly 40 years. Overcrowding is 
particularly troublesome in the police department. When the police station was constructed, it was built when the 
City had 45 employees using the facility. Now the City has over 100. Locker use is especially congested. The 
original design did not adequately plan for the number of women, now 29, which the City would eventually employ 
 
For several years an effort has been in place to design a remodel of the building so that it could accommodate the 
increased growth in the department.  During the past year, plans were bid for the remodel project.  The bids that 
came in were twice the original architect’s estimate and the City determined that with the high construction costs, 
the City may be better off reevaluating other options to address the issue. Accommodating the space requirements 
of the department is one the critical needs near term that the City has.” 
 
Urban Renewal Agency 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho (URA) was organized under Idaho law in 1965 to 
redevelop deteriorating areas and to promote economic development. During the previous year a resolution was 
adopted by the Agency’s Board of Directors which established a new area the Agency could participate in. That 
area encompasses the site that the new Chobani facility sits in. The URA and the City partnered to assist Chobani 
meet their requirements to construct a production facility in the area.  During the year that facility became fully 
operational. It is now the world’s largest yogurt plant. The one-million-square-foot plant was completed in just 326 
days following a $450 million investment. 
 
In recognition of their participation the, City and the URA received the Council of Development Finance Agencies 
(CDFA) annual CDFA Excellence in Tax Increment Finance Award. The award was presented at the National 
Summit in Washington DC. The project was showcased in several national and state business publications as an 
example of the way private business and public entities can successfully partnership. 
 
During the year the URA established another area next to the Chobani facility.  This will allow the URA and the 
City to participate in a similar project to provide all of the infrastructure needs of Clif Bar & Company (CLIF Bar). 
CLIF Bar is a leading maker of nutritious and organic food and drink for people on the go and plans to build the 
world’s largest bakery under one roof over the next several years at the site. 
 
Under governmental accounting standards the Agency is considered a component unit of the City so a summary of 
its financial information is discretely presented in the City’s financial statements. The Agency’s financial 
statements are available upon request. 
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Net Position

September 30, 2013

Component 
Business Unit-

Governmental Type Urban
Activities Activities Total Renewal

Assets
  Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,236,708$          5,221,251$        7,457,959$        7,222,559$      
  Restricted Cash 1,029,240            199,519             1,228,759          3,573,360        
  Investments 24,149,371          12,833,402        36,982,773        -                       
  Receivables:
    Taxes 504,422               -                         504,422             110,166           
    Fees and Services 28,040                 2,176,028          2,204,068          -                       
    Intergovernmental 2,270,462            1,063,747          3,334,209          7,677               
    Interest 665                      -                         665                    -                       
    Accounts 430,359               42,672               473,031             -                       
  Internal Balances 632,348               (632,348)            -                         -                       
  Inventory -                           477,681             477,681             -                       
 Prepaid Items -                           -                         -                         33,000             
  Land 6,694,877            11,252,387        17,947,264        2,688,889        
  Land, Buildings and Structures 17,438,333          18,753,067        36,191,400        5,129,695        
  Infrastructure 256,697,280        23,917,614 280,614,894      -                       
  Improvements 17,389,029          39,244,033        56,633,062        -                       
  Machinery and Equipment 16,149,219          7,582,994          23,732,213        475,000           
  Accumulated Depreciation (172,656,243)       (30,550,053)       (203,206,296)     (568,207)          
  Construction in Progress 8,150,280            9,323,089          17,473,369        27,152,357      

Total Assets 181,144,390$     100,905,083$   282,049,473$    45,824,496$   

Liabilities
  Pooled Cash 102,409$             310,953$           413,362$           -$                     
  Accounts Payable 1,411,353            1,780,221          3,191,574          406,582           
  Accrued Expenses 100,141               -                         100,141             -                       
  Accrued Interest -                           40,113               40,113               1,204,928        
 Due to Other Governments -                           -                         -                         574,354           
  Deferred Revenue 562,427               -                         562,427             -                       
  Customer Deposits 241,923               201,319             443,242             -                       
  Advances on Construction -                           -                         -                         -                       
  Leases, Equipment and Property Notes -                           49,445               49,445               215,942           
  Revenue Bond Payable -                           38,340,793        38,340,793        38,979,375      
  Compensated Absences 1,407,159            119,503             1,526,662          -                       
Total Liabilities 3,825,412            40,842,347        44,667,759        41,381,181      

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 149,862,775        41,132,893        190,995,668      (5,522,511)       
  Restricted for:
    Capital Projects 8,977,961            -                         8,977,961          -                       
    Debt Service 20,191                 199,519             219,710             3,573,360        
    Other Purposes 7,260,870            -                         7,260,870          -                       
  Unrestricted 11,197,181          18,730,324        29,927,505        6,392,466        
Total Net Position 177,318,978        60,062,736        237,381,714      4,443,315        

Total Liabilities and Net Position 181,144,390$     100,905,083$   282,049,473$    45,824,496$   

Primary Government

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
14



City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Component
Operating Capital Business- Unit - 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Type Urban 
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Renewal
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General Government 11,474,562$            1,481,311$       3,117,074$        537,450 (6,338,727)$          -$                      (6,338,727)$            
Fire 3,949,996                401,375            -                        -                           (3,548,621)            -                        (3,548,621)              
Police 7,849,707                799,935            -                        -                           (7,049,772)            -                        (7,049,772)              
Engineering/Planning 1,492,029                868,107            -                        -                           (623,922)               -                        (623,922)                 
Library 1,521,534                62,454              0 -                           (1,459,080)            -                        (1,459,080)              
Culture and Recreation 1,705,144                203,515            1,525                 -                           (1,500,104)            -                        (1,500,104)              
Highway and Street 3,311,279                1,143,419         2,285,426          -                           117,566                -                        117,566                  
Pool 170,194                   -                        124,974             -                           (45,220)                 (45,220)                   
Airport 2,050,091                692,266            353,116             1,777,532            772,823                -                        772,823                  

Total Governmental Activities 33,524,536              5,652,382         5,882,115          2,314,982            (19,675,057)          -                        (19,675,057)            
Business-Type Activities:

Water 5,842,097                9,440,638         -                        -                           -                            3,598,541         3,598,541               
Sewer 5,528,219                7,655,074         -                        845,391 -                            2,972,246         2,972,246               
Sanitation 2,524,489                2,567,778         -                        -                           -                            43,289              43,289                    
Golf 82,998                     7,378                -                        -                           -                            (75,620)             (75,620)                   
Dierkes Lake/Shoshone Falls 225,756                   202,547            -                        -                           -                            (23,209)             (23,209)                   
Parking -                               -                        -                        -                           -                            -                        -                              
Common Area Maintenance 20,391                     29,076              -                        -                           -                            8,685                8,685                      

Total Business-Type Activities 14,223,950              19,902,491       -                        845,391               -                            6,523,932         6,523,932               
Total Primary Government 47,748,486$            25,554,873$    5,882,115$       3,160,373$         (19,675,057)$        6,523,932$      (13,151,125)$         

Component Unit:
Urban Renewal Agency (2,086,494)$    

General Revenues:
    Taxes:

    Property taxes, Levied for General Purposes 16,651,268$         -$                      16,651,268$           -$                    
    Property taxes, Levied for Debt Service -                            -                        -                              2,482,504        
    Franchise and Public Service Taxes 223,358                -                        223,358                  -                      

    Interest and Investment Earnings (44,176)                 (56,627)             (100,803)                 5,019               
    Gain on sale of assets 60,000             
    Miscellaneous Revenues 370,696 451,952            822,648                  9,412               
Transfers 4,179,927             (4,179,927)        -                              -                      

21,381,073           (3,784,602)        17,596,471             2,556,935        
Changes in Net Position 1,706,016             2,739,330         4,445,346               470,441           

Net Position - October 1, 2012 175,555,332         57,381,036       232,936,368           3,972,874        

Transfer of Fund Net Position to General Fund 57,630                  (57,630)             -                              -                      

Net Position - September 30, 2013 177,318,978$       60,062,736$    237,381,714$        4,443,315$     

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Fund Balance Sheets
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2013

Capital Airport Other Total
General Street Airport Improvement Construction Governmental Governmental

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 806,214$         38,981$          14,922$        8,444$             -$                  881,525$            1,750,086$         
Restricted Cash 249,939           -                      -                    37,320             453,024           288,957              1,029,240           
Investments 12,666,064      3,870,733       1,454,458     3,782,266        -                      2,220,067           23,993,588         
Receivables (net of allowance)

Taxes 404,285           52,337            4,359            14,674             -                      23,133                498,788              
Fees and Services -                      28,040            -                    -                       -                      -                         28,040                
Intergovernmental 771,058           381,732          3,628            705,301           355,039           51,881                2,268,639           
Interest 665                  -                      -                    -                       -                      -                         665                     
Accounts 162,049           92                   31,336          -                       19,938             216,944              430,359              

Due from Other Funds 1,558,033        -                      -                    -                       -                      -                         1,558,033           
Total Assets 16,618,307$    4,371,915$    1,508,703$  4,548,005$      828,001$        3,682,507$        31,557,438$      

Liabilities
Pooled Cash -$                    -$                    -$                  -$                     76,247$           26,162$              102,409$            
Accounts Payable 94,902             550,684          15,758          278,518           449,572           21,843                1,411,277           
Accrued Expenses 88,824             -                      -                    -                       -                      11,317                100,141              
Customer Deposits Payable 241,923           -                      -                    -                       -                      -                         241,923              
Due to Other Funds -                      -                      -                    53,854             295,973           575,859              925,686              
Total Liabilities 425,649           550,684          15,758          332,372           821,792           635,181              2,781,436           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 344,451           44,592            566,139        12,502             -                      19,709                987,393              

Fund Balances
Nonspendable Fund Balance -                      -                      -                    -                       -                      -                         -                          
Restricted Fund Balance 249,939           -                      -                    37,320             453,024           288,957              1,029,240           
Committed Fund Balance 158,843           -                      -                    -                       -                      3,197,704           3,356,547           
Assigned Fund Balance -                      3,776,639       926,806        4,165,811        -                      -                         8,869,256           
Unassigned Fund Balance 15,439,425      -                      -                    (446,815)         (459,044)            14,533,566         
Total Fund Balance 15,848,207      3,776,639       926,806        4,203,131        6,209               3,027,617           27,788,609         

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources and Fund Balance 16,618,307$    4,371,915$    1,508,703$  4,548,005$      828,001$        3,682,507$        31,557,438$      

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Capital Airport Other Total
General Street Airport Improvement Construction Governmental Governmental

Revenues
Property Taxes, Including Interest 12,686,003$    1,493,021$    341,689$       407,259$          -$                       1,589,451$          16,517,423$        
Other Taxes 520,231           -                     -                     -                       -                         223,358               743,589               
Special Assessments, Including Interest -                       -                     -                     -                       -                         72,757                 72,757                 
Fines and Forfeitures 5,505               -                     -                     -                       -                         40,463                 45,968                 
Licenses and Permits 891,886           -                     -                     -                       -                         -                          891,886               
Fees and Services 1,084,014        249,986         530,221         -                       94,315                786,689               2,745,225            
Intergovernmental 2,142,179        2,284,426      343,116         1,478,945         -                         124,975               6,373,641            
Federal Grants 28,083             1,000             -                     -                       1,777,532           2,311                   1,808,926            
Miscellaneous 652,239           884,170         134,158         (9,193)              153                     13,138                 1,674,665            
    Total Revenue 18,010,140      4,912,603      1,349,184      1,877,011         1,872,000           2,853,142            30,874,080          

Expenditures
Current

General Government 2,958,105        -                     -                     489,670            -                         -                          3,447,775            
Public Safety 11,961,954      -                     -                     449,695            -                         35,612                 12,447,261          
Engineering 1,350,315        -                     -                     -                       -                         -                          1,350,315            
Community Development 141,714           -                     -                     -                       -                         55,477                 197,191               
Culture and Recreation 1,471,042        -                     -                     210,458            -                         1,706,694            3,388,194            
Highway and Streets -                       1,345,708      -                     8,538                -                         285,707               1,639,953            
Airport -                       -                     815,064         -                       2,348,565           -                          3,163,629            

Capital Outlay -                       3,017,336      -                     452,891            -                         -                          3,470,227            
    Total Expenditures 17,883,130      4,363,044      815,064         1,611,252         2,348,565           2,083,490            29,104,545          

Excess of Revenues Over
  (Under) Expenditures 127,010           549,559         534,120         265,759            (476,565)            769,652               1,769,535            

Interfund Transfers, Donotations and Other
Donation of Assets -                       -                     -                     2,512                -                         -                          2,512                   
Transfers In 4,558,113        1,301,667      -                     -                       176,168              12,000                 6,047,948            
Transfers Out (1,254,006)       (257,244)        (500,885)        (15,200)            -                         (20,737)               (2,048,072)          
    Net Transfers and Donations 3,304,107        1,044,423      (500,885)        (12,688)            176,168              (8,737)                 4,002,388            

Net Change in Fund Balance 3,431,117        1,593,982      33,235           253,071            (300,397)            760,915               5,771,923            

Fund Balance October 1, 2012 12,324,861      2,182,657      893,571         3,950,060         306,606              2,301,301            21,959,056          

Transfer of Fund Balance to General Fund 92,229             -                     -                     -                       -                         (34,599)               57,630                 

Fund Balance September 30, 2013 15,848,207$   3,776,639$   926,806$      4,203,131$      6,209$               3,027,617$         27,788,609$       

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Statements to Government Wide Statements

Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balances to Government Wide Net Position at September 30, 2013

Governmental Fund Balances at September 30, 2013 27,788,609$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
    therefore are not reported in the funds. 149,534,058

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
    and therefore are deferred in the funds. 429,768                 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities, such as insurance, and vehicle repairs and maintenance to
    individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
    included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets. 950,038

Long-term liabilities, including capitalized leases, equipment notes and related
    accrued interest, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
    are not reported in the funds. (1,383,495)             

Net Position for Governmental Activities-per reconciliation 177,318,978$       

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
  to the Statement of Activities for the year ended September 30, 2013

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Government Funds 5,771,923$            

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
    activities report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over
    the life of the assets.  This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
    depreciation in the current period (4,014,127)             

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use
    of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
    in government funds. (104,814)                

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
    activities, such as insurance and shop repairs and maintenance, to individual
    funds.  The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported
    with governmental activities. (12,944)                  

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
    resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 65,978                   

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 1,706,016$           

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
19



City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2013

Governmental
Other Activities - 

Business- Internal
Waterworks Wastewater Sanitation Type Total Service Funds

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 427,177$           4,600,991$      95,025$              98,058$               5,221,251$        486,622$               
Investments 8,442,491          3,848,339        316,171              226,401               12,833,402        155,783                 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollect.)

Taxes -                         -                       -                         -                          -                         5,634                     
Fees and Services 931,740             987,297           252,169              4,822                   2,176,028          -                             
Intergovernmental 149,109             914,638           -                         -                          1,063,747          1,823                     
Interest -                         -                       -                         -                          -                         -                             
Accounts 12,671               1,831               23,014                5,156                   42,672               -                             

Inventories 477,681             -                       -                         -                          477,681             -                             
Total Current Assets 10,440,869        10,353,096      686,379              334,437               21,814,781        649,862                 

Restricted Assets 197,090             2,429               -                         -                          199,519             
Due from Other Funds -                         20,794             -                         -                          20,794               -                             
Fixed Assets (Net of Accum. Depreciation) 45,466,870        32,490,639      44,587                1,521,035            79,523,131        328,716                 

Total Assets 56,104,829$     42,866,958$   730,966$           1,855,472$          101,558,225$   978,578$              

Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities:

Pooled Cash -$                       -$                     -$                       310,953$             310,953$           -$                           
Accounts Payable 310,326             1,259,380        197,147              13,368                 1,780,221          76                          
Accrued Expenses 31,171               8,942               -                         -                          40,113               -                             
Due to Other Funds 291,121             -                       -                         362,021               653,142             -                             
Unavailable Revenue -                         -                       -                         -                          -                         4,800                     
Notes Payable - Current -                         -                       -                         -                          -                         -                             
Compensated Absences 77,582               33,247             977                     7,697                   119,503             23,664                   

Total Current Liabilities 710,200             1,301,569        198,124              694,039               2,903,932          28,540                   

Current Liab. Payable from Restricted Assets:
Revenue Bonds Payable - Current 1,930,000          11,814,685      -                         -                          13,744,685        -                             
Customer Deposits Payable 198,890             2,429               -                         -                          201,319             -                             

Total Curr. Liab. From Restricted Assets 2,128,890          11,817,114      -                         -                          13,946,004        

NonCurrent Liabilities:
Notes Payable - Equipment -                         49,445             -                         -                          49,445               -                             
Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Discounts) 24,596,108        -                       -                         -                          24,596,108        -                             

Total Non-current Liabilities 24,596,108        49,445             -                         -                          24,645,553        
Total Liabilities 27,435,198        13,168,128      198,124              694,039               41,495,489        28,540                   

Net Position
Net Investment In Capital Assets 18,940,762        20,626,509      44,587                1,521,035            41,132,893        328,716                 
Restricted 197,090             2,429               -                         -                          199,519             
Unrestricted 9,531,779          9,069,892        488,255              (359,602)             18,730,324        621,322                 

Total Net Position 28,669,631        29,698,830      532,842              1,161,433            60,062,736        950,038                 

Total Liabilities and Net Position 56,104,829$     42,866,958$   730,966$           1,855,472$          101,558,225$   978,578$              

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Governmental
Other Activities - 

Business- Internal
Waterworks Wastewater Sanitation Type Total Service Funds

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 9,347,841$       7,521,962$      2,567,778$   239,001$      19,676,582$    305,492$              
Property Taxes, Including Interest -                        -                       -                    -                    -                      173,697                
Taps, Connection and Other Fees 92,796              160                  -                    -                    92,956             -                            
Miscellaneous 112,290            269,901           -                    3,600            385,791           (494)                      

Total Operating Revenues 9,552,927         7,792,023        2,567,778     242,601        20,155,329      478,695                

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Services 216,393            3,065,245        1,675,622     70,599          5,027,859        1,534                    
Personnel Expenses 1,493,076         545,246           216,831        79,767          2,334,920        244,741                
Depreciation and Amortization 956,722            986,728           7,519            90,344          2,041,313        15,163                  
Utilities 889,730            8,242               -                    5,444            903,416           6,278                    
Landfill Expenses -                        -                       602,884        -                    602,884           -                            
Supplies 434,907            12,938             1,264            4,003            453,112           25,740                  
Insurance  -                        -                       -                    -                    -                      354,592                
Repairs and Maintenance 172,909            23,656             5,489            9,087            211,141           9,492                    
Vehicle Expenses 141,421            49,029             7,110            1,180            198,740           958                       
Small Equipment 323,054            173,068           -                    64,020          560,142           15,807                  
Studies and Projects 8,610                -                       1,382            -                    9,992               -                            
Rental Expense 124,714            -                       -                    -                    124,714           -                            
Miscellaneous Expense 66,653              244,643           5,994            4,371            321,661           385                       
Testing and Monitoring 75,669              -                       -                    -                    75,669             -                            
Telephone 11,841              -                       -                    -                    11,841             -                            
Travel and Meetings 5,596                648                  394               329               6,967               -                            

Total Operating Expenses 4,921,295         5,109,443        2,524,489     329,144        12,884,371      674,690                

Operating Income (Loss) 4,631,632         2,682,580        43,289          (86,543)         7,270,958        (195,995)               

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees -                        132,954           -                    -                    132,954           -                            
Interest Income (29,127)             (24,338)            (1,934)           (1,229)           (56,628)           -                            
Rent and Royalties 66,159              -                       -                    -                    66,159             -                            
Federal Grants -                        845,391           -                    -                    845,391           -                            
Intergovernmental -                        -                       -                    -                    -                      -                            
Interest Expense (915,801)           (418,778)          -                    -                    (1,334,579)      -                            

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Exp.) (878,769)           535,229           (1,934)           (1,229)           (346,703)         -                            

Income (Loss) Before Interfund 
     Transfers and Contributions 3,752,863         3,217,809        41,355          (87,772)         6,924,255        (195,995)               

Interfund Transfers, Contributions and Changes:
Contribution of Assets -                        -                       -                    
Operating Transfers In 267,208            -                       -                    38,700          305,908           234,894                
Operating Transfers Out (859,846)           (3,457,344)       (161,976)       (11,669)         (4,490,835)      (51,843)                 

Net Transfers and Contributions (592,638)           (3,457,344)       (161,976)       27,031          (4,184,927)      183,051                

Net Income 3,160,225         (239,535)          (120,621)       (60,741)         2,739,328        (12,944)                 

Total Net Position, October 1, 2012 25,509,406       29,938,365      653,463        1,279,804     57,381,038      962,982                

Transfer of Fund Balance to General Fund -                        -                       -                    (57,630)         (57,630)           -                            

Total Net Position, September 30, 2013 28,669,631$     29,698,830$   532,842$     1,161,433$  60,062,736$    950,038$             

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Governmental
Other Activities - 

Business- Internal
Waterworks Wastewater Sanitation Type Total Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers 9,910,345$     10,455,238$   2,566,329$       259,487$      23,191,399$    400,344$               
Property Taxes, Including Interest -                      -                      -                        -                    -                      173,697                 
Payments to Suppliers (2,435,411)      (5,059,179)      (2,299,729)        (160,419)       (9,954,738)      (416,487)               
Payments to Employees (1,488,200)      (547,079)         (219,063)           (78,545)         (2,332,887)      (240,423)               
Other Receipts (Payments) 112,290          269,901          -                        3,600            385,791           (494)                      

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 6,099,024       5,118,881       47,537              24,123          11,289,565      (83,363)                 

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Operating Subsidies and Transfers to 
    Other Funds (592,638)         (3,457,344)      (161,974)           (30,599)         (4,242,555)      183,051                 
Other Revenue Sources - Non-Operating 66,159            978,345          -                        -                    1,044,504        -                            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-Capital Financing
    Activities (526,479)         (2,478,999)      (161,974)           (30,599)         (3,198,051)      183,051                 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from Capital Debt 3,398,386       12,534,685     -                        -                    15,933,071      
Purchase of Capital Assets (631,825)         (2,605,227)      -                        (47,487)         (3,284,539)      (12,046)                 
Disposals, Transfers of Capital Assets 88,868            47,682            -                        2,000            138,550           -                            
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (5,702,073)      (6,034,573)      -                        -                    (11,736,646)    -                            
Increase in Amounts Due to Other Funds -                      -                      -                        (311,635)       (311,635)         -                            
Interest Paid on Capital Debt (972,272)         (477,209)         -                        -                    (1,449,481)      -                            
Increase in Restricted Assets 649,720          932,343          -                        -                    1,582,063        -                            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
    Financing Activities (3,169,196)      4,397,701       -                        (357,122)       871,383           (12,046)                 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
(Purchase) or Sale of Securities (3,370,496)      (3,776,496)      114,083            29,768          (7,003,141)      (2,116)                   
Interest, Dividends and Changes in Market Value (24,227)           (24,269)           (1,520)               (931)              (50,947)           149                        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (3,394,723)      (3,800,765)      112,563            28,837          (7,054,088)      (1,967)                   

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (991,374)         3,236,818       (1,874)               (334,761)       1,908,809        85,675                   
Balances - Beginning of the Year 1,418,551       1,364,173       96,899              121,866        3,001,489        400,947                 

Balances - End of the Year 427,177$       4,600,991$    95,025$           (212,895)$     4,910,298$     486,622$              

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
    Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating Income 4,631,632$     2,682,580$     43,289$            (86,543)$       7,270,958$      (195,995)$             
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to net
  Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 956,722          986,728          7,518                90,344          2,041,312        15,163                   
Change in Assets and Liabilities:

Receivables, Net 115,900          2,611,880       (24,278)             (6,667)           2,696,835        (569)                      
Prepaid Expenses -                      -                      -                        -                    -                      -                            
Inventories (74,090)           -                      -                        -                    (74,090)           -                            
Due From Other Funds 334,217          321,405          22,830              28,713          707,165           94,464                   
Deferred Revenue -                      -                      -                        -                    -                      957                        
Accounts Payable 110,177          (1,481,708)      410                   (1,386)           (1,372,507)      (1,701)                   
Customer Deposits 19,590            (171)                -                        (1,560)           17,859             -                            
Compensated Absences 4,876              (1,833)             (2,232)               1,222            2,033               4,318                     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 6,099,024$    5,118,881$    47,537$           24,123$        11,289,565$   (83,363)$              

Business-Type Activities

See accompanying notes and accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Fund

September 30, 2013

Agency
Fund

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents -$                     
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollect.)

Intergovernmental 26,159             
Total Assets 26,159$           

Liabilities
Pooled Cash 25,037             
Accounts Payable 1,122               

Total Liabilities 26,159             

Net Position
Held in Trust for Specific Purposes -                       

Total Net Position -$                     

See accountants' report.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES 
 
The City of Twin Falls, Idaho is a municipal corporation governed by an elected seven-member council. 

 
The financial statements of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles, (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles.  The City also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements 
and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its governmental and business-type activities at the 
government wide financial reporting level and to its enterprise funds at the fund reporting level, provided they do 
not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are 
described below. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 
 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City and its 
component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.  Blended component 
units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and so data from these 
units are combined with data of the primary government.  Each discretely presented component unit, on the other 
hand, is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate 
from the government.  Each blended component unit and each discretely presented component unit has a 
September 30 year end.  A brief description of the discretely presented components units follows: 
 
Blended Component Unit-Twin Falls Public Library  
 
Blended component units are legally separate from the City but are so intertwined with the City that they are, in 
substance, the same as the City.  The component unit is reported as part of the City and blended into the 
appropriate fund. 
 
The Library is governed by a separate board appointed by the City Council; however, final responsibility relative 
to budget, taxing and debt remains with the City.  The Library is reported as a special revenue fund. 
 
Discretely Presented Component Units-Urban Renewal Agency 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency is a directly presented component unit of the City 
 
A discretely presented component unit is legally separate from the City but is financially accountable to the City, 
or its relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading 
or incomplete.  Component units are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate 
from the primary government. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

The Urban Renewal Agency is responsible for rehabilitation, conservation and redevelopment of deteriorated 
properties in areas within the City’s jurisdiction.  The seven-member board is appointed by the City Council.  The 
City and the Agency have an agreement that the City will make available certain personnel for administrative, 
legal, engineering, budgeting and accounting services and assistance to the Agency to the extent that the City has 
appropriated necessary funds to provide such assistance. The Agency has agreed to reimburse the City annually 
for these costs.  The City has no responsibility for debt issuance of the Agency.  The Agency is presented as a 
governmental fund type. 
 
Complete financial statements for the Urban Renewal Agency may be obtained at the entity’s administrative 
offices. 
 
BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The City’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net position 
and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial 
information. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. 
These statements report financial information for the City as a whole. The primary government and the 
component units are presented separately within these financial statements with the focus on the primary 
government. Individual funds are not displayed but the statements distinguish governmental activities, generally 
supported by taxes and grants and the City’s general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in 
whole or in part with fees charged to external customers. The fiduciary funds of the primary government are not 
included in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
The statement of net position presents the financial position of the governmental and business-type activities of 
the City and it’s discretely presented component unit at year-end. 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 
function of the City’s governmental activities and for each identifiable activity of the business-type activities of 
the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and therefore clearly 
identifiable to that particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement 
of activities.  
 
The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected 
with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or 
summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional 
activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the 
City’s services; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance annual operating activities including 
restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or 
rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program 
uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining factor for charges for services 
is which function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the determining factor is to which function 
the revenues are restricted. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 
Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of the City. 
The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental 
function and each identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities in separate funds in 
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.  Fund financial statements are designed 
to present financial information of the City at this more detailed level. Fund financial statements are provided for 
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds. 
 
Major individual governmental and enterprise funds are reported in separate columns. 
 
Fund Accounting 
The City uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with 
a self-balancing set of accounts. The City uses three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. 
 
Governmental Funds 
Government funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed. Governmental 
fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are 
assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or must be used. Fund 
liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be liquidated. The City reports the difference between its 
governmental fund assets and its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as fund balance. The following are 
the City’s major governmental funds: 
 
Major Governmental Funds  
The general fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific 
purposes (not including expendable trusts or major capital projects).   
 
The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by proprietary or 
non-expendable trust funds. 
 
The capital projects funds account for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major capital projects not 
being financed by proprietary or non-expendable trust funds. 
 
Proprietary funds  
Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial 
position and cash flows. The proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds.  
 
The waterworks fund is used to account for the costs necessary to operate the City’s water system and the charges 
necessary to offset those costs. 
      
The wastewater fund is used to account for the costs necessary to operate the City’s sewer system and the 
charges necessary to offset those costs. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

The sanitation fund is used to account for the costs necessary to operate the City’s garbage collection and the 
charges necessary to offset those costs. 
 
Fiduciary funds  
Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others.  Trust 
funds account for assets held by the City under the terms of a formal trust agreement. 

 
Other Fund Types 
The City also reports the following fund types: 

 
Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or agencies of the City, 
or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
 
MEASUREMENT FOCUS 
  
Government-wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. All 
assets, all liabilities and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of the City are included on the 
statement of net position. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. With 
this measurement focus, only current assets, current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources generally are 
included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports the 
sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of 
current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the 
government-wide financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund financial statements therefore include 
reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements 
and the governmental fund statements. 
 
Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic 
resources measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all liabilities associated with the 
operation of these funds are included on the statements of net position. The statements of changes in fund net 
position present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in total net position. The statements of 
cash flows provide information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary 
activities. 

 
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the 
financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
At the fund reporting level, the governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary 
funds use the accrual basis of accounting at both reporting levels. Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis at the fund 
reporting level. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of 
revenue, the recording of deferred inflows of resources, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

Revenues-Exchange Transactions 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is 
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.  On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded 
when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. 
Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected 
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the City, the phrase “available for 
exchange transactions” means expected to be received within 60 days of year-end. 
 
Revenues-Non-exchange Transactions 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include 
sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations.  Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for 
which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify 
the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, 
in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, 
in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue 
from non-exchange transactions also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can be recognized 
in the governmental funds. 
 
Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual:  
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest, federal and state grants and special assessments.  Sales taxes 
collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the government are also recognized as revenue.  Other 
receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received by the government and are recognized 
as revenue at that time. 
 
Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria 
are met.  Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been 
incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. 
 
Expenses/Expenditures 
On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. On the modified accrual 
basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred 
and due, if measurable. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 
 
ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND EQUITY 
 
Deposits and Investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include amounts of cash on hand, demand deposits and highly liquid short-term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date acquired by the government. 
 
State statutes authorize the City and Agency to invest any available funds in obligations issued or guaranteed by 
the U.S. Treasury, the State of Idaho, local Idaho municipalities and taxing districts, the Farm Credit System, or 
Idaho public corporations, as well as time deposit accounts and repurchase agreements. 
 
The City’s Investment Policy requires that investments within the portfolio be diversified in order to avoid risks in 
specific instruments, individual financial institutions or maturities. 
 
Investments are stated at fair market value, as determined by quoted market prices, except for certificates of 
deposits, which are non-participating contracts, and are therefore carried at amortized cost.   Idaho Code provided 
authorization for the investment of funds as well as to what constitutes an allowable investment.  The City policy 
allows for investment of idle funds consistent with the Idaho State Code 67-1210 and 67-1210A. 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the State of Idaho Local Government Investment Pool (LPIG).  The LPIG is 
regulated by State of Idaho Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of Idaho.  The fair value of the 
City’s investments in the pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based on the 
City’s pro-rata share of the fair market value provided by the fund for the entire portfolio.  The LGIP is not rated 
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
 
Receivables and Payables 
 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or 
services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified as “due from other funds” or “due to other 
funds” on the fund balance sheets.  They are eliminated on the government-wide financial statements.  Short–term 
inter-fund loans are classified as “interfund receivables /payables”. 
 
All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles for the City and the 
Agency. 
 
Inventories and Prepaid Items 
 
Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.  The costs of inventory items are 
recognized as expenditures in governmental financial statements and as expenses in government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements when used (consumption method). 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items. 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

Restricted Assets 
 
Passenger fees collected at the City’s airport are committed for future airport expansion.   
 
Urban Renewal Agency tax increment property tax revenues are restricted first to the ongoing payment of revenue 
bonds outstanding.  When received the revenues are deposited in a separate account controlled by a bank trustee.  
All use of the funds must be requisitioned for approval by the trustee before payment is made.  The amount shown 
as restricted cash for the Urban Renewal Agency in these financial statements is based on the largest principal and 
interest payment due. The payment is the required payment on August 1, 2013. 
 
Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization 
 
The City’s property, plant equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated at 
historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements.  The City maintains 
infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets.  Proprietary and component unit capital assets 
are also reported in their respective fund and combining component unit’s financial statements.  Donated assets 
are stated at fair value on the date donated.  The City generally capitalizes assets with a cost of $5,000 or more as 
purchase and construction outlays occur.  The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset 
value or materially extend useful lives are not capitalized.  Capital assets, including those of component units, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method.  When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations. 
 
Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows: 
 
   Land      Not depreciated    
   Buildings and Structures    20-50 
   Infrastructure           40 
   Improvements           30 
   Machinery and equipment      3-20 
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are constructed.  
Interest incurred during the construction phase of proprietary fund fixed assets is reflected in the capitalized value 
of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated in the proprietary funds using the straight-line method over the 
following estimated useful lives: 
 
       Land            Not depreciated 
                   Buildings and improvements   50 years 
                   Machinery and equipment                                      5-20 years 
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1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued 
 

The Urban Renewal Agency has acquired certain properties and made improvements such as streets, parking lots 
and parks in its effort to rehabilitate many areas of the City of Twin Falls.  Many of these parcels acquired and 
constructed have been contributed to the City of Twin Falls but certain real estate acquisitions are held by the 
Agency for future rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment, and sale in accordance with its purpose. 
 
No depreciation has been computed or recorded in these statements for any existing buildings on these properties 
for the Agency. 
 
Fund Overdrafts 
 
The City uses a pooled cash system of cash management.  All city obligations are paid through the general fund.  
Cash is then allocated to the other funds based on amounts received and spent.  Some funds have investments that 
cover the fund overdrafts.  Also, some funds are involved in federal grants that the City must fund and then 
request reimbursement from the federal government. 
 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an 
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of 
accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported 
only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property 
taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available. 

 
Compensated Absences 
 
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, comp hours in lieu of 
overtime hours, and sick pay benefits. Vacation pay and comp hours are accrued when incurred in proprietary 
funds and reported as a fund liability. Vacation pay and comp hours for governmental funds are reported as 
expenditures of the related fund when paid.  Accrued vacation pay and comp hours of governmental funds are 
further recorded as liabilities in the Government Wide Financial Statements. 
 
No liability is reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave.  However, once employees reach a maximum sick 
leave accrual amount, any excess hours are accumulated in a “Retirement Account” and at retirement they may be 
converted to their dollar equivalent and used exclusively for the purchase of health insurance.  Retirement hour 
accruals and expenditures are treated the same as unused vacation and comp hours. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued  
 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 
 
All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial 
statements.  In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely 
manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the these funds. However, 
compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund financial 
statements only to the extent that they are “due for payment” during the current year. Capital leases are 
recognized as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements when due. 
 
Debt Premiums, Discounts and Issuance Costs 
 
On the government-wide statement of net position and the proprietary fund type statement of net position, debt 
premiums and discounts are netted against debt payable and debt issuance costs are recognized as an outflow of 
resources in the period incurred. On the government-wide and proprietary fund type statement of activities, 
unamortized debt premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-
line method. 
 
At the government fund reporting level, debt premiums and discounts are reported as other financing sources and 
uses, separately from the face amount of the debt issued. Debt issuance costs are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 
 
Fund Equity 
 
Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance.” Fund equity for all 
other reporting is classified as “net position.” 
 
Governmental Fund Balances 
 
Generally, governmental fund balances represent the difference between the current assets and deferred outflows 
of resources, and current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  Governmental funds report fund balance 
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor 
constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those resources can be spent. Fund balances are 
classified as follows: 
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance - Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable 
form, or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  This classification includes 
inventories, prepaid amounts, assets held for sale, and long-term receivables. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance – Constraints placed on the use of these resources are either externally imposed 
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or other governments; or are 
imposed by law (through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Committed Fund Balance - Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes because of a formal 
action (resolution or ordinance) by the City’s highest level of decision-making authority, the City 
Council. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued  
 

Assigned Fund Balance – Amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed 
but that are intended to be used for specific purposes.  This intent can be expressed by the City Council or 
through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the City manager through the budgetary process.   
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that are available for any purpose.  
Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund. 

 
Net Position 
 
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of cost of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of those assets. This net investment in capital assets amount also is adjusted by any 
bond issuance deferral amounts. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its 
use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. All other net position is reported as unrestricted. 
The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position is available. 
 
Operating Revenues and Expenses 
Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary 
funds. For the City, these revenues are charges for services for water, wastewater and sanitation.  Operating 
expenses are necessary costs incurred to provide the good or service that are the primary activity of each fund. 
Items that do not result from the provision of goods or services to customers or directly relate to the principal and 
usual activity of the fund are recorded as nonoperating revenues and expenses. These items include investment 
earnings and gains or losses on the disposition of capital assets. 
 
Interfund Activity 
 
Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in 
the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are 
reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental 
funds and after the non-operating revenues/expenses section in proprietary funds.  Repayments from the funds 
responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on 
the financial statements (i.e., they are netted). 
 
Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statement of activities are 
reported as general revenues. Transfers between funds reported in the governmental activities column are 
eliminated. Transfers between funds reported in the business-type activities column are eliminated. 
 
Estimates 
 
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those estimates and assumptions 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and reported 
revenues and expenses. It is at least reasonably possible that the significant estimates used will change within the 
next year. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES-Continued  
 
Comparative Data 
 
Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for individual funds in the required 
supplementary information and in the supplementary information in order to provide an understanding of the 
changes in the financial position and operations of these funds.  
 
2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY  
 
Budgetary Information  
 
On or before June 1st of each year, all agencies of the City submit requests for appropriation to the City’s manager 
so that a budget may be prepared.  The Budget is prepared by fund, function and activity, and includes 
information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.  The 
budget includes amounts for capital expenditures but does not include allowances for depreciation. 
 
Before August 31, the proposed budget is presented to the City’s Council for review.  The City Council holds 
public hearings and may add to, subtract from or change appropriations, but may not change the form of the 
budget.  Any changes in the budget must be within the revenues and reserves estimated as available by the City’s 
manager or the revenue estimates must be changed by an affirmative vote of a majority of the City’s Council.  
The City’s department heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. 
 
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the activity level.  During the year, some 
supplementary appropriations were necessary. 
 
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 
 
For the fund year ended September 30, 2013, expenditures exceeded appropriation in the Airport Construction 
Fund by $48,870, the Sanitation Fund by $120,621, the Dierkes Lake Fund by $31,911, the Pool Fund by $2,323, 
the Shop Revolving Fund by $9,027, the Golf Fund by $34,919 and the Fireworks Fund by $365.  

 
2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents –  
A reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2013 is as follows:   

    

Reconciled Bank Accounts 136,126$      
State Investment Pool 4,862,145     
Certificates of Deposit 2,606,442     
Money Market Mutual Funds 654,633        
Library Operating Fund 12,008          
Petty Cash 2,002           
   Total 8,273,356     
Reported as Restricted (1,228,759)    
   Total Net Cash 7,044,597$   
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1.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS-Continued 
 

At September 30, 2013, the Urban Renewal Agency’s reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents is as follows: 
  
 

                 

Cash in Bank 959,541$       
Money-Market Bond Funds 9,836,378      
  Total 10,795,919    
Reported as Restricted (3,573,360)     
  Total Net Cash 7,222,559$    

 
 
The City’s reconciled bank balance is covered by $136,128 federal depository insurance with the remainder 
covered by collateral held by the City’s agent in the City’s name.  The reconciled bank balance for Urban 
Renewal Agency a discretely presented component unit, is covered by FDIC insurance of $ 250,000. 
 
Investments – The City held the following investments at September 30, 2013. 
 

       

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 2,293,405$         
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLM) 1,035,095           
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 3,556,628           
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 2,176,026           
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 1,382,690           
Resolution Funding Corporation (RFC) 791,158              
Other Mortgage Backed Securities 987,643              
Corporate Obligations 24,760,128         
   Total 36,982,773$        

 
All investments are guaranteed by the U.S. Government except for the corporate obligations.  All investments 
were held in trust for the City in the Agents name.  The City or Agency has no investments in foreign currency 
and no exposure to foreign currency risk. 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely impact the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. Information about the exposure of the City’s debt type investments to this risk, 
using the segmented time distribution model is as follows: 
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3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS-Continued 
 
 

Less Than 1-5 6-10 Over 10
Investment Fair Value 1 Year Years Years Years
FNMA 2,293,405$         15,124$            845,256$            34,980$         1,398,045$         
FHLM 1,035,095            -                    501,665              533,430         -                       
FHLB 3,556,628            -                    976,440              239,510         2,340,678            
GNMA 2,176,026            -                    -                       23,445            2,152,581            
FFCB 1,382,690            -                    193,942              1,188,748      -                       
RFC 791,158               -                    -                       791,158         -                       
Other Mtg. Sec 987,643               -                    -                       987,643         -                       
Corporate 24,760,128         4,833,473         15,534,210         4,392,445      -                       
   Total 36,982,773$       4,848,597$      18,051,513$      8,191,359$    5,891,304$         

Investment Maturities (in Years)

  
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  The City’s investment policy requires a rating of A- or its equivalent by two or more public 
rating agencies at the time of purchase.  Short term credit ratings for commercial paper must be top tier 
AI/PI/FI by two of the three credit rating agencies at the time of purchase. The ratings of investments subject 
to credit risk are as follows: 
 

  

Investments subject to credit risk: Fair Value Rating

FNMA 2,293,405$      AAA-
FHLM 1,035,095        AA+
FHLB 3,556,628        AA+
GNMA 2,176,026        AA+
FFCB 1,382,690        AA+
Resolution FDG Corp 791,158            Not Rated
Piper Jaffray & Co. 987,643            Not Rated
Corporate Bonds 2,261,970        A+
Corporate Bonds 4,585,390        A
Corporate Bonds 4,983,996        A-
Corporate Bonds 3,979,370        AA-
Corporate Bonds 2,444,235        BBB+
Corporate Bonds 5,677,102        BBB
Corporate Bonds 328,065            BB-
Corporate Bonds 500,000            BBB-
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4.  DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS-Continued 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The City’s investment policy has limits on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer. The City did not 
have investments in any one issuer (other than State investment pools) that represented 5% or more of total City 
investments. 

                Investment       Reported 
Issuer                  Type         Amount           Percentage 
   
Federal National Mortgage Assn (FNMA)        U.S. Agency Bond      $ 2,293,440          6.21% 
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)         U.S. Agency Bond         3.556,628          9.62% 
Government National Mortgage Assn. (GNMA) U.S. Agency Bond         2,176,026              5.89% 

      Corporate Bonds        Corporate Obligations     24,760,128                   66.95% 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
For deposits and investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, 
the City will not be able to recover the value of its deposits, investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party.  The City only conducts investment purchases on a delivery versus payment basis 
with all securities held by a safe keeper, in the City’s name, to eliminate custodial credit risk. 
 
5. RESTRICTED ASSETS 
 
Restriction on cash and cash equivalents were due to the following: 
 

2013
General Fund
  Customer or Developer Deposits 189,695$            
  Custody/Evidence Account 54,331                
  Other 5,913                  
Trail Fund 541                     
Park Development Fund 203,416              
Pool Fund-Bubble 85,000                
Capital Projects Funds
  Public Art Fund 37,320                
  Passenger Facility Charges Held for Lease Payments 453,024              
Enterprise Funds
Refundable Customer Utility Deposits 199,519              

     Total Restricted Assets 1,228,759$        

 
 
 
Restriction on cash and cash equivalents for the Urban Renewal Agency were due to the following: 

Total
Cash reserved to pay interest and principal on the revenue bonds 3,573,360$   
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5. TAXES RECEIVABLE, UNAVAILABLE REVENUE, AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
The City of Twin Falls and its component unit, the Urban Renewal Agency, are located in Twin Falls County. 
 
Taxes on property are due on the 20th of December; however, they may be paid in two installments with the 
second installment due June 20.  Penalties and interest are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an installment within 
ten days of the installment due date. 
 
Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1, of the year for which taxes are levied.  After 
a three-year waiting period, a tax deed is issued conveying the property to the County with a lien for back taxes 
and accumulated charges.  Redemption may be made by owner and such persons as described by statute by 
paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before sale. 
 
Taxes on personal property are collected currently.  Personal property declarations are mailed out annually and 
the tax is computed using percentages of taxable values established by the Department of Taxation. 
 
Property taxes uncollected by November 30, 2013, are considered to be deferred revenue. 
 
Taxes receivable and deferred revenue as of September 30, 2013, consist of the following for the City: 
 
 

Fund Taxes Receivable Unavailable Revenue
General 404,285$            344,451$                
Street 52,337               44,592                   
Street Lighting 3,704                 3,156                     
Airport 4,359                 566,139                 
Library 19,429               16,553                   
Capital Improvement 14,674               12,502                   
Insurance 5,634                 4,800                     
   Total 504,422$            992,193$                

 
 
 
Unavailable revenue, per the fund balance sheets fund types and account groups, consists of the following: 
     Property Taxes               $    429,768 
     Prepaid Rent & Parking        562,425 
          Total   $    992,193 
 
 
Urban Renewal Agency taxes receivable and unavailable revenue at September 30, 2013 consist of 2012 property 
tax revenue to be collected after November 30, 2013. 
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5. TAXES RECEIVABLE, UNAVAILABLE REVENUE, AND DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
- Continued 

 
 

 
Amounts due from other governments at September 30, 2013, are presented as follows for the City: 

 
Fund Federal State County Local Total

General 400$              541,626$       150,921$     78,110$      771,057$         
Street -                    361,853        19,880        -                 381,733          
Street Light -                    -                   1,297          -                 1,297              
Library -                    -                   15,546        -                 15,546            
Airport 355,039         -                   3,628          -                 358,667          
Capital Improvement -                    406,198        38,713        260,390     705,301          
Liability Insurance -                    -                   1,823          -                 1,823              
Pool -                    32,727          -                  -                 32,727            
Historic Preservation 2,311             -                   -                  -                 2,311              
Water Works -                    -                   -                  149,109     149,109          
Waste Water 228,779         521,004        -                  164,855     914,638          

586,529$       1,863,408$    231,808$     652,464$    3,334,209$      

 
Urban Renewal Agency receivable from other governments consists of property taxes collected by the County 
prior to December 1, 2013. 
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6.  FIXED ASSETS 
 

Changes in the fixed asset groups for the City for the year ended September 30, 2013, are as follows:    
       

Balance Balance
October 1, Additions/ Disposals/ September 30,

2012 Transfers In Transfers Out 2013

Government-wide Assets
Land 6,694,877$            -$                        -$                      6,694,877$            
Buildings and Structures 17,290,672            186,420              (38,759)            17,438,333            
Infrastructure 255,772,292          924,988              -                        256,697,280          
Improvements 17,086,256            302,773              -                        17,389,029            
Machinery and Equipment 15,289,231            1,523,827           (663,839)          16,149,219            
Construction in Progress 6,363,656              3,637,472           (1,850,848)       8,150,280              
   Total 318,496,984$        6,575,480$         (2,553,446)$     322,519,018$        

Accum. Deprec. For Govt. Wide
Buildings and Structures 5,479,521$            398,824$            (7,752)$            5,870,593$            
Infrastructure 143,014,582          6,778,974           -                        149,793,556          
Improvements 7,792,502              598,842              -                        8,391,344              
Machinery and Equipment 8,330,362              909,305              (638,917)          8,600,750              
   Total Accum. Deprec. 155,941,429$       8,685,945$        (646,669)$        172,656,243$       

Business Type Activity Assets:

Land 11,252,387$          -$                        -$                      11,252,387$          
Buildings and Structures 18,753,067            -                          -                        18,753,067            
Infrastructure 879,700                 23,037,914         -                        23,917,614            
Improvements 39,203,660            54,183                (13,810)            39,244,033            
Machinery and Equipment 6,956,283              711,193              (84,482)            7,582,994              
Construction in Progress 29,980,388            2,270,727           (22,928,026)     9,323,089              
   Total 98,971,831$         26,074,017$      (23,026,318)$   110,073,184$       

Accum. Deprec. For Business Type Activities
Buildings and Structures 11,875,439$          428,336$            -$                      12,303,775$          
Infrastructure 161,597                 483,856              -                        645,453                 
Improvements 12,455,327            834,908              (13,810)            13,276,425            
Machinery and Equipment 4,064,290              344,593              (84,483)            4,324,400              
   Total Accum. Deprec. 28,556,653$         2,091,693$        (98,293)$          30,550,053$         
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7. FIXED ASSETS - Continued 
 
Changes in the fixed asset group for the Urban Renewal Agency for the year ended September 30, 2013, is as 
follows:            

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,

2012 Additions Disposals 2013

Government-wide Assets
  Construction in Progress 11,553,589$          15,598,768$        -$                  27,152,357$      
  Land and Buildings 2,688,889              -                       -                    2,688,889          
     Total 14,242,478$          15,598,768$       -$                  29,841,246$      

Business Type Activities:
  Land 1,350,000$            -$                         -$                      1,350,000$        
  Buildings & Improvments 3,500,000              -                           -                        3,500,000          
  Equipment 690,264                 64,431                 -                        754,695             
     Total 5,540,264$            64,431$              -$                      5,604,695$       

Accumulated Depreciation
for Business-Type Activities
  Building & Improvements 186,667$               79,040$               -$                      265,707$           
  Equipment 220,000                 82,500                 -                        302,500             
    Total 406,667$              161,540$            -$                      568,207$          

 
 

 
 
Investments in real estate have not been allocated between land and buildings. Depreciation expense was 
charged to the governmental functions for the City as follows:  

 

  

General Government 6,702,486$         
Fire 123,237             
Police 193,053             
Library 109,366             
Culture and Recreation 224,687             
Highway and Street 403,382             
Pool 37,397                
Airport 877,174             

8,670,782          
Depreciation on Capital Assets held by the City's Internal 
Service Fund. 15,163                 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 8,685,945$         
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

Long-term liabilities consist of bonds, notes, and other indebtedness including liabilities associated with 
compensated absences. 

 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. 
 
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or 
discount.  

 
In the fund financial statements, government fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as well as 
bond issuance cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs whether 
or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
A summary of Long-term liabilities for the City for the year ended is as follows.  Additional detailed 
information is available on the following pages. 

      
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One year

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:
Compensated absences 1,298,029$        109,130$      -$                     1,407,159$        -$                   

Total 1,298,029$        109,130$      -$                     1,407,159$        -$                   

Business-type Activities:
Idaho Bond Bank Authority 
Water Bonds 25,337,881$       -$                (1,930,159)$       23,407,722$       1,930,159$       
Idaho Bond Bank Authority, 
Parity Lien Revenue 
Refunding Bond, Series 2012C -                       3,398,386     (280,000)           3,118,386          275,000           
Idaho Bond Bank Authority, 
Parity Lien Sewer Revenue 
Refunding Bond, Series 2012A -                       4,467,924     (340,000)           4,127,924          365,000           
Idaho Bond Bank Authority, 
Parity Lien Sewer Revenue 
Bond, Series 2012B -                       8,066,761     (380,000)           7,686,761          420,000           
State Revolving Fund Loan 8,906,309          -                 (8,906,309)         -                       -                     
Compensated Absences 117,472             2,031           -                      119,503             -                     

Total 34,361,662        15,935,102   (11,836,468)       38,460,296        2,990,159         

Total Long-Term Liabilities 35,659,691$       16,044,232$ (11,836,468)$     39,867,455$       2,990,159$       
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - Continued 
 
Business-Type Activities - Revenue Obligations 
 
In 2004, the City issued refunding certificates of participation to refund and refinance, the Water Revenue 
Certificates of Participation, Series 1993 that were originally used to upgrade the City’s water system.   
 
Following are the outstanding certificates of participation and other obligations that the City has pledged 
income derived from the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. 

 
Idaho Bond Bank Authority Loan Payable, Payable in 
semi-annual installments over 15 years with interest  
rates that varies from 2 to 5.1%. $ 7,955,000 
 

Less: Unamortized discount    (117,611) 
Total     $ 7,837,389 

 
Idaho Bond Bank Authority Loan Payable, Payable in 
semi-annual installments over 15 years with interest   
rates that varies from 3 to 5.06%.  15,640,000 
 

Less: Unamortized discount        (69,667) 
Total    15,570,333 
 

Idaho Bond Bank Authority, Parity Lien Water Revenue 
Refunding Bond, Series 2012C, Payable in semi-annual  
installments over 15 years with interest rates that varies  
from 2 to 5.%.                                                                                               2,790,000 
 

Plus: Premium    328,386 
Total      3,118,386 
 

Idaho Bond Bank Authority, Parity Lien Water Revenue  
Refunding Bond, Series 2012C, Payable in semi-annual  
installments over 15 years with interest rates that varies  
from 2 to 5.%.                                                                                              3,690,000 
 

Plus: Premium    437,924 
Total      4,127,924 
 

Idaho Bond Bank Authority, Parity Lien Sewer Revenue  
Bond Series 2012B, Payable in semi-annual installments 
over 15 years with interest rates that varies from 2 to 5%.                          7,190,000 
 

Plus: Premium    496,761 
Total      7,686,761 
 
Total  $ 38,340,793 
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8.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 

 
Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows: 
 

 
Year Ending
September Total Interest Principal

2014 3,134,462$       1,356,353$     1,778,109$       
2015 3,122,377         1,310,601      1,811,776        
2016 5,346,829         1,325,053      4,021,776        
2017 5,338,919         1,212,143      4,126,776        
2018 4,223,096         1,101,530      3,121,566        

2019-2023 19,920,163       3,562,967      16,357,196      
2018-2022 7,613,550         489,956         7,123,594        

Total 48,699,396$     10,358,603$   38,340,793$     

 
 
Urban Renewal Agency 
 
Continuing Disclosure 
 
The 2005 bonds are subject to the requirements of Continuing Disclosure under S.E.C Rule 15c2-12(b) (5). The 
following information is provided in compliance with this requirement. Additionally, these financial statements 
have been submitted to Wells Fargo Bank, Trustee and Dissemination Agent for the bonds, for placement in a 
nationally recognized repository.  
 
Continuing Disclosure Bond Information 

  
Maturity Interest Rate Original Principal Outstanding Principal

August 1, 2008 4.35% 955,000$                 -$                                  
August 1, 2010 4.60% 705,000 -                                    
August 1, 2014 4.95% 1,640,000 1,260,000                     
August 1, 2017 5.15% 1,455,000 1,455,000                     
August 1, 2022 5.45% 2,980,000 2,980,000                     

Total 7,735,000$              5,695,000$                   

 
 
Amounts on deposit 

Revenue Allocation Fund $ 2,777,160 
Bond Fund 796 
Reserve Fund       699,913 
 Total on deposit $ 3,477,869 
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8.    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 

 
Revenue Allocation Revenues 

Property Taxes – 2013 (2012 budget & reporting period)  $ 2,438,499 
Property Taxes for prior periods  65,436 
     Total reported in Governmental Funds   $  2,503,935 
 

Assessed values of property within Revenue  
Allocation Area Total assessed value for 2012 $ 207,601,916 

 
Tax increment value for 2012 $ 130,839,765 
 
There are no Continuing Disclosure Significant Events to report. 

 
Long term debt of the Urban Renewal Agency outstanding at September 30, 2013, is as follows: 

 
Revenue Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005A, dated August 1, 2005 
and maturing August 1, 2022.  These are revenue allocation (tax-
increment) bonds payable, both principal and interest, solely from the 
income, proceeds, revenues and funds the Agency derives from and in 
connection with the increased property taxes generated from the revenue 
allocation area as described in the bond ordinance and instrument.  The 
proceeds of the bonds provided funds to advance refund prior obligations 
issued, and establish a reserve fund required by terms of the issue.  The 
bonds are term bonds that require annual sinking fund deposits on August 
1 each year.  Bonds maturing August 1, 2016 and later are subject to prior 
redemption on August 1, 2015.  The bonds bear interest at rates ranging 
from 4.35% to 5.45% 
 $  4,875,000 

 
Revenue Allocation Bonds, Series 2013A, dated February 21, 2013 and 
maturing April 1, 2032.  These are revenue allocation (tax-increment) 
bonds payable, both principal and interest, solely from the income, 
proceeds, revenues and funds the Agency derives from and in connection 
with the increased property taxes generated from the revenue allocation 
area as described in the bond ordinance and instrument. The proceeds of 
the bonds provided funds to acquire land and to prepare the land for 
industrial development and to establish a reserve fund required by terms of 
the issue.  The bonds are term bonds that require annual sinking fund 
deposits on April 1 each year.  Bonds maturing August 1, 2016 and later 
are subject to prior redemption on August 1, 2015.  The bonds bear interest 
at 5.002% 
                                                                                                                                         32,509,000                          
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8.    LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 

 
Revenue Allocation Bonds, Series 2013B, dated February 21, 2013 and 
maturing April 1, 2032.  These are revenue allocation (tax-increment) 
bonds payable, both principal and interest, solely from the income, 
proceeds, revenues and funds the Agency derives from and in connection 
with the increased property taxes generated from the revenue allocation 
area as described in the bond ordinance and instrument. The proceeds of 
the bonds provided funds to acquire land and to prepare the land for 
industrial development and to establish a reserve fund required by terms of 
the issue.  The bonds are term bonds that require annual sinking fund 
deposits on April 1 each year.  Bonds maturing August 1, 2016 and later 
are subject to prior redemption on August 1, 2015.  The bonds bear interest 
at 5.002%.           
                                                                                          2,024,000 
Promissory Note due Larry and Karen Tucker, dated June 8, 2009, for the 
purchase of real estate. This note is payable in monthly installments of 
$3,663.68, beginning August 1, 2009, including interest of 6.00% and 
matures August 1, 2019.         215,942   

 
                                                                                                   Total    39,623,942  

                                    Less: Unamortized discount                                           (428,625) 
                                                                                                                                 Total                    $ 39,195,317 
 
 

Expected annual maturities of the obligations, are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
September Total Interest Principal

2014 3,616,362         2,190,479 1,425,883
2015 3,613,928         1,927,087 1,686,841
2016 3,615,564         1,841,636 1,773,928
2017 3,615,911         1,751,767 1,864,144
2018 3,613,820         1,657,323 1,956,497

2019-2023 17,188,291       6,691,642 10,496,649
2024-2028 14,366,252       4,133,252 10,233,000
2029-2032 11,491,922       1,304,922      10,187,000      

Total 61,122,050$     21,498,108$   39,623,942$      
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8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES-Continued 

 
 

Changes in Long-Term Debt of the Agency for the year ended September 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

09/30/12 Additions Repayments 09/30/13

Promissory note payable to Larry McElliot 2,878$                -$                     2,878$               -$                        
Promissory note payable to Larry Tucker 245,965              -                       30,023               215,942              
Revenue Allocation Bond, Series 2005A 5,295,000           -                       420,000             4,875,000           
Revenue Allocation Bond, Series 2013A -                          32,509,000      -                         32,509,000         
Revenue Allocation Bond, Series 2013B -                          2,024,000        -                         2,024,000           

   Total 5,543,843$         34,533,000      452,901$           39,623,942$       

    
 
 

 9.  INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions among funds, including expenditures 
and transfers of resources primarily to provide services.  The Governmental Fund Type and Proprietary Fund 
Types financial statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers. 
 
All City funds record payments to the Internal Service Funds as operating expenses.  The Proprietary Funds 
Types record operating subsidies as other revenue whereas the fund paying the subsidy records it as either an 
expenditure or transfer. 
 
Individual fund interfund receivable/payable balances at September 30, 2013: 
 

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable

Airport Construction -                        295,973                  
Capital Improvement -                        53,854                    
Fireworks -                        666                         
General Fund 1,558,033$        -$                            
Golf -                        362,021                  
Historic -                        3,987                      
Pool -                    337,286                  
Street Light -                    233,920                  
Waterworks 20,794               291,120                  

Total 1,578,827$       1,578,827$             
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.  There are a few 
lawsuits and claims pending against the City.  The City currently is defending its position through its legal 
staff, other law firms or its insurance company if the insurance company acknowledges coverage. 
 
The fund is budgeted through property tax assessments and transfers from the general fund.  The City is 
insured for all risk through ICRMP (Idaho County Risk Management Program).  The annual deductible is 
$20,000. 

 
The City participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs, the principal of which are the 
Community Development Block Grants, FAA Airport Improvement Program and Local Public Works 
Programs which have been subjected to financial and compliance audit under Circular A-133.  All audits are 
subject to review by the granting agencies but the City does not expect any questioned costs as a result of 
review. 

 
11.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF IDAHO 
 

The Public Employee Retirement System of Idaho (PERSI) – The PERSI Base Plan, a cost sharing multiple-
employer public retirement system, was created by the Idaho State Legislature.  It is a defined benefit plan 
requiring that both the member and the employer contribute.  The plan provides benefits based on members’ 
years of service, age, and compensation.  In addition, benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors 
of eligible member or beneficiaries.  The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions is established in 
Idaho Code.  Designed as a mandatory system for eligible state and school district employees, the legislation 
provided for political subdivisions to participate by contractual agreement with PERSI. After 5 years of 
credited service, members become fully vested in retirement benefits earned to date.  Members are eligible for 
retirement benefits upon attainment of the ages specified for their employment classification.  For each month 
of credited service, the annual service retirement allowance is 2.0% (2.3% police/firefighter) of average 
monthly salary for the highest consecutive 42 months.   
 
PERSI issues publicly available stand alone financial reports that include audited financial statements and 
required supplementary information. These reports may be obtained from PERSI’s website 
www.persi.idaho.gov  

 
The actuarially determined contribution requirements of the City and its employees are established and may 
be amended by the PERSI Board of Trustees.  For the year ended September 30, 2013, the required 
contribution rate as a percentage of covered payrolls for members was 6.79% for general members and 8.36% 
for police/firefighters.  The employer rate as a percentage of covered payroll was 11.32% for general 
members and 11.66% for police/firefighter members.  The City employer contributions required and paid 
were $1,709,167, $1,709,167 and $1,668,948 for the three years ended September 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively. 
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12.  FUND BALANCE AND NET ASSET DEFICITS 
 
Fund deficits as of September 30, 2013, which are significant, are as follows: 
 
Golf Fund- The deficit of $223,727 is due to accumulated costs exceeding revenues over a number of years.  The 
City has entered into a new lease agreement where the lessor will be responsible for golf course costs in the 
future.   
 
Street Light- The deficit of $128,173 is being reduced through excess revenues. 
 
Pool Fund – The deficit of $231,813 will be taken care of through the budget process over a period of years. 
 
13. CHANGE IN GENERAL FUND NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE 
 
During the current fiscal year the following funds were closed out and their fund balances were transferred to the 
General Fund: 
 
LID Bond Guarantee      $(18,376) 
CDBG              61 
Historic Downtown    (16,284) 
Parking       57,630 
 
14. URBAN RENEWAL SUMMARIZED INFORMATION 

Year Ended
September 30, 2013

Assets 45,824,496$                       
     Total Assets 45,824,496$                       

Liabilities & Net Position
Liabilities 41,381,181$                       
   Net Assets:
Net Investment in Capital Assets (5,522,511)                          
  Restricted 3,573,360                           
  Unrestricted 6,392,466                           
     Total Liabilities & Net Position 45,824,496$                      

Revenues 2,974,618$                         
Expenditures 2,504,177                           
Excess (Deficiency) Revenues over
  Expenditures 470,441                              

Net Position - Beginning of Year 3,972,874                           

Net Position - End of Year 4,443,315$                        
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15. COMMITMENTS AND SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  

 
On October 17, 2013 the City and the Urban Renewal Agency entered into a development agreement with Clif 
Bar & Company, a California corporation (Clif Bar). Clif Bar is desirous of constructing a manufacturing plant in 
the City of Twin Falls. Construction costs are estimated to range between $90,000,000 and $160,000,000 and 
employ approximately 450 full time employees when fully operational.  The City’s public wastewater collection 
systems, water systems, and roadways will require upgrades and improvements in order to serve the new plant.   
 
City of Twin Falls 
The City has committed to provide $3,500,000 toward the construction of a new five million gallon per day water 
storage tank. The new water tank will service the Clif Bar plant and provide additional needed capacity to the 
entire City of Twin Falls 
 
The City has evaluated subsequent events through February 10, 2014, the date which the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 
 
Urban Renewal Agency 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency has committed to providing funds for the project as well.  The Agency will provide 
$4,479,083 for land acquisition; $4,057,873 for the above increase water storage tank;$5,823,146 to enhance the 
capacity for wastewater treatment including pretreatment at the plant; $1,650,000 for improvements to local 
streets; $3,800,000 for a twenty million megawatt substation; and $268,960 to the City for Impact and other fees.  
 
94% of the funding that is provided by the Agency will be financed by the issuance of bonds.  The improvements 
to the property by Clif Bar will substantially increase the taxes generated by the property and most of those new 
property taxes will be used for repayment of the bonds. 
 
In addition to the City commitment and the Agency’s commitments, the State of Idaho, Department of 
Commerce, has agreed to a contribution of $1,800,000 toward construction of the project. 
 
The Agency has evaluated subsequent events through February 10, 2014, the date which the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 

 
16.  BOND COVENANT COMPLIANCE 
 
The City is subject to various covenants as a result of the various bonds and certificates of participation issued by 
the City.  During the year ended September 30, 2013, the City is in compliance with these covenants. 

 
      
 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes, Including Penalty and Interest 12,611,988$  12,611,989$  12,686,003$  74,014$         11,742,238$   
Non-property Taxes 552,000         552,000         520,231         (31,769)         600,727          
Fines and Forfeitures 4,500             4,500             5,505             1,005             4,536              
Licenses and Permits 610,250         610,250         891,886         281,636         765,285          
Fees and Services 1,044,700      1,044,700      1,084,014      39,314           1,099,629       
Intergovernmental 1,952,028      1,952,028      2,142,179      190,151         1,970,627       
Federal Grants 43,200           43,200           28,083           (15,117)         91,295            
Miscellaneous 739,846         739,846         652,239         (87,607)         696,918          

Total Revenues 17,558,512    17,558,513    18,010,140    451,627         16,971,255     

Expenditures:
Current

General Government 3,052,525      3,052,525      2,958,105      94,420           2,757,684       
Public Safety 12,813,430    12,813,430    11,961,954    851,476         11,410,936     
Engineering 1,633,374      1,633,374      1,378,999      254,375         1,266,254       
Economic Development 162,007         162,007         113,030         48,977           118,115          
Culture and Recreation 1,517,788      1,517,788      1,471,042      46,746           1,387,822       
Total Expenditures 19,179,124    19,179,124    17,883,130    1,295,994      16,940,811     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over Expenditures (1,620,612)     (1,620,611)     127,010         1,747,621      30,444            

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 1,658,112      1,658,111      4,558,113      2,900,002      1,609,817       
Operating Transfers Out (37,500)          (1,254,006)     (1,254,006)     -                    (6,485,899)     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,620,612      404,105         3,304,107      2,900,002      (4,876,082)     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Sources Over Expenditures and Other Uses -$                  (1,216,506)$  3,431,117$   4,647,623$    (4,845,638)$  

Fund Balance, October 1st 12,324,861    17,170,499     

Transfer of Fund Balances to General Account 92,229           -                      

Fund Balance, September 30th 15,848,207$ 12,324,861$  

2013

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013
With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Expenditures:
Data Processing 1,226,399$     1,226,399$     1,141,092$     85,307$        1,056,911$     
Council 145,978          145,978          145,423          555               147,270          
Manager 467,858          467,858          498,382          (30,524)         452,913          
Finance 679,392          679,392          651,878          27,514          619,108          
Attorney 186,000          186,000          185,019          981               173,618          
Personnel 346,898          346,898          336,311          10,587          307,864          

Total General Government 3,052,525       3,052,525       2,958,105       94,420          2,757,684       

Police 8,031,129       8,031,129       7,278,243       752,886        7,088,411       
Fire 3,999,790       3,999,790       3,826,759       173,031        3,610,312       
Inspection 405,637          405,637          478,465          (72,828)         371,663          
Animal Control 376,874          376,874          378,487          (1,613)           340,550          

Total Public Safety 12,813,430     12,813,430     11,961,954     851,476        11,410,936     

Engineering 1,246,967       1,246,967       976,872          270,095        922,857          
Planning and Zoning 386,407          386,407          402,127          (15,720)         343,397          

Total Engineering and Planning 1,633,374       1,633,374       1,378,999       254,375        1,266,254       

Economic Development 162,007          162,007          113,030          48,977          118,115          

Parks 1,073,187       1,073,187       982,516          90,671          962,133          
Recreation 444,601          444,601          488,526          (43,925)         425,689          

Total Culture and Recreation 1,517,788       1,517,788       1,471,042       46,746          1,387,822       

Total Expenditures 19,179,124$  19,179,124$  17,883,130$  1,295,994$   16,940,811$  

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
General Fund

Statement of Expenditures - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 1,473,985$     1,473,985$     1,493,021$   19,036$           1,825,203$   
Fees and Services 247,000         247,000         249,986        2,986               245,183        
Intergovernmental 2,191,000      2,191,000      2,284,426     93,426             2,237,455     
Grants -                     -                     1,000            1,000               -                   
Miscellaneous 843,040         843,040         884,170        41,130             1,038,786     

Total Revenues 4,755,025      4,755,025      4,912,603     157,578           5,346,627     

Expenditures:
Current

Highways and Streets 1,489,093      1,505,074      1,345,708     159,366           1,271,394     
Capital Outlay 3,653,850      4,854,375      3,017,336     1,837,039         4,496,363     
Debt Service

Principal Retirement -                     -                     -                   -                       -                   
Interest -                     -                     -                   -                       -                   
Total Expenditures 5,142,943      6,359,449      4,363,044     1,996,405         5,767,757     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures (387,918)        (1,604,424)     549,559        2,153,983         (421,130)       

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In 85,162           1,301,668      1,301,667     1                      82,681          
Operating Transfers Out (257,244)        (257,244)        (257,244)       -                       (249,534)       

Total Other Sources (Uses) (172,082)        1,044,424      1,044,423     1                      (166,853)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses (560,000)$     (560,000)$     1,593,982   2,153,982$       (587,983)$    

Fund Balances, October 1st 2,182,657     2,770,640     

Fund Balances, September 30th 3,776,639$  2,182,657$  

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Street Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 343,116$            343,116$       341,689$       (1,427)$          321,916$       
Fees and Services 451,795              451,795         530,221         78,426           719,411         
Intergovernmental 343,116              343,116         343,116         -                     343,464         
Federal Grants -                          -                     -                     -                     -                     
Farm Income 29,775                29,775           62,729           32,954           33,555           
Miscellaneous 18,209                28,209           71,429           43,220           183,711         

Total Revenues 1,186,011           1,196,011      1,349,184      153,173         1,602,057      

Expenditures:
Current

Airport 861,294              871,294         815,064         56,230           991,876         
Total Expenditures 861,294              871,294         815,064         56,230           991,876         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 324,717              324,717         534,120         209,403         610,181         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                          -                     -                     -                     -                     
Operating Transfers Out (324,717)             (500,885)       (500,885)       -                     (367,692)       

Total Other Sources (Uses) (324,717)             (500,885)       (500,885)       -                     (367,692)       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                        (176,168)$     33,235           209,403$       242,489         

Fund Balances, October 1st 893,571         651,082         

Fund Balances, September 30th 926,806$       893,571$       

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Airport Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 403,701$      403,701$        407,259$       3,558$           570,152$        
Intergovernmental 1,347,972     1,347,972       1,478,945      130,973         1,434,886       
Federal Grants -                    -                      -                     -                     -                      
Miscellaneous or Reserves 54,000          54,000            (9,193)           (63,193)          57,309            

Total Revenues 1,805,673     1,805,673       1,877,011      71,338           2,062,347       

Expenditures:
Current

General Government 617,178        617,178          489,670         127,508         396,106          
Public Safety 530,500        530,500          449,695         80,805           490,979          
Culture and Recreation 379,300        379,300          210,458         168,842         414,751          
Highways and Streets -                    -                      8,538             (8,538)            -                      

Capital Outlay 263,495        263,495          452,891         (189,396)        452,988          
Total Expenditures 1,790,473     1,790,473       1,611,252      179,221         1,754,824       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 15,200          15,200            265,759         250,559         307,523          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Contribution of Assets 2,512             2,512             741                 
Operating Transfers In -                    -                      -                     -                     -                      
Operating Transfers Out (15,200)         (20,482)           (15,200)         5,282             (133,247)         

Total Other Sources (Uses) (15,200)         (20,482)           (12,688)         7,794             (132,506)         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                  (5,282)$           253,071         258,353$       175,017          

Fund Balances, October 1st 3,950,060      3,775,043       

Fund Balances, September 30th 4,203,131$    3,950,060$     

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Capital Improvement Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Fees and Services 115,000$     115,000$     94,315$         (20,685)$        101,492$       
Intergovernmental -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     
Federal Grants 1,000,000    1,414,818    1,777,532      362,714         319,587         
Miscellaneous 140              7,815           153                (7,662)            158                

Total Revenues 1,115,140    1,537,633    1,872,000      334,367         421,237         

Expenditures:
Current

Airport 1,066,667    1,965,328    2,348,565      (383,237)        279,035         
Total Expenditures 1,066,667    1,965,328    2,348,565      (383,237)        279,035         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 48,473         (427,695)      (476,565)        (48,870)          142,202         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                   176,168       176,168         -                     52,650           
Operating Transfers Out -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                   176,168       176,168         -                     52,650           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses 48,473$      (251,527)$   (300,397)      (48,870)$        194,852        

Fund Balances, October 1st 306,606         111,754         

Fund Balances, September 30th 6,209$          306,606$      

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Airport Construction Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 8,563,570$      8,563,570$     9,347,841$      784,271$          8,984,545$      
Taps, Connection and Other Fees 26,262             26,262            92,796             66,534              38,904             
Miscellaneous 85,001             85,001            112,290           27,289              123,823           

Total Operating Revenues 8,674,833        8,674,833       9,552,927        878,094            9,147,272        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 290,625           290,625          216,393           74,232              402,599           
Personnel Expenses 1,743,539        1,743,539       1,493,076        250,463            1,437,174        
Depreciation and Amortization -                       -                      956,722           (956,722)           526,111           
Utilities 828,583           828,583          889,730           (61,147)             799,574           
Supplies 525,121           525,121          434,907           90,214              391,098           
Repairs and Maintenance 157,019           157,019          172,909           (15,890)             117,571           
Vehicle Expense 152,236           152,236          141,421           10,815              134,783           
Capital & Equipment 1,253,000        1,253,000       323,054           929,946            139,989           
Studies and Projects 22,600             22,600            8,610               13,990              193,578           
Rental Expense 113,900           113,900          124,714           (10,814)             117,567           
Miscellaneous Expenses 71,400             71,400            66,653             4,747                65,235             
Testing and Monitoring 85,000             85,000            75,669             9,331                54,051             
Telephone -                       -                      11,841             (11,841)             -                       
Travel and Meetings 5,500               5,500              5,596               (96)                    2,961               

Total Operating Expenses 5,248,523        5,248,523       4,921,295        327,228            4,382,291        

Operating Income (Loss) 3,426,310        3,426,310       4,631,632        1,205,322         4,764,981        

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 94,172             94,172            (29,127)            (123,299)           112,256           
Rent and Royalties 65,010             65,010            66,159             1,149                65,010             
Federal Grants -                       -                      -                       -                        -                       
Debt Principal Payments (2,115,000)       (5,728,083)      -                       5,728,083         -                       
Interest Expense (882,854)          (970,292)         (915,801)          54,491              (1,016,000)       

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) (2,838,672)       (6,539,193)      (878,769)          5,660,424         (838,734)          

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 587,638           (3,112,883)      3,752,863        6,865,746         3,926,247        

Interfund Transfers and Donations:
Donation of Assets -                       -                      -                       -                        -                       
Operating Transfers In 267,208           267,208          267,208           -                        259,423           
Operating Transfers Out (854,846)          (859,846)         (859,846)          -                        (829,465)          

Net Transfers and Donations (587,638)          (592,638)         (592,638)          -                        (570,042)          

Net Income (Loss) -$                     (3,705,521)$    3,160,225        6,865,746$       3,356,205        

Net Position, October 1st 25,509,406      22,153,201      

Net Position, September 30th 28,669,631$    25,509,406$    

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Waterworks Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 6,998,789$    6,998,788$     7,521,962$      523,174$         6,637,147$      
Taps, Connection and Other Fees 1,500             1,500              160                  (1,340)              335                  
Miscellaneous 192,566         192,566          269,901           77,335             166,756           

Total Operating Revenues 7,192,855      7,192,854       7,792,023        599,169           6,804,238        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 3,608,260      3,608,260       3,065,245        543,015           2,845,488        
Personnel Expenses 518,466         518,466          545,246           (26,780)            525,145           
Depreciation and Amortization -                     -                      986,728           (986,728)          983,499           
Utilities -                     -                      7,747               (7,747)              29                    
Supplies 16,400           16,400            12,938             3,462               23,554             
Repairs & Maintenance 18,300           18,300            23,656             (5,356)              16,440             
Vehicle Expense 50,548           50,548            49,524             1,024               49,978             
Capital & Equipment 1,338,000      1,957,547       173,068           1,784,479        (168,322)          
Studies and Projects -                     -                      -                       -                       -                       
Rental Expense -                     -                      -                       -                       -                       
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,300             2,300              244,643           (242,343)          40,256             
Telephone -                     -                      -                       -                       -                       
Travel and Meetings 1,000             1,000              648                  352                  51                    

Total Operating Expenses 5,553,274      6,172,821       5,109,443        1,063,378        4,316,118        

Operating Income (Loss) 1,639,581      1,020,033       2,682,580        1,662,547        2,488,120        

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees 116,000         116,000          132,954           16,954             125,118           
Interest Income 21,637           21,637            (24,338)            (45,975)            11,107             
Debt Principal Payments (885,000)       (6,114,234)      -                       6,114,234        
Interest Expense (334,874)       (417,617)         (418,778)          (1,161)              (244,317)          
Federal Grant -                     -                      845,391           845,391           81,463             

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) (1,082,237)    (6,394,214)      535,229           6,929,443        (26,629)            

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 557,344         (5,374,181)      3,217,809        8,591,990        2,461,491        

Interfund Transfers and Donations:
Donation of Assets -                     -                      -                       -                       -                       
Operating Transfers In -                     -                      -                       -                       6,440,899        
Operating Transfers Out (557,344)       (3,457,344)      (3,457,344)       -                       (539,776)          

Net Transfers and Donations (557,344)       (3,457,344)      (3,457,344)       -                       5,901,123        

Net Income (Loss) -$                   (8,831,525)$    (239,535)          8,591,990$      8,362,614        

Net Position, October 1st 29,938,365      21,575,751      

Net Position, September 30th 29,698,830$    29,938,365$    

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Wastewater Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 2,408,452$     2,408,452$    2,567,778$    159,326$      2,460,651$      
Miscellaneous 413,900          413,900         -                     (413,900)       35,590             

Total Operating Revenues 2,822,352       2,822,352      2,567,778      (254,574)       2,496,241        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 1,809,808       1,809,808      1,675,622      134,186        1,744,639        
Personnel Expenses 208,460          208,460         216,831         (8,371)           119,519           
Depreciation and Amortization -                      -                     7,519             (7,519)           7,519               
Landfill Expenses 630,360          630,360         602,884         27,476          595,166           
Supplies 2,700              2,700             1,264             1,436            731                  
Repairs and Maintenance 6,100              6,100             5,489             611               4,858               
Vehicle Expense 7,173              7,173             7,110             63                 5,411               
Small Equipment -                      -                     -                     -                    -                       
Studies and Projects 1,625              1,625             1,382             243               1,515               
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,150              1,150             5,994             (4,844)           18,850             
Telephone -                      -                     -                     -                    -                       
Travel and Meetings 1,000              1,000             394                606               330                  

Total Operating Expenses 2,668,376       2,668,376      2,524,489      143,887        2,498,538        

Operating Income (Loss) 153,976          153,976         43,289           (110,687)       (2,297)              

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 8,000              8,000             (1,934)            (9,934)           7,889               
Interest Expense -                      -                     -                     -                    -                       

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) 8,000              8,000             (1,934)            (9,934)           7,889               

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 161,976          161,976         41,355           (120,621)       5,592               

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                      -                     -                     -                    -                       
Operating Transfers Out (161,976)         (161,976)        (161,976)        -                    (157,203)          

Net Transfers (161,976)         (161,976)        (161,976)        -                    (157,203)          

Net Income (Loss) -$                    -$                   (120,621)        (120,621)$     (151,611)          

Net Position, October 1st 653,463         805,074           

Net Position, September 30th 532,842$       653,463$         

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Sanitation Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2013

LID
Street Guarantee Library
Light Library Pool Total Bond Bond Total

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 123,365$      87,197$        -$                 210,562$      -$                20,191$    20,191$      
Restricted Cash -                     -                     85,000         85,000          -                  -                 -                  
Investments -                     993,295        -                    993,295        -                  -                 -                  
Receivables (net of allowance) -                     

Taxes 3,704            19,429          -                    23,133          -                  -                 -                  
Fees and Services -                     -                     -                    -                     -                  -                 -                  
Intergovernmental 1,297            15,546          32,727         49,570          -                  -                 -                  
Interest -                     -                     -                    -                     -                  -                 -                  
Accounts -                     -                     -                    -                     -                  -                 -                  

Due from Other Funds -                     -                     -                    -                     -                  -                 -                  
Deferred Charges -                     -                     -                    -                     -                  -                 -                  

Total Assets 128,366$      1,115,467$   117,727$     1,361,560$   -$                20,191$    20,191$      

Liabilities
Pooled Cash -$                  14,446$       14,446$        
Accounts Payable 19,463          2,232            (2,192)          19,503          -                  -                 -                  
Accrued Expenses -                     11,317          -                    11,317          -                  -                 -                  
Customer Deposits Payable -                     -                     -                    -                     -                  -                 -                  
Due to Other Funds 233,920        -                     337,286       571,206        -                  -                 -                  
Total Liabilities 253,383        13,549          349,540       616,472        -                  -                 -                  

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes 3,156            16,553          -                    19,709          -                  -                 -                  

Fund Balance
Nonspendable Fund Balance -                     -                     -                    -                     
Restricted Fund Balance -                     -                     85,000         85,000          -                  -                 -                  
Committed Fund Balance -                     1,085,365     -                    1,085,365     -                  20,191      20,191        
Assigned Fund Balance -                     -                     -                    -                     
Unassigned Fund Balance (128,173)       -                     (316,813)      (444,986)       -                  -                 -                  
Total Fund Balance (128,173)       1,085,365     (231,813)      725,379        -                  20,191      20,191        

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows 
of Resources and Fund Balance 128,366$      1,115,467$   117,727$     1,361,560$   -$                20,191$    20,191$      

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Fund

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2013

Total
Other 

Historic Park Trail Impact Drug Historic Government
Preservation Develop. Fund Fee CDBG Total Seizure Downtown Fireworks Total Funds

-$                  -$              -$             549,107$       -$                 549,107$      101,665$    -$                -$              101,665$  881,525$      
-                       203,416      541            -                     -                   203,957        -                  -                  -                  -                  288,957        
-                       -                  -                 1,226,772      -                   1,226,772     -                  -                  -                  -                  2,220,067     

-                     -                     
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  23,133          
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

2,311               -                  -                 -                     -                   2,311            -                  -                  -                  -                  51,881          
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     216,944      -                  -                  216,944      216,944        
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

2,311$            203,416$    541$          1,775,879$    -$                 1,982,147$   318,609$    -$                -$                318,609$    3,682,507$   

1,479$            -$                1$              -$                   -$                 1,480            -$                -$                10,236$      10,236$      26,162$        
-                       -                  -                 2,340             -                   2,340            -                  -                  -                  -                  21,843          
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  11,317          
-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                     

3,987               -                  -                 -                     -                   3,987            -                  -                  666             666             575,859        
5,466               -                  1                2,340             -                   7,807            -                  -                  10,902        10,902        635,181        

-                       -                  -                 -                     -                   -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  19,709          

-                       203,416      541            -                     -                   203,957        -                  288,957        
-                       -                  1,773,539      -                   1,773,539     318,609      -                  -                  318,609      3,197,704     
-                       -                  -                     -                     

(3,155)             (1)               -                     -                   (3,156)           -                  -                  (10,902)       (10,902)       (459,044)       
(3,155)             203,416      540            1,773,539      -                   1,974,340     318,609      -                  (10,902)       307,707      3,027,617     

2,311$            203,416$    541$          1,775,879$    -$                 1,982,147$   318,609$    -$                -$                318,609$    3,682,507$   

Capital Projects Fund Other Permanent Funds

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

LID
Street Guarantee Library
Light Library Pool Total Bond Bond Total

Revenues
Property Taxes, Including Interest 123,327$    1,466,124$   -$                   1,589,451$   -$                -$               -$              
Other Taxes 223,358      -                    -                     223,358        -                  -                 
Special Assessments, Including Interest -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 
Fines and Forfeitures -                  40,463          -                     40,463          -                  -                 
Licenses and Permits -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 
Fees and Services -                  34,297          -                     34,297          -                  -                 
Intergovernmental -                  -                    124,975         124,975        -                  -                 
Federal Grants -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 
Miscellaneous -                  (4,016)           2,585             (1,431)           -                  -                 -                
    Total Revenue 346,685      1,536,868     127,560         2,011,113     -                  -                 -                

Expenditures
Current

General Government -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                
Public Safety -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                
Engineering -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                
Community Development -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                
Culture and Recreation -                  1,573,896     132,798         1,706,694     -                  -                
Highway and Streets 285,707      -                    -                     285,707        -                  -                 -                
Airport -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                

Capital Outlay -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                
Debt Service -                    

Principal Retirement -                  -                    -                     -                    -                  -                 -                
Interest -                  -                    -                     -                    -                 -                

    Total Expenditures 285,707      1,573,896     132,798         1,992,401     -                  -                 -                

Excess of Revenues Over
  (Under) Expenditures 60,978        (37,028)         (5,238)            18,712          -                  -                 -                

Operating Transfers
Transfers In -                  -                    5,500             5,500            -                  -                 -                
Transfers Out 20,737        -                    -                     20,737          -                  -                 -                
    Net Transfers (20,737)       -                    5,500             (15,237)         -                  -                 -                

Net Change in Fund Balance 40,241        (37,028)         262                3,475            -                  -                 -                
Fund Balance October 1, 2012 (168,414)     1,122,393     (232,075)        721,904        18,376        20,191       38,567      

Transfer of Fund Balances 
       to the General Fund -                  -                    -                     -                    (18,376)       -                 (18,376)     

Fund Balance September 30, 2013 (128,173)$   1,085,365$  (231,813)$     725,379$     -$                20,191$     20,191$   

Special Revenue Funds Debt Service Fund

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Other Governmental Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Total
Other 

Historic Park Trail Impact Drug Historic Government
Preservation Develop. Fund Fee CDBG Total Seizure Downtown Fireworks Total Funds

-$                    -$              -$               -$                  -$                    -$                  -$              -$              -$             -$              1,589,451$   
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                223,358        
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    72,757      -                -               72,757      72,757          
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                40,463          
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    
-                      -                -                 751,367        -                      751,367        -                -                1,025        1,025        786,689        
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                124,975        

2,311              -                -                 -                    -                      2,311            -                -                -               -                2,311            
-                      17,455      -                 (4,411)           -                      13,044          -                -                1,525        1,525        13,138          

2,311              17,455      -                 746,956        -                      766,722        72,757      -                2,550        75,307      2,853,142     

-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    35,612      -                -               35,612      35,612          
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    

2,281              6,521        -                 37,260          -                      46,062          -                -                9,415        9,415        55,477          
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                1,706,694     
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                285,707        
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    

-                    -                    
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                -                    

2,281              6,521        -                 37,260          -                      46,062          35,612      -                9,415        45,027      2,083,490     

30                   10,934      -                 709,696        -                      720,660        37,145      -                (6,865)      30,280      769,652        

-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                6,500        6,500        12,000          
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                -               -                20,737          
-                      -                -                 -                    -                      -                    -                -                6,500        6,500        (8,737)           

30                   10,934      -                 709,696        -                      720,660        37,145      -                (365)         36,780      760,915        
(3,185)             192,482    540            1,063,843     (61)                  1,253,619     281,464    16,284      (10,537)    287,211    2,301,301     

-                      -                -                 -                    61                    61                 -                (16,284)     -               (16,284)     (34,599)         

(3,155)$           203,416$  540$          1,773,539$   -$                   1,974,340$  318,609$ -$             (10,902)$  307,707$  3,027,617$  

Capital Projects Fund Other Permanent Fund

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Proprietary Funds

Fund Balance Sheets
September 30, 2013

Dierkes Lake Common
Shoshone  Area

Golf Falls Parking Maintenance Total
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents -$                 79,196$             -$                 18,862$              98,058$        
Investments -                   226,401             -                   -                         226,401        
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollected.) -                    

Fees and Services -                   -                        -                   4,822                  4,822            
Intergovernmental -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Interest -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Accounts 4,607           549                   -                   -                         5,156            

Due From Other Funds -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Inventories -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    

Total Current Assets 4,607           306,146             -                   23,684                334,437        
Restricted Assets -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Deferred Charges -                    
Fixed Assets (Net of Accum. Depreciation) 452,035       1,069,000          -                   -                         1,521,035     

Total Assets 456,642$    1,375,146$       -$                23,684$              1,855,472$  

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities:

Pooled Cash 310,953$     -$                      -$                 -$                        310,953$      
Accounts Payable (302)             12,465               -                   1,205                  13,368          
Accrued Expenses -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Due to Other Funds 362,021       -                        -                   -                         362,021        
Notes Payable - Current -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Compensated Absences 7,697           -                        -                   -                         7,697            

Total Current Liabilities 680,369       12,465               -                   1,205                  694,039        

Current Liab. Payable from Restricted Assets:
Revenue Bonds Payable - Current -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Customer Deposits Payable -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    

Total Curr. Liab. From Restricted Assets -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    

NonCurrent Liabilities:
Notes Payable - Equipment -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Revenue Bonds Payable (Net of Discounts) -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    

Total Non-Current Liabilities -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Total Liabilities 680,369       12,465               -                   1,205                  694,039        

Net Position
Invested In Capital Assets, net of related debt 452,035       1,069,000          -                   -                         1,521,035     
Restricted -                   -                        -                   -                         -                    
Unrestricted (675,762)      293,681             -                   22,479                (359,602)       

Total Equity (223,727)      1,362,681          -                   22,479                1,161,433     

Total Liabilities and Equity 456,642$    1,375,146$       -$                23,684$              1,855,472$  

Business-Type Activities

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Proprietary Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Dierkes Lake Common
Shoshone  Area

Golf Falls Parking Maintenance Totals
Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services 7,378$          202,547$            -$                  29,076$              239,001$      
Taps, Connection and Other Fees -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Miscellaneous -                    3,600                  -                    -                          3,600            

Total Operating Revenues 7,378            206,147              -                    29,076                242,601        

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Services -                    55,166                -                    15,433                70,599          
Personal Expenses (3,986)           83,753                -                    -                          79,767          
Depreciation and Amortization 39,288          51,056                -                    -                          90,344          
Utilities -                    4,596                  -                    848                     5,444            
Landfill Expenses -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Supplies -                    4,003                  -                    -                          4,003            
Insurance  -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Repairs and Maintenance -                    5,016                  -                    4,071                  9,087            
Vehicle Expenses -                    1,180                  -                    -                          1,180            
Small Equipment 47,366          16,654                -                    -                          64,020          
Studies and Projects -                    -                          -                    -                          
Rental Expense -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Miscellaneous Expense -                    4,332                  -                    39                       4,371            
Testing and Monitoring -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Telephone -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Travel and Meetings 329               -                          -                    -                          329               

Total Operating Expenses 82,997          225,756              -                    20,391                329,144        

Operating Income (Loss) (75,619)         (19,609)               -                    8,685                  (86,543)         

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Interest Income -                    (1,229)                 -                    -                          (1,229)           
Rent and Royalties -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Federal Grants -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Intergovernmental -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    
Loss on Transfer of Assets -                    
Interest Expense -                    -                          -                    -                          -                    

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Exp.) -                    (1,229)                 -                    -                          (1,229)           

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (75,619)         (20,838)               -                    8,685                  (87,772)         

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 40,700          (2,000)                 -                    -                          38,700          
Operating Transfers Out -                    (9,073)                 -                    (2,596)                 (11,669)         

Net Transfers 40,700          (11,073)               -                    (2,596)                 27,031          

Net Income (Loss) (34,919)         (31,911)               -                    6,089                  (60,741)         

Total Net Position, October 1, 2012 (188,808)       1,394,592           57,630          16,390                1,279,804     

Transfer of Fund Balance to General Fund -                    -                          (57,630)         -                          (57,630)         

Total Net Position, September 30, 2013 (223,727)$    1,362,681$        -$                 22,479$              1,161,433$  

Business-Type Activities

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Internal Service Funds

Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2013

Shop
Insurance Revolving Total

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 59,761$           426,861$    486,622$            
Investments 155,783           -                  155,783              
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollect.) -                          

Taxes 5,634               -                  5,634                  
Fees and Services -                       -                  -                          
Intergovernmental 1,823               -                  1,823                  
Interest -                       -                  -                          
Accounts -                       -                  -                          

Due From Other Funds -                       -                  -                          
Inventories -                       -                  -                          

Total Current Assets 223,001           426,861      649,862              
Restricted Assets
Deferred Charges
Fixed Assets (Net of Accum. Depreciation) -                       328,716      328,716              

Total Assets 223,001$        755,577$   978,578$           

Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities:

Pooled Cash -$                     -$                -$                        
Accounts Payable -                       76               76                       
Accrued Expenses -                       -                  -                          
Deferred Revenue 4,800               -                  4,800                  
Notes Payable - Current -                       -                  -                          
Compensated Absences -                       23,664        23,664                

Total Current Liabilities 4,800               23,740        28,540                

Total Liabilities 4,800               23,740        28,540                

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets -                       328,716      328,716              
Restricted -                       -                  -                          
Unrestricted 218,201           403,121      621,322              

Total Net Position 218,201           731,837      950,038              

Total Liabilities and Net Position 223,001$        755,577$   978,578$           

Governmental Activities - 
Internal Service Funds

See accountants' report.
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City of Twin Falls, Idaho
Combining Statement - Internal Service Funds

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Shop
Insurance Revolving Total

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services -$                    305,492$        305,492$         
Property Taxes, Including Interest 173,697          -                      173,697           
Taps, Connection and Other Fees -                      -                      -                       
Miscellaneous (688)                194                 (494)                 

Total Operating Revenues 173,009          305,686          478,695           

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Services -                      1,534              1,534               
Personal Expenses -                      244,741          244,741           
Depreciation and Amortization -                      15,163            15,163             
Utilities -                      6,278              6,278               
Landfill Expenses -                      -                      -                       
Supplies -                      25,740            25,740             
Insurance  354,592          -                      354,592           
Repairs and Maintenance -                      9,492              9,492               
Vehicle Expenses -                      958                 958                  
Small Equipment -                      15,807            15,807             
Studies and Projects -                      -                      -                       
Rental Expense -                      -                      -                       
Miscellaneous Expense 385                 -                      385                  
Testing and Monitoring -                      -                      -                       
Telephone -                      -                      -                       
Travel and Meetings -                      -                      -                       

Total Operating Expenses 354,977          319,713          674,690           

Operating Income (Loss) (181,968)         (14,027)           (195,995)          

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Development Fees -                      -                      -                       
Interest Income -                      -                      -                       
Rent and Royalties -                      -                      -                       
Federal Grants -                      -                      -                       
Intergovernmental -                      -                      -                       
Interest Expense -                      -                      -                       

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Exp.) -                      -                      -                       

Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers (181,968)         (14,027)           (195,995)          

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 229,894          5,000              234,894           
Operating Transfers Out (51,843)           -                      (51,843)            

Net Transfers 178,051          5,000              183,051           

Net Income (Loss) (3,917)             (9,027)             (12,944)            

Total Net Position, October 1, 2012 222,118          740,864          962,982           

Total Net Position, September 30, 2013 218,201$       731,837$       950,038$        

Governmental Activities - 
Internal Service Funds

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 122,537$     122,537$     123,327$     790$             99,979$       
Non-Property Taxes 199,260       199,260       223,358       24,098          196,323       
Miscellaneous & Intergovernmental -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   

Total Revenues 321,797       321,797       346,685       24,888          296,302       

Expenditures:
Current

Highways and Streets 301,060       301,060       285,707       15,353          250,225       
Total Expenditures 301,060       301,060       285,707       15,353          250,225       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 20,737         20,737         60,978         40,241          46,077         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   
Operating Transfers Out (20,737)        (20,737)        (20,737)        -                    (20,133)        

Total Other Sources (Uses) (20,737)        (20,737)        (20,737)        -                    (20,133)        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                -$                40,241       40,241$        25,944       

Fund Balances, October 1st (168,414)      (194,358)      

Fund Balances, September 30th (128,173)$   (168,414)$   

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Street Light Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes 1,473,293$   1,473,293$   1,466,124$   (7,169)$         1,446,755$   
Fines and Forfeits 28,000          28,000          40,463          12,463           41,328          
Fees and Services 32,500          32,500          34,297          1,797            32,886          
Grants -                   -                   -                   -                    35,300          
Miscellaneous 14,000          14,000          (4,016)           (18,016)         29,561          

Total Revenues 1,547,793     1,547,793     1,536,868     (10,925)         1,585,830     

Expenditures:
Current

Culture and Recreation 61,500          61,500          1,409,791     (1,348,291)    1,418,617     
Capital Outlay 1,673,293     1,673,293     164,105        1,509,188      112,885        
Total Expenditures 1,734,793     1,734,793     1,573,896     160,897         1,531,502     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures (187,000)       (187,000)       (37,028)         149,972         54,328          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                   -                   -                   -                    60,000          
Operating Transfers Out -                   -                   -                   -                    -                   

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                   -                   -                   -                    60,000          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses (187,000)$    (187,000)$    (37,028)       149,972$       114,328$     

Fund Balances, October 1st 1,122,393     1,008,065     

Fund Balances, September 30th 1,085,365$  1,122,393$  

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Library Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services -$                -$                -$                -$                   -$                
Miscellaneous and Reserves -                  2,586          -                  (2,586)            -                  

Total Operating Revenues -                  2,586          -                  (2,586)            -                  

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 120,000      120,000      120,000      -                     120,000      
Personnel Expenses -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  
Depreciation and Amortization -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  
Utilities -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  
Supplies -                  300             (520)            820                (14)              
Repairs and Maintenance -                  2,396          3,466          (1,070)            3,943          
Rental Expense -                  -                  -                  -                     249             
Telephone -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  
Travel and Meetings -                  -                  -                  -                     -                  

Total Operating Expenses 120,000      122,696      122,946      (250)               124,178      

Operating Income (Loss) (120,000)     (120,110)     (122,946)     (2,836)            (124,178)     

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Intergovernmental 120,000      120,000      124,975      4,975             127,409      
Loss on Transfer of Assets 2,585          -                  
Capital Outlay (5,500)         (10,672)       (9,852)         820                -                  

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) 114,500      109,328      117,708      5,795             127,409      

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (5,500)         (10,782)       (5,238)         2,959             3,231          

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 5,500          10,782        5,500          (5,282)            -                  
Operating Transfers Out -                  -                  -                  -                     (815,253)     

Net Transfers 5,500          10,782        5,500          (5,282)            (815,253)     

Net Income (Loss) -$               -$               262           (2,323)$          (812,022)   

Fund Balances, October 1st (232,075)     579,947      

Fund Balances, September 30th (231,813)$  (232,075)$  

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Pool Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous -$                  -$                  -$                 -$                   -$                   

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                   -                     -                     

Expenditures:
Debt Service

Principal Retirement -                    -                    -                   -                     -                     
Interest -                    -                    -                   -                     6                    
Total Expenditures -                    -                    -                   -                     6                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                    -                    -                   -                     (6)                  

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                    -                    -                   -                     -                     
Operating Transfers Out -                    -                    -                   -                     -                     

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                    -                    -                   -                     -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                  -$                  -                   -$                   (6)                  

Fund Balances, October 1st 18,376         18,382           

Transfer of Fund Balance to General Account (18,376)       -                     

Fund Balances, September 30th -$                 18,376$         

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - LID Guarantee Bond Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes, Including Penalty and Interest -$                -$                -$                 -$                   -$               
Miscellaneous -                  -                  -                   -                     -                 

Total Revenues -                  -                  -                   -                     -                 

Expenditures:
Current

Culture and Recreation -                  -                  -                   -                     7                
Debt Service

Principal Retirement -                  -                  -                   -                     -                 
Interest -                  -                  -                   -                     -                 
Total Expenditures -                  -                  -                   -                     7                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                  -                  -                   -                     (7)               

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                  -                  -                   -                     
Operating Transfers Out -                  -                  -                   -                     -                 

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                  -                  -                   -                     -                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                -$                -                   -$                   (7)               

Fund Balances, October 1st 20,191         20,198       

Fund Balances, September 30th 20,191$       20,191$     

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Special Revenue - Library Bond Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Property Taxes -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
Federal Grants 6,000             6,000             2,311             (3,689)            5,826             
Miscellaneous -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 6,000             6,000             2,311             (3,689)            5,826             

Expenditures:
Current

Community Development 6,000             6,000             2,281             3,719             889                
Total Expenditures 6,000             6,000             2,281             3,719             889                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                     -                     30                  30                  4,937             

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Operating Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                   -$                   30                  30$                4,937             

Fund Balances, October 1st (3,185)           (8,122)           

Fund Balances, September 30th (3,155)$         (3,185)$         

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Historic Preservation Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
76



Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous -$                 -$                 17,455$         17,455$         2,542$           

Total Revenues -                   -                   17,455           17,455           2,542             

Expenditures:
Current

Industrial Development 11,150         11,150         6,521             4,629             104,318         
Total Expenditures 11,150         11,150         6,521             4,629             104,318         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures (11,150)        (11,150)        10,934           22,084           (101,776)        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     
Operating Transfers Out -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses (11,150)$     (11,150)$     10,934         22,084$         (101,776)       

Fund Balances, October 1st 192,482         294,258         

Fund Balances, September 30th 203,416$      192,482$      

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Park Development

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous -$                 -$                 -$                   -$                   499$              

Total Revenues -                   -                   -                     -                     499                

Expenditures:
Current

Trail Fund -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures -                   -                   -                     -                     499                

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     
Operating Transfers Out -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     

Total Other Sources (Uses) -                   -                   -                     -                     -                     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues/Other
  Sources Over (Under) Expenditures/Uses -$                -$                -                   -$                   499               

Fund Balances, October 1st 540                41                  

Fund Balances, September 30th 540$             540$             

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Capital Projects - Trail Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Fees and Services -$                -$                751,367$      751,367$       610,473$      

 Miscellaneous -                  -                  (4,411)           (4,411)            8,778            
Total Operating Revenues -                  -                  746,956        746,956         619,251        

Operating Expenses:

Public Safety -                  -                  -                    -                     -                    
Community Development -                  -                  -                    -                     -                    
Capital Outlay 392,000       392,000       37,260          354,740         -                    

Total Operating Expenses 392,000       392,000       37,260          354,740         -                    

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (392,000)     (392,000)     709,696        1,101,696      619,251        

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                  -                  -                    -                     -                    
Operating Transfers Out -                  -                  -                    -                     -                    

Net Transfers -                  -                  -                    -                     -                    

Net Income (Loss) (392,000)$  (392,000)$  709,696      1,101,696$    619,251      

Fund Balances, October 1st 1,063,843     444,592        

Fund Balances, September 30th 1,773,539$  1,063,843$  

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Impact Fees

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Federal Grants -$             -$               -$              -$                   -$                     

 Miscellaneous -               -                 -                -                     -                       
Total Operating Revenues -               -                 -                -                     -                       

Operating Expenses:

Community Development -               -                 -                -                     -                       
Total Operating Expenses -               -                 -                -                     -                       

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -               -                 -                -                     -                       

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -               -                 -                -                     -                       
Operating Transfers Out -               -                 -                -                     -                       

Net Transfers -               -                 -                -                     -                       

Net Income (Loss) -$            -$              -              -$                   -                     

Fund Balances, October 1st (61)            (61)                   

Transfer Fund Balance to General Fund 61              -                       

Fund Balances, September 30th -$             (61)$                

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - CDBG

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Special Assessments, Including Interest -$                  -$              72,757$     72,757$         91,567$     
Miscellaneous -                    -                -                 -                     -                 

Total Operating Revenues -                    -                72,757       72,757           91,567       

Operating Expenses:
Public Safety 33,800           35,612      35,612       -                     67,261       

Total Operating Expenses 33,800           35,612      35,612       -                     67,261       

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (33,800)         (35,612)     37,145       72,757           24,306       

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                    -                -                 -                     -                 
Operating Transfers Out -                    -                -                 -                     -                 

Net Transfers -                    -                -                 -                     -                 

Net Income (Loss) (33,800)$      (35,612)$  37,145     72,757$         24,306     

Fund Balances, October 1st 281,464     257,158     

Fund Balances, September 30th 318,609$  281,464$  

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Drug Seizure Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Special Assessments, Including Interest -$               -$               -$               -$                   -$                
Miscellaneous -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Total Operating Revenues -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Operating Expenses:
Community Development -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Total Operating Expenses -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Net Transfers -                 -                 -                 -                     -                  

Net Income (Loss) -$              -$              -               -$                   -                

Fund Balances, October 1st 16,284        16,284        

Transfer Fund Balance to General Fund (16,284)      -                  

Fund Balances, September 30th -$              16,284$     

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Historic Downtown Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$              -$              -$                -$                   -$                
Miscellaneous and Permits 1,500        3,000        2,550          (450)               1,869          

Total Operating Revenues 1,500        3,000        2,550          (450)               1,869          

Operating Expenses:
Community Development 8,000        9,500        9,415          85                  8,000          

Total Operating Expenses 8,000        9,500        9,415          85                  8,000          

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (6,500)       (6,500)       (6,865)         (365)               (6,131)         

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 6,500        6,500        6,500          -                     6,500          
Operating Transfers Out -                -                -                  -                     -                  

Net Transfers 6,500        6,500        6,500          -                     6,500          

Net Income (Loss) -$             -$             (365)          (365)$             369           

Fund Balances, October 1st (10,537)       (10,906)       

Fund Balances, September 30th (10,902)$    (10,537)$    

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Other Funds - Fireworks Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services -$                     -$                   7,378$             7,378$           18,029$           
Miscellaneous -                       -                     -                       -                     969                  

Total Operating Revenues -                       -                     7,378               7,378             18,998             

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 37,500             37,500           -                       37,500           11,380             
Personnel Expenses -                       -                     (3,986)              3,986             38,497             
Depreciation and Amortization -                       -                     39,288             (39,288)          40,145             
Utilities -                       -                     -                       -                     2,548               
Supplies -                       -                     -                       -                     5,161               
Repairs and Maintenance -                       -                     -                       -                     8,697               
Vehicle Expense -                       -                     -                       -                     3,415               
Small Equipment 3,200               3,200             47,366             (44,166)          1,396               
Studies and Projects -                       -                     -                       -                     -                       
Rental Expense -                       -                     -                       -                     -                       
Miscellaneous Expenses -                       -                     -                       -                     87                    
Telephone -                       -                     -                       -                     -                       
Travel and Meetings -                       -                     329                  (329)               184                  

Total Operating Expenses 40,700             40,700           82,997             (42,297)          111,510           

Operating Income (Loss) (40,700)            (40,700)         (75,619)            (34,919)          (92,512)            

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -                       -                     -                       -                     -                       
Interest Expense -                       -                     -                       -                     467                  

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) -                       -                     -                       -                     467                  

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (40,700)            (40,700)         (75,619)            (34,919)          (92,045)            

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 40,700             40,700           40,700             -                     111,747           
Operating Transfers Out -                       -                     -                       -                     -                       

Net Transfers 40,700             40,700           40,700             -                     111,747           

Net Income (Loss) -$                     -$                   (34,919)            (34,919)$        19,702             

Net Position, October 1st (188,808)          (208,510)          

Net Position, September 30th (223,727)$        (188,808)$        

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Golf Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 170,866$       170,866$      202,547$       31,681$         215,724$       
Miscellaneous and Reserves -                     -                    3,600             3,600             3,262             

Total Operating Revenues 170,866         170,866        206,147         35,281           218,986         

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 61,300           61,300          55,166           6,134             56,143           
Personnel Expenses 69,973           69,973          83,753           (13,780)          82,942           
Depreciation and Amortization -                     -                    51,056           (51,056)          49,408           
Utilities 4,320             4,320            4,596             (276)               4,494             
Supplies 5,000             5,000            4,003             997                4,893             
Repairs and Maintenance 8,000             8,000            5,016             2,984             8,715             
Vehicle Expense -                     -                    1,180             (1,180)            1,008             
Small Equipment 11,000           11,000          16,654           (5,654)            (190)              
Miscellaneous Expenses 5,500             5,500            4,332             1,168             6,824             
Telephone -                     -                    -                     -                     -                     

Total Operating Expenses 165,093         165,093        225,756         (60,663)          214,237         

Operating Income (Loss) 5,773             5,773            (19,609)         (25,382)          4,749             

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 3,300             3,300            (1,229)           (4,529)            3,759             
Interest Expense -                     -                    -                     -                     -                     

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) 3,300             3,300            (1,229)           (4,529)            3,759             

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 9,073             9,073            (20,838)         (29,911)          8,508             

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                     -                    (2,000)           (2,000)            -                     
Operating Transfers Out (9,073)           (9,073)           (9,073)           -                     (8,808)           

Net Transfers (9,073)           (9,073)           (11,073)         (2,000)            (8,808)           

Net Income (Loss) -$                   -$                  (31,911)         (31,911)$        (300)              

Net Position, October 1st 1,394,592      1,394,892      

Net Position, September 30th 1,362,681$    1,394,592$    

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Dierkes Lake/Shoshone Falls Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 63,525$   63,525$    -$             (63,525)$        46,322$   
Miscellaneous -               -                -               -                     11,167     

Total Operating Revenues 63,525     63,525      -               (63,525)          57,489     

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 3,885       3,885        -               3,885             1,065       
Personnel Expenses 57,135     57,135      -               57,135           50,513     
Depreciation and Amortization -               -                -               -                     -               
Supplies 150          150           -               150                44            
Repairs and Maintenance 500          500           -               500                821          
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,785       2,785        -               2,785             15,651     
Telelphone -               -                -               -                     35            
Travel -               -                -               -                     -               

Total Operating Expenses 64,455     64,455      -               64,455           68,129     

Operating Income (Loss) (930)         (930)          -               930                (10,640)    

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income 930          930           -               (930)               916          
Interest Expense -               -                -               -                     -               

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) 930          930           -               (930)               916          

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -               -                -               -                     (9,724)      

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -               -                -               -                     -               
Operating Transfers Out -               -                -               -                     -               

Net Transfers -               -                -               -                     -               

Net Income (Loss) -$            -$             -             -$                   (9,724)    

Net Position, October 1st 57,630     67,354     

Transfer Net Position to the General Fund (57,630)    -               

Net Position, September 30th -$            57,630$  

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Parking Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 26,676$   26,676$   29,076$   2,400$           27,269$    
Miscellaneous -               -               -               -                     -                

Total Operating Revenues 26,676     26,676     29,076     2,400             27,269      

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 22,200     22,200     15,433     6,767             21,090      
Personnel Expenses -               -               -               -                     -                
Depreciation and Amortization -               -               -               -                     -                
Utilities 1,080       1,080       848          232                847           
Supplies -               -               -               -                     -                
Repairs and Maintenance 800          800          4,071       (3,271)            2,567        
Vehicle Expense -               -               -               -                     -                
Miscellaneous Expenses -               -               39            (39)                 146           
Telephone -               -               -               -                     -                

Total Operating Expenses 24,080     24,080     20,391     3,689             24,650      

Operating Income (Loss) 2,596       2,596       8,685       6,089             2,619        

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -               -               -               -                     -                
Interest Expense -               -               -               -                     -                

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) -               -               -               -                     -                

Income (Loss) before operating transfers 2,596       2,596       8,685       6,089             2,619        

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -               -               -               -                     -                
Operating Transfers Out (2,596)      (2,596)      (2,596)      -                     (2,520)       

Net Transfers (2,596)      (2,596)      (2,596)      -                     (2,520)       

Net Income (Loss) -$            -$            6,089     6,089$           99           

Net Position, October 1st 16,390     16,291      

Net Position, September 30th 22,479$  16,390$   

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Enterprise - Common Area Maintenance

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
87



Variance
Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Special Assessments, Including Interest 172,322$        172,322$     173,697$      1,375$          169,693$        
Miscellaneous 2,200              2,200           (688)             (2,888)           1,847              

Total Operating Revenues 174,522          174,522       173,009        (1,513)           171,540          

Operating Expenses:
Insurance Expense 351,773          357,773       354,592        3,181            352,815          
Miscellaneous Expenses 650                 650              385               265               431                 
Travel and Meetings 150                 150              -                   150               -                     

Total Operating Expenses 352,573          358,573       354,977        3,596            353,246          

Operating Income (Loss) (178,051)        (184,051)      (181,968)      2,083            (181,706)        

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -                     -                   -                   -                    -                     
Interest Expense -                     -                   -                   -                    -                     

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) -                     -                   -                   -                    -                     

Income (Loss) before operating transfers (178,051)        (184,051)      (181,968)      2,083            (181,706)        

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In 229,894          229,894       229,894        -                    220,893          
Operating Transfers Out (51,843)          (51,843)        (51,843)        -                    (50,333)          

Net Transfers 178,051          178,051       178,051        -                    170,560          

Net Income (Loss) -$                  (6,000)$       (3,917)        2,083$          (11,146)         

Net Position, October 1st 222,118        233,264          

Net Position, September 30th 218,201$     222,118$       

2013

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Internal Service - Insurance Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

See accountants' report.
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2013
Variance

Proposed Final Favorable 2012
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services 293,447$   293,447$    305,492$   12,045$         267,433$         
Miscellaneous -                 -                 194            194                230                  

Total Operating Revenues 293,447     293,447      305,686     12,239           267,663           

Operating Expenses:
Contracted Expenses 1,450         1,450          1,534         (84)                 1,690               
Personnel Expenses 222,847     227,847      244,741     (16,894)          216,074           
Depreciation and Amortization -                 -                 15,163       (15,163)          13,416             
Utilities 9,200         9,200          6,278         2,922             5,288               
Supplies 26,100       26,100        25,740       360                19,687             
Repairs and Maintenance 12,000       12,000        9,492         2,508             3,957               
Vehicle Expense 1,000         1,000          958            42                  660                  
Small Equipment 19,850       19,850        15,807       4,043             11,346             
Studies and Prljects -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,000         1,000          -                 1,000             -                       
Telephone -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       

Total Operating Expenses 293,447     298,447      319,713     (21,266)          272,118           

Operating Income (Loss) -                 (5,000)        (14,027)      (9,027)            (4,455)              

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       
Interest Expense -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       

Total Non-operating Revenues (Exp.) -                 -                 -                 -                     -                       

Income (Loss) before operating transfers -                 (5,000)        (14,027)      (9,027)            (4,455)              

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers In -                 5,000          5,000         -                     -                       
Operating Transfers Out -                 -                 -                 -                     8,767               

Net Transfers -                 5,000          5,000         -                     8,767               

Net Income (Loss) -$              -$              (9,027)      (9,027)$          4,312             

Net Position, October 1st 740,864     736,552           

Net Position, September 30th 731,837$  740,864$        

With Comparative Actual Amounts from the Previous Year

CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Internal Service - Shop Revolving Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

See accountants' report.
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SINGLE AUDIT INFORMATION



CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor's 

Number Number Expenditures

Historical Society
Historic Preservation Fund Grants 15.904 5,826$                      

Department of Transportation
State and Community Highway Safety 20.600 4,326                        
Alcohol Traffic Safety & Drunk Driving Prevention 20.601 1,716                        

Department of Justice
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 6,935                        
Internet Crimes Against Children 16.800 24,998                      

Department of Homeland Security
Law Enforcement Officer Reimbursement Program 97.090 3,569                        

Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant 14.228 552,395                    

Federal Highway Administration
CSI Safety Initiative 20.205 38,378                      
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 1,105                        

Environmental Protection Agency
Congressionally Mandated Projects 66.202 851,026                    

Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program-Runway and Apron Rehab. 20.106 309,961                    
Airport Improvement Program-SRE Building 20.106 1,458,261                 
Airport Improvement Program-Master Plan 20.106 1,635                        

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 3,260,131$              

The City of Twin Falls received equipment in the amount of $48,173 from Department of Homeland Security.

Federal Grantor/
Pass Through Grantor/

Program Title
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CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year ended September 30, 2013

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal Control over financial reporting:

Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes No X

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
  considered to be a Material Weakness? Yes No X

Non-Compliance material to financial statements noted? Yes No X

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material Weakness(es) identified? Yes No X

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
  considered to be a Material Weakness? Yes No X

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
  major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
  reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of 
  Circular A-133? Yes No X

Identification of major programs

Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Congressionally Mandated Projects 66.202

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
  and Type B programs

Auditee Qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

$300,000

Unqualified

Unqualified

CFDA Number
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the City Council 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Twin Falls, Idaho, as of and for the year ended September 
30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10, 2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of 
Twin Falls, Idaho’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Sincerely, 

 
MAHLKE HUNSAKER & Co., PLLC 
Twin Falls, Idaho 
February 10, 2014 



Mahlke Hunsaker & Company PLLC 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM  
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

 

To the City Council 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Twin 
Falls, Idaho’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2013. The City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City of Twin Falls, Idaho, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for 
the year ended September 30, 2013. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered The City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s internal control over compliance with the 
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance 
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Twin Falls, Idaho’s 
internal control over compliance. 
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A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
MAHLKE HUNSAKER & Co., PLLC 
February 10, 2014 
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Request:  

Consideration of a Contract with CSHQA Architects for Phase I, Schematic Design and 
Feasibility Study, for the Airport Terminal Modification Project. 

Time Estimate:  

10 minutes with additional time for questions 

Background:  

The Strategic Plan identifies goals to implement the airport’s master plan & follow the capital 
improvement plan (CIP) for airport maintenance and development projects.  The master plan 
completed in 2012 identified the need to address new terminal development concepts. 

The Master Plan recommended terminal development concept overall goals include: 
· Provide additional sterile hold-room area for peak- hour enplaned passengers 
· Provide areas for “behind-the-wall” baggage screening & bag sorting 
· Improve the efficient flow of passengers in the terminal/ticket areas 
· Accommodate rest room facilities in the sterile hold-room area 
 
The airport conducted a qualification based selection process for an architect to assist with the 
project.  At the January 21st City Council meeting the Council selected CSHQA as the 
architectural firm for the project. 
 
Developing a phase I contract separately from phase II, design & bidding, and phase III, 
construction services, holds advantages.  By moving forward with the first phase, we will be 
better able to understand more fully what the new design will look like and be better able to 
anticipate costs and funding options for construction.  Further, we will more accurately scope the 
work and structure costs for the additional 2 phases of the contract with CSHQA. 
 
In summary, the scope of work for this first phase will include concept alternatives/narratives, 
schematic design drawings, opinion of probable construction cost, and a financial planning 
report. (See enclosures for full details) 
 

Budget Impact: 

The 2014 Airport Budget included $100,000 from its passenger facility charge (PFC) account in 
anticipation of moving forward with the initial terminal study phase.  Although the pending first 
phase of the contract is in the amount of $113,395.70, the additional $13,395.70, along with 
future phases, II & III, will be funded by FAA Airport Improvement Program (AIP) grants.  In 
the unlikely event we do not move to a phase II and III, another alternative for funding the 
$13,395.70 would be through an adjustment in the airports current PFC application with the 

Date:  March  10 , 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
To:   Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:   Bill Carberry, Airport Manager 
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FAA, wherein the expense would be recouped.  I have reviewed the budget plan with the City 
CFO, Lorie Race, and she is in agreement with the approach. 

Regulatory Impact: 

There is no regulatory impact associated with the Councils approval of this request.  The airport 
will work in conjunction with the architect to address those regulatory requirements associated 
with the development of the project. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the Council approve the contract with CSHQA for Phase I of the airport 
terminal modification project in the amount of $113,395.70. 

 

Attachments: 

1. CSHQA Project description & task list 

2. CSHQA Phase I Contract 

 



 

TECHNICAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

 

PROJECT NAME:   Magic Valley Regional Airport 
 Terminal Building Modification Project   
 Twin Falls, ID   
 
PROJECT NO:   14TBD.000 
 
CLIENT: City of Twin Falls 
  
ADDRESS: Joslin Field - Magic Valley Regional Airport 
 Twin Falls, ID  83301 
 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
A. The Architect shall provide for the Client limited architectural, interior design, engineering (civil, structural, 

mechanical, electrical, and communications), land-surveying, and financial planning services to provide 
Schematic Design and a Feasibility Study per the enclosed revised proposal letter dated February 27, 2014, 
for the above referenced project.  

 
B. The Architect agrees to perform for Client additional tasks not stated above in accordance with generally 

accepted Architectural practices upon authorization by the Client. 
 
COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 
 
Compensation by the Client to Architect shall be on the basis of the following: 
 
A. Compensation for the services described in Item A above shall be charged on a Fixed Fee basis of One 

Hundred Six Thousand Five Hundred Forty and 10/100 Dollars ($106,540.10) plus Reimbursable Expenses 
not-to-exceed $6,855.60 per the Provisions of Article II of this Agreement. 

 
B. Compensation for the services described in Item B above shall be negotiated with the Client upon 

determination of the Scope of Services desired. 
 
OTHER TERMS 
 
Services covered by this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with the Provisions stated on the back of 
this Agreement and any attachments or schedules.  The Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and 
understandings and may only be changed by written amendment executed by both parties. 
 
 
Approved for CLIENT Accepted for ARCHITECT 
Twin Falls County Commission CSHQA, a professional association  
 
 
By:     By:   
Terry Kramer, Chairman  Craig A. Slocum, Secretary/Treasurer  

Date:    Date:  March 4, 2014  

 
City of Twin Falls Attest  
 
 
By:     By:   
Don Hall, Mayor   

Date:    Date  

 



 

PROVISIONS  
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Architect agrees to perform for Client the services described under the scope of 
services.  Execution of this Agreement by the Client will be authorization for 
Architect to proceed with the services, unless otherwise provided for in this 
Agreement. The Architect and its consultants shall perform services under this 
Agreement in accordance with the accepted standard of care for similar 
professionals rendering similar services under similar circumstances in the area of 
the project. 

ARTICLE II - COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 

Client shall compensate the Architect for costs and expenses incurred by 
Architect in the performance of the services referenced to hereinabove.  Such 
costs include: 

1. Payroll Cost - Multiple of Direct Personnel Expense, as defined by AIA 
Document B141 is defined "as the direct salaries of the Architect’s 
personnel engaged on the project, and the portion of the cost of their 
mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such 
as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick 
leave, holidays, vacations, pensions, and similar contributions and benefits."  
Employee's time will be charged at two and seventy-five one hundredths 
(2.75) times the "Direct Personnel Expense." 

2. Reimbursable Expenses - Including, but not limited to, materials, supplies, 
reproduction costs for plans, details, reports, long distance communications, 
travel time, mileage, and subsistence will be charged at a multiple of one 
and ten one hundredths (1.10) times the actual cost to the Architect, when 
furnished by commercial sources and on the basis of current rates when 
furnished by Architect. 

3. Manner of Payment - Client agrees to pay charges not in dispute within 
thirty days of receipt of Architect’s invoice.  Client agrees that Architect has 
the right to suspend or terminate services if undisputed charges are not paid 
within forty-five days of receipt of Architect’s invoice, and Client agrees to 
waive any claim against Architect, and to indemnify, defend, and hold 
Architect harmless from and against any claims arising from Architect’s 
suspension or termination due to Client’s failure to provide timely payment.  
Charges held in dispute shall be called to Architect’s attention within ten 
days of receipt of Architect’s invoice.  Past due charges shall bear interest at 
a rate of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month from the date of the 
original invoice. 

ARTICLE III - ACCOUNTING OF COSTS 

During the period of this Agreement, Architect shall maintain books and accounts 
of Costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
practices.  Client shall have access to these books and accounts during normal 
business hours to the extent required to verify costs for a period of one year after 
completion of Architect’s services. 

ARTICLE IV - USE OF ARCHITECT'S DOCUMENTS 

Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared by the Architect for this 
Project are Instruments of the Architect’s Service for use solely with respect to 
this Project and, unless otherwise provided, the Architect shall be deemed the 
author of the documents and shall retain common law, statutory, and other 
reserved rights, including the copyright. The Client shall be permitted to retain 
copies, including reproducible copies, of the Architect’s Instruments of Service for 
information and reference in connection with the Client’s use and occupancy of 
the Project. The Instruments of Service shall not be used by the Client or others 
on other projects, or for additions to or completion of this Project by others, 
except by agreement in writing and with appropriate compensation to the 
Architect. 

ARTICLE V – SCHEDULE AND DELAYS 

Architect’s services shall be performed as expeditiously as is consistent with 
professional skill and care and orderly progress of the project. Neither party 
hereto shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations 
hereunder to the extent that the performance of any such obligation is prevented 
or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is beyond the reasonable 
control of such party. 

ARTICLE VI – CLAIM FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 

Architect and Client mutually waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, 
or other matters in question arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This 
mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due 
to either party’s termination in accordance with Article VIII of the Provisions. 

ARTICLE VII – LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

Client agrees that the limit of Architect’s (or its employees, agents, 
representatives, related engineers, or other professional staff who work on the 
project) liability for any claims, including but not limited to negligent acts, errors, 
omissions, or breach of contractual obligations relating to or arising out of the 
project shall not exceed the total aggregate sum of $50,000.00 or the Architect’s 
total fee for services rendered on the project, whichever is greater. This 
limitation will apply to Client, contractors and/or subcontractors on the project. 
The Client agrees to require contractors to execute an agreement limiting the 
Architect’s liability in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph. 

ARTICLE VIII – TERMINATION, CREDIT-CHECK, ASSIGNMENT AND 
CERTIFICATION 

Client may terminate this Agreement at any time upon payment to Architect of all 
expenditures incurred in the performance of its service plus termination 
expenses of ten percent (10%) of the total compensation to date. Architect may 
terminate this Agreement in the event of non-payment as specified herein. 

 

This Agreement is subject to credit approval. Client authorizes Architect to run a 
Dunn and Bradstreet Report or equivalent to verify Client information, credit 
history, and legal background. If the report findings are determined to be 
unfavorable, the Architect reserves the right to either require Client to render a 
retainer up to the contract amount to guarantee payment hereunder or 
terminate this Agreement for cause. 

This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without prior written 
approval of the other party. If Client assigns this Agreement to an affiliate or 
institutional lender providing financing for the project, such affiliate or lender 
shall assume Client’s rights and obligations. Architect shall have no obligation to 
execute lender certifications required to facilitate assignments. 

ARTICLE IX - SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL 

If any of the provisions contained in this Agreement are held illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable, the enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be 
impaired thereby.  Limitations of liability and indemnities shall survive 
termination of this Agreement for any cause. 

ARTICLE X – AFFIRMATIVE ACTION NOTICE/EMPLOYEE LABOR LAW RIGHTS 

Affirmative Action Notice: This Professional Service Provider and Subconsultants 
shall abide by the requirements of 41 CFR 60-741.5(a).  This regulation prohibits 
discrimination against qualified individuals on the basis of disability, and requires 
affirmative action by covered Professional Service Provider and Subconsultants to 
employ and advance in employment qualified individual with disabilities. 

Employee Labor Law Rights:  Vendors and Subconsultants are notified that they may 
be subject to the provisions of Executive Order 13496, 29 CFR Part 471, Appendix A.  

ARTICLE XI – HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

Architect and Architect’s consultants shall have no responsibility for the 
discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of or exposure of persons to 
hazardous materials in any form at the Project site, including but not limited to 
asbestos, asbestos products, poly-chlorinated biphenyl (PCB), lead-based paints, 
molds, or other toxic substances.   

ARTICLE XII – ADA COMPLIANCE AND LEED COMPLAINCE 

Architect’s review and evaluation for ADA is performed upon the Architect’s best 
knowledge, information, and belief based on what Architect’s observations have 
revealed, and Architect’s interpretation of the ADA requirements.  The Architect 
and Architect’s consultants have no responsibility relative to the total compliance 
of the project with Americans with Disability Act (ADA).   

Architect’s review and evaluation for LEED is performed upon the Architect’s best 
knowledge, information, and belief based on what Architect’s observations have 
revealed, and Architect’s interpretation of the LEED requirements.  The Architect 
cannot, however, guarantee LEED certification or the actual performance of the 
building based on the Consultant’s design drawings, specification, or resource use 
or consumption modeling for the Project, nor can it guarantee certain 
performance levels anticipated through the LEED-certification process. 

ARTICLE XIII – PROMOTIONAL MATERIALS 

Architect shall have the right to include representations of the design of the 
Project, including photographs of the exterior and interior, among the Architect’s 
promotional and professional materials.  The Architect’s materials shall not 
include the Client’s confidential or proprietary information if the Client has 
previously advised the Architect in writing of specific information considered by 
the Client to be confidential or proprietary.  

ARTICLE XIV – PROFESSIONAL CREDIT 

Client shall provide professional credit for the Architect on the construction sign 
and in the promotional materials for the Project. 

ARTICLE XV – AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall have the same meaning as 
those in the AIA B141, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner & Architect 
(1997 Version) current as of the date of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XVI – GOVERNING LAW 

The laws of the state of Idaho shall govern the validity of this Agreement, its 
interpretation and performance and any other claims related to it. 

ARTICLE XVII – MEDIATION 

Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this 
Agreement shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to the 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings by either party unless the parties 
mutually agree otherwise. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien 
arising out of Architect’s services, Architect may proceed in accordance with 
applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution 
of the matter by mediation. Non-binding-mediation shall be in accordance with 
the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration 
Association currently in effect.  

ARTICLE XVIII – ATTORNEY’S FEES 

In the event of controversy, claim or action being made, filed, or instituted by the 
Architect to enforce the terms and conditions hereof or arising from the breach 
of any provision hereof, the Architect will be entitled to receive from the Client all 
costs, damages, and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred 
whether or not such controversy or claim is litigated or prosecuted to judgment.   

 



 

February 27, 2014 
 
 
Mr. Bill Carberry, Airport Manager 
City of Twin Falls 
Joslin Field, Magic Valley Regional Airport 
Twin Falls, ID  83301 
 
Re: Magic Valley Regional Airport 

Terminal Building Modification Project   
Twin Falls, ID   
Project No. 14TBD.000 

 
Dear Mr. Carberry: 
 
CSHQA is pleased to submit this revised fee proposal for architectural, interior design, engineering (civil, 
structural, mechanical, electrical, and communications), land-surveying, and financial planning services 
for the above referenced project.  This proposal is based on our understanding of the project from 
discussions and site visits with you in addition to reviewing the FAA Master Plan Update for Magic Valley 
Regional Airport (TWF) completed December 2012; we are also familiar with the Master Plan 
recommendations to expand and remodel some areas of the existing terminal building to meet current 
and future demand capacity within the planning period.  Following is a summary of the terminal 
improvements we understand this project will include. 
 

 Provide additional Sterile Hold Room area to accommodate potential peak-hour enplaned 
passengers.  The existing Hold Room is undersized with inadequate circulation, due, in large part, to 
the passenger screening space that was enlarged and expanded into the existing Hold Room 
following 9/11. 

 Add restrooms to the Sterile Hold Room.  The existing Hold Room has no restrooms, making it 
difficult for passengers to remain in the Hold Room for an extended period of time prior to boarding 
the aircraft.  This results in passengers waiting to proceed through the checkpoint until it is time to 
board the aircraft causing congestion at the passenger screening check point and potential for 
delayed flights. 

 Possibly add a food and beverage concession to the Hold Room (snack bar).  A snack bar is a 
desirable amenity that would improve the passenger experience and encourage passengers to move 
through the screening check point in advance of the boarding time.  

 Provide additional passenger screening area to accommodate additional passenger screening 
equipment and potentially a second screening lane.  TSA requirements continually change with 
evolving protocols, processes, and advancements in technology and equipment.  The design should 
be open and provide flexibility and expandability so that future expansion of the passenger 
screening area does not encroach on adjacent spaces. 

 Provide additional area to move TSA baggage screening behind the ticket counter back wall.  The 
existing Terminal Building was not designed to accommodate checked-baggage screening in the 
Ticket Lobby or anywhere else in the facility. The ETD baggage screening stations in the Ticket Lobby 
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are encroaching on passenger circulation and queuing at the ticket counters and reducing the space 
for potential new or expanded airline service/tenants in the Ticket Lobby.  The “behind-the-wall” 
baggage screening solution is anticipated to include one or two manual feed EDS machines and 
backup ETD open bag search tables.  A mini-inline EDS conveyor system is another potential option, 
but we don’t expect TSA to fund a mini-inline solution, therefore, a mini-inline solution is not 
included in our project scope or fees, but is available as an Additional Task.  Moving the baggage 
screening behind the wall will require building expansion and renovation of existing ATO and 
baggage make-up areas.  The baggage conveyor system will be replaced with a conveyor system that 
delivers bags to the baggage screening area and then to the baggage make-up area. 

 Improve the efficient flow of passengers in the Terminal Ticketing Lobby.  Efficient flow of 
passengers will be restored when baggage screening is removed from the Ticket Lobby.  Minor 
remodeling will be required to restore finishes and return the ticket lobby to its original 
configuration.  This may include upgrading finishes (paint, carpet, and ticket counter finishes), 
repositioning ticket counters, and improving the integration of new technology. 

 Restore/preserve space for up to three airline tenants, including ticket counters, ATO, and baggage 
make-up space. The existing Terminal Building was originally designed for three airlines, but TSA 
offices currently occupy the third airline space.  TSA offices and break room may occupy the third 
airline ATO/bag make-up area for the foreseeable future, but the design should preserve the ability 
to convert the space back to a third airline position, with the ability to relocate TSA offices if a third 
airline arrives. 

 Other related work may include upgrades to security doors (to add card reader access controls) and 
the addition of Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) video surveillance systems. 

 The client has indicated a desire to identify and implement sustainable design goals or standards for 
renovation and expansion areas of the building.  In addition, the existing building should be analyzed 
to determine the potential for LEED certification and to provide sustainability goals, standards and 
practices for future upgrades and remodels.  

 
It is anticipated that the building expansion will occur on the East end of the building since the program 
areas requiring revision are on the East end of the building.  Expansion to the South would impact 
aircraft parking and expansion to the North would impact the terminal roadway and curb front.  With 
this in mind, we will focus our analysis on the East end of the building and design up to three concept 
alternates for expansion and renovation in this area of the building.  There is a significant grade change 
on the East end of the building that will need to be considered when developing design options, 
otherwise, there are no known obstacles that would limit building expansion to the East. 
 
The existing building is Type I construction which allows for unlimited area without fire sprinkler 
systems.  Building expansion areas will be Type I construction.  The expansion area will be designed as a 
precast concrete structural system to match the existing structural system.  Existing mechanical systems 
will either be upgraded for new areas or a stand-alone mechanical system will be designed for new 
areas.  Power systems will be evaluated and upgraded as necessary to support the building expansion 
area. 
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Anticipated project scale and budget 
 
Expansion area:  6,000 – 8,000 square feet 
Renovation area:  6,000 – 8,000 square feet 
Construction budget:  $1,500,000 - $2,000,000 
 
Design Team: 
 
Base Services (prime consultant) 

 Architectural - CSHQA, a professional association (CSHQA) 

 Interior Design - CSHQA 

 Structural Engineering - CSHQA 

 Mechanical Engineering - CSHQA 

 Electrical Engineering - CSHQA 

 Communications Engineering – CSHQA 
 

Specialty Consultant Services 

 Technical Advisor - Harald Gerber (Original building Architect) 

 Civil Engineering/Land Survey/A-E Local Liaison - Riedesel Engineering 

 Financial Planning - Ricondo & Associates, Inc. 
 
Project Scope: 
 
This proposal only includes the scope of services for Task 1:  Schematic Design and Feasibility Study.  
After completing the Task 1 scope of services, we will submit a proposal for Task 2 – Design 
Development through Bidding, and Task 3 – Construction Administration. A basic brief description of the 
services included in Task 1 are noted below; refer to the Fee Matrix (Exhibit A) for a detailed description 
of the tasks, labor rates and hours of labor.  Refer to the enclosed Exhibit documents for a detailed 
description of Architect-retained Specialty Consultant services. 
 
Task 1 - Schematic Design and Feasibility Study 
 

 Preliminary Programming and Building Survey Meeting:  Meet with the Client and stakeholders to 
validate the program requirements identified in the 2012 FAA Master Plan and confirm the detailed 
program requirements including functional space requirements, interior finishes, equipment 
requirements, functional space adjacencies, mechanical, power, lighting, data, security, and other 
special requirements.  This will include one trip to Twin Falls and a meeting with TSA in Boise.  
Follow-up programming discussions will occur in combination with other trips to Twin Falls and 
conference calls as required.   

 Building Survey: Confirm the accuracy of the original Construction Documents, including 
architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, and communications drawings.   
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 Second programming meeting and follow-up Building Survey:  Review the Preliminary Programming 
document with the Client and stakeholders and make revisions as required.  Follow up on building 
survey information that is unclear or incomplete. 

 Prepare Auto-CAD Base drawings including Floor Plans, Ceiling Plans and Roof Plans. 

 Prepare Site Survey drawings for the building expansion area including the identification of utilities. 

 Prepare a Sustainability Analysis of the existing building using LEED-Existing Building (LEED-EB) as 
the baseline for the Analysis.  The review process will identify the potential for LEED-EB certification 
and identify opportunities to enhance the Sustainable features of the building.  The analysis will also 
identify Sustainable Design goals for the building renovation and addition.  It is important to note 
that it is highly unlikely that the building can achieve any level of LEED certification without a 
comprehensive approach to the entire building, but this analysis will identify worthwhile Sustainable 
Upgrades and Practices that can be considered for implementation.  

 Prepare three Concept Floor Plan alternatives to address the program requirements. 

 Review the Concept Floor Plans with the Client and identify the preferred alternative. 

 Prepare Schematic Design Drawings and outline Specifications based on the preferred concept 
alternative (30% Design). 

 Review the Schematic Design drawings with the Client. 

 Incorporate Client-requested revisions to the Schematic Design drawings. 

 Prepare an Opinion of Probable Construction Cost based on the Schematic Design drawings. 

 Prepare Financial Planning Analysis and Report. 

 Prepare a bound Feasibility Study document including:  table of contents, building program, concept 
alternatives/narratives, Schematic Design drawings, Opinion of Probable Construction Cost, and 
Financial Planning Report. 

 Review the Feasibility Study documents with the Client (including the Airport Board).  Hold a public 
open house at the Airport and invite the public to view the Plans and provide comment. 

 Present the Schematic Design to the Twin Falls City Council for approval. 

 Assist the Client with preparing FAA Grant applications including completing the forms and providing 
supporting documents. 

 
We propose to provide Schematic Design and Feasibility Study services on a Fixed Fee basis plus 
Reimbursable Expenses as listed in the enclosed (Exhibit A). 
 
Proposed Project Schedule: 
 
Task 1:  March 2014 – June 2014 
Pending scheduled completion of Task 1 following is the proposed schedule for Tasks 2 and 3: 
Task 2:  July 2014 – January 2015 () 
Task 3:  March 2015 – November 2015 
 
Reimbursable Expenses such as, but not limited to, materials, supplies, reproduction costs (plans, 
manuals, reports), travel-related expenses, and permit fees  will be charged at a multiple of one and ten-
hundredths (1.10) times the actual cost to the Architect.  Employee’s time for Additional Tasks including 
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modifications to the above scope will be charged at 2.75 times the employee’s direct personnel expense 
or as negotiated on a Fixed Fee basis with the Client prior to commencing services.  
 
This proposal includes a Reimbursable Expense for “Submittal Exchange”, a secure online file 
management, information archive and file sharing service that will enhance communication between 
the design team and client.  The Submittal Exchange product is job specific (for this project only) and will 
be used from project beginning to end, including Schematic Design, Construction Documents, and 
Construction Administration.  It will provide the Client and Design Team a well-organized archival record 
of important documents at the end of the project.  Submittal Exchange could be purchased in a later 
phase of the project (for Construction Administration only), but the full value of the product will only be 
realized, if the product is purchased at the beginning of the project.  
 
The following services are not included in the above scope but are available as an Additional Task. 

 Environmental Testing (asbestos, Lead, soil contamination, or any other). 

 Hazardous Materials Abatement. 

 3-D renderings. 

 Change Orders initiated by the Client to add scope or re-design after design approval. 

 TSA - Mini-inline EDS baggage conveyor system design. 

 Design Development Documents. 

 Construction Documents. 

 Bidding 

 Construction Administration. 
 

Enclosed is a Technical Service Agreement for the above services.  Upon your approval of these services, 
please sign the Agreement and return an executed copy to this office.  Commencement of the services 
described above will be initiated upon receipt of an executed Agreement. If the services noted in this fee 
proposal are not contracted within 60-days from the date of the letter, then the proposal shall be 
subject to review and subsequent revisions. 

 
We appreciate this opportunity and look forward to working with you on this project.  If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CSHQA, a professional association  
 
 
Martin Hahle, AIA 
 
Enclosures 
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__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Request:  To adopt an ordinance for a zoning district change and zoning map amendment from R-4 

to RB; Residential Business, for property located at the north west corner of Filer Avenue and 
Adams Street. 
 

Time Estimate:  Staff presentation will be five (5 +/-) minutes.  This is not a public hearing item but there 
may be an additional five (5) minutes for questions by the City Council. 
 

Background:  On January 14, 2014 a request for a zoning district change and zoning map 
amendment from R-4 to RB; Residential Business, for property located at the north west corner 
of Filer Avenue and Adams Street was presented to the Planning & Zoning Commission.  There 
was no public testimony given.  Upon conclusion of the public hearing the Commission 
unanimously recommended approval of the amendment as presented.  On February 10,  2014 the 
City Council held a public hearing on this request whereby they unanimously granted approval 
as presented and directed staff to prepare an ordinance to be presented for adoption at a later 
meeting.   
 

Approval Process:  To rezone property Twin Falls City Code requires a public hearing before the 
Planning & Zoning Commission who shall make a recommendation on the proposed amendment 
to the City Council.  The City Council shall then hold at least one public hearing regarding the 
proposed amendment.  The City Council is tasked to approve the amendment as presented, deny 
the amendment or remand back to the Commission with changes.   

 
As per Title 10; Chapter 14; …in the event the Council shall approve an amendment, such 
amendment shall thereafter be made a part of this Title upon the preparation and passage of an 
ordinance.  The ordinance shall be published within 30 days of adoption.  Upon publication the 
ordinance shall be codified into the code.  
 

Budget Impact:  Adoption of the ordinance will allow the property owner to pursue a building 
permit to develop the property.    

 
Regulatory Impact:  Twin Falls City Code 10-14-1 thru 7 

 
Conclusion:  On February 10, 2014 the City Council unanimously approved the request for a 

Zoning District Change and Zoning Map Amendment from R-4 to RB; Residential Business, for 
a .22 +/- acre undeveloped parcel of land located at the north west corner of Filer Avenue and 
Adams Street as presented and directed staff to prepare and present an ordinance.  Staff 
recommends the City Council adopt the ordinance so it can be published and codified.     
 

Attachments:   Ordinance   and  Attachments 

Date:       MARCH  10, 2014 
 
To:       Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:      Mitchel Humble, Community Development Director 















 

 

AMENDED STAFF REPORT 

 

Request:   To adopt an resolution Ordinance to amend Twin Falls City Code 10‐9‐9(K); Real Estate 
Signs, to allow temporary real estate open house signs in the public right‐of‐way under specific 
conditions. 
 

Time Estimate: Staff presentation to take less than five (5) minutes.  This is not a public hearing item but 
there may be an additional five (5) minutes for questions by the City Council. 
 

Background:  On March 03, 2014 the City Council granted a request to amend Twin Falls City Code 
10-9-9(K); Real Estate Signs,  to allow temporary real estate open house signs in the public 
right-of-way under specific conditions.  

 
Approval Process:  To amend Title 10 of the Twin Falls City Code requires a public hearing before 

the Planning & Zoning Commission who shall make a recommendation on the request to the 
City Council.  The City Council shall then hold at least one public hearing regarding the request.  
The City Council is tasked to either approve as presented, deny or remand back to the 
Commission with changes.  Upon granting a request to amend Title 10 the council shall adopt 
an ordinance.  The ordinance shall be published within 30 days of adoption.  Upon publication 
the ordinance shall be codified into the code. 
 

Budget Impact:  none 
 

Regulatory Impact:  Twin Falls City Code 10-14-1 thru 7 
 

Conclusion:  On March 03, 2014 the City Council granted the request as presented and directed 
staff to present an ordinance.  Staff recommends the City Council adopt the ordinance so it can 
be published and codified.    
 

Attachments:    
 
1. Ordinance 

 

 

Date:    MARCH 10, 2014 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Mitch Humble, Community Development Director 



REAL ESTATE OPEN HOUSE SIGNS - 1 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TWIN 
FALLS, IDAHO, AMENDING TWIN FALLS CITY CODE §10-9-9(K) 
BY PERMITTING OPEN HOUSE SIGNS OFF PREMISES AND 
WITHIN THE RIGHT OF WAY SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO:  

 
 That Twin Falls City Code §10-9-9(K) regulating real estate signs is amended by the 

addition of a new subsection (K)(3) as follows: 
 
“10-9-9: ALLOWABLE SIGNS THAT DO NOT REQUIRE THE ISSUANCE OF A 
SIGN PERMIT: … 
 
(K) Real Estate Signs: … 
 

3. Open House Real Estate Signs: Open house real estate signs, both on 
premises and off premises, are permissible subject to the following 
conditions: 
a. Time: 

(1) Open house signs may only be permitted on the public right of 
way one (1) hour before and one (1) hour after a scheduled open 
house. The total time an open house sign will be permitted on the 
public right of way shall not exceed five (5) hours in one (1) day. 
(2) No open house sign shall block the access of any public right of 
way so as to prevent passage by the general public including 
wheelchair access. 
(3) All open house signs are to be removed from the public right of 
way within one (1) hour after the completion of the open house. 
(4) Open house signs are permitted only during the hours between 
sunrise and sunset. 

b. Manner: 
(1) Real estate open house signs placed on a sidewalk shall have a 
pedestrian or wheelchair passageway of a minimum of 36”. 
(2) Real estate open house signs shall not exceed nine (9) square feet 
in area. 
(3) Real estate open house signs shall not be place in a manner that 
would obstruct an ADA sidewalk ramp. 
(4) Real estate open house sign place in the right of way will not 
exceed 36” in height. 
(5) Real estate open house signs may not be illuminated, either 
internally or externally.” 

 



REAL ESTATE OPEN HOUSE SIGNS - 2 

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, March __, 2014. 
 
SIGNED BY THE MAYOR March __, 2014. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
MAYOR  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
DEPUTY CITY CLERK 



 
 
 

Request: 
Adopt a resolution of the City Council of the City of Twin Falls authorizing certain city officials to receive informal bids, 
objections and specifications and procedures and to approve the lowest responsible bid in the informal bidding 
process. 

 
Time Estimate: 

The presentation will take approximately 5 minutes in addition to time needed for answering questions. 
 
Background: 

Idaho Code Sections 67-2805 and 67-2806 provide the process and the guidance on how local government units 
procure services and capital assets.  The estimated dollar value of the service or asset is used to determine the type 
of bidding process used by the local government.  Public works construction projects $25,000 - $100,000 and 
procurement of services or personal property $25,000 - $50,000 follow a process referred to as the informal bidding 
process.  
  
The informal bidding process requires receipt of bids by the “clerk, secretary or other authorized official.”  In the past, the 
City Council authorized the City Manager and/or his designee(s) to receive the informal bids.  In an effort to clarify who is 
authorized to approve the lowest responsive bid by the governing board or board-authorized official, the City Manager is  
requesting the City Council approve the attached resolution which will allow the City Manager, Chief Financial Officer (City 
Clerk/Treasurer), Chief of Police, Fire Chief, City Engineer, Public Works Director, Streets Superintendent, Water 
Superintendent, Community Development Director, Human Resource Director, Information Services Director, Parks and 
Recreation Director, and Airport Manager to receive informal bids, objections to specifications and procedures, and to 
approve the lowest responsive bid for informal bidding of public works construction projects ($25,000 - $100,000) and 
procurement of services or personal property ($25,000 - $50,000). 
 

Approval Process:  
Approval of the proposed resolution is a simple majority vote of the City Council members present.  

 
Budget Impact: 

There is no impact associated with the proposed resolution. 
 

Regulatory Impact: 
The informal bidding process is discussed and defined in the Idaho Code Sections 67-2805 and 67-2806. 
 

Attachments 
1. Proposed Resolution.  
2. Idaho Code 67-2805. 
3. Idaho Code 67-2806. 

 

Date:  Monday, March 10, 2014 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Travis Rothweiler, City Manager 
  
  



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS, 
IDAHO, AUTHORIZING CERTAIN CITY OFFICIALS TO RECEIVE 
INFORMAL BIDS, OBJECTIONS TO SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES, 
AND TO APPROVE THE LOWEST RESPONSIVE BID. 

 
WHEREAS, Idaho Code §§ 67-2805 and 67-2806 provide procedures for informal bidding 

of projects and procurement of services or personal property; and, 
WHEREAS, the informal bidding process requires receipt of bids by the “clerk, secretary or 

other authorized official”; and, 
WHEREAS, the informal bidding process provides for the approval of the lowest responsive 

bid by the governing board or board-authorized official; and, 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has requested authorization of certain positions to receive 

informal bid proposals and objections, and to approve the lowest responsive bid. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO: 

 
That the following officials are hereby authorized to receive informal bids, objections to 

specifications and procedures, and to approve the lowest responsive bid, for informal bidding of 
public works construction projects ($25,000 - $100,000) and procurement of services or personal 
property ($25,000 - $50,000): 

 City Manager 
 Chief Financial Officer (City Clerk/Treasurer) 
 Chief of Police 
 Fire Chief 
 City Engineer 
 Public Works Director 
 Streets Superintendent 
 Water Superintendent 
 Community Development Director 
 Human Resource Director 
 Information Services Director 
 Parks and Recreation Director 
 Airport Manager 

 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL , 2014. 
SIGNED BY THE MAYOR , 2014. 
 

___________________________________ 
  MAYOR  

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

























 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request:  Adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign/submit the application materials for 
an Idaho Community Development Block Grant (ICDBG) to partially finance infrastructure 
development for Clif Bar’s new baking facility. 
 
Time:  Roughly 15 minutes 
 
Background: The City of Twin Falls is eligible to apply for Idaho Community Development Block 
Grant funds to partially finance the range of infrastructure improvements that Clif Bar requires 
to begin construction of their new baking facility on the east side of the community.  This initial 
application will provide assistance to build a sub‐station providing power to the new plant. 
 
History: During the recruitment of Clif Bar, staff from the Idaho Department of Commerce 
participated in the negotiations and indicated that should the City be successful in receiving a 
commitment from Clif Bar to locate in Twin Falls then the City would be eligible to apply for two 
Idaho Community Development Block Grants to support the construction of critical 
infrastructure.  This application is the first of two requesting financial support from the State’s 
small cities’ program. 
 
Budget Impact:  This application for funding from the ICDBG program does require matching 
funds.  It is anticipated the Twin Falls Urban Renewal Agency will provide all the necessary 
match for this project. 
 
Regulatory Impact:  None – although the ICDBG funds do come with federal strings attached, 
the City of Twin Falls has implemented the majority of the requirements during the completion 
of previous ICDBG funded projects in the community. 
 
Conclusion:  Recommendation is to adopt the resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign and 
submit the ICDBG application materials. 
 
Attachments:   Resolution; Program Overview 
 

 

March 10, 2014, City Council Meeting 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
From:  Carleen Herring, Region IV Development Association 



RESOLUTION #      
 

CITY OF TWIN FALLS 
SIGN AND SUBMIT AUTHORIZATION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL, CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN AND 
SUBMIT AN APPLICATION FOR AN IDAHO COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT TO PARTIALLY 
FINANCE THE CONSTRUCTION OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Twin Falls understands the economic value of supporting business development in 
the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the best interest of the community to assist Clif Bar 
expand its operation to Twin Falls; and  
 
WHEREAS, Clif Bar has committed to constructing a new baking facility in the community, but requires 
access to adequate electrical power; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City has engaged Idaho Power to upgrade the existing power services to support the new 
facility; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City of Twin Falls is seeking the financial assistance of the Idaho Department of Commerce 
through the Idaho Community Development Block Grant program to help finance a portion of these public 
improvements.      
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF TWIN FALLS, IDAHO, 
that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign and submit appropriate application materials to the Idaho 
Department of Commerce for funds to assist the City with the construction of the infrastructure 
improvements that will support job creation and private sector investment.   
 
Adopted this 10th day of March, 2014 
 
 
 
             
Don Hall, Mayor  
 
 
 
Attest:                                                                                            

   Leila Sanchez, Deputy City Clerk 
 



 
 
Economic Development Grants - Idaho Community Development Block Grant  
 
Infrastructure to support job creation – eligible projects 
a. Projects designed to construct or expand public infrastructure, such as water, 

wastewater, streets, power, railroads, or other infrastructure systems that are 
necessary for a specific business development or expansion.  

 
b. Projects designed to construct or expand publicly regulated utilities such as 

natural gas, electrical systems or telecommunications that are necessary for a 
specific business development or expansion.  

 
Economic Development - Job Creation projects combine eligible activities to 
stimulate private investment and expand economic opportunities, especially to low-
and-moderate-income persons. Business expansion projects generally address the 
HUD low-and-moderate-income national objective by resulting in permanent job 
creation. At least 51 percent of the newly created jobs will then be held by low-and-
moderate-income persons. Family income must be certified by the employee at the 
time of hire in a confidential income survey or be documented through an Idaho 
Department of Commerce-approved screening referral agency.  Job creation from 
economic development projects must occur within two years from the completion of 
the public infrastructure project.  
 
Idaho Community Development Block Grants (CDBG) are available to cities and 
counties and generally do not exceed $500,000 of grant funds. 
  
 
Strings attached: 

 Environmental Protection 
 Fair Housing 
 Anti-Displacement and Relocation Assistance 
 Handicapped Accessibility 
 Limited English Proficiency Language Access Plan 
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Public Hearing:      MONDAY   MARCH 10, 2014 

To:             Honorable Mayor Hall & City Council 

From:        Jonathan Spendlove, Planning and Zoning 

ITEM IV- 

 

Request: Request for a PUD Agreement Amendment to amend the WS&V PUD Agreement #263 to allow a mixed 

use development; consisting of professional and residential uses, on the remaining four (4) undeveloped 

lots within the WS&V First Amended Subdivision-A PUD, consisting of lots 2-5 Block 1 and totaling 16 (+/-) 

acres, located west of the 1000 block of Field Stream Way and southwest of Cheney Drive West, 

extended c/o John O Fitzgerald,II on behalf of WS&V, LLC (app. 2614) 

 

Time Estimate: 

The applicant’s presentation may take up to fifteen (15) minutes.  Staff presentation will be approximately ten (10) 

minutes. 

 

Background: 

Applicant: Status:  Owner/Developer Size:  16 (+/-) Acres   

 

W S & V, LLC c/o 

Douglas Vollmer 

P.O. Box 31 

Twin Falls, ID 83303 

208-420-5650 

doug@areaidaho.com 

 

Current Zoning:  R-6 PRO PUD Requested Zoning:  Amendment to 

WS&V PUD Agreement #263 and 

Master Development Plan 

Comprehensive Plan:  Urban Village/ 

Urban Infill 

Lot Count: 4 Lots 

Existing Land Use:  Undeveloped Proposed Land Use:  mixed use; 

professional and residential 

Representative: Zoning Designations & Surrounding Land Use(s) 

John O. Fitzgerald, II 

Worst, Fitzgerald, and 

Stover, P.L.L.C.  

P.O. Box 1428 

Twin Falls, ID 83303 

jof@magicvalleylaw.com 

 

 

North:  C-1 PUD, agricultural East: R-2; Field Stream Way; 

Fieldstone Subdivision- residential 

South: R-2; Xavier Charter school and 

LDS Church Building 

West: R-1 VAR AoI; Creekside Way 

(Extended) agricultural 

Applicable Regulations: 10-1-4, 10-1-5, 10-6-1.1 thru 1.4, 10-14-1 thru 7,  and the 

WS&V PUD Agreement #263 and Master Development Plan 

Approval Process: 

The first step in the approval process for a PUD amendment is a preliminary presentation before the Planning and 
Zoning Commission; this took place on Jan 28th 2014. The Second step is a recommendation from the Planning 
and Zoning Commission (this public hearing) that will be forwarded to the City Council. The City Council will then 
render their final decision on the amendment to the PUD Agreement.   

 

Budget Impact: 

Approval of this request will impact the City budget as developed property may be assessed at a higher value than 

undeveloped property.  

mailto:doug@areaidaho.com
mailto:jof@magicvalleylaw.com
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Regulatory Impact: 

After a public hearing, a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission for the requested change will 

allow the request to proceed to the City Council for a decision. 

 

History: 

On November 6, 2006 the City Council approved annexation of 36.5 (+/-) acres, which includes this property that is 

being proposed for a zoning amendment this evening.  The site was annexed with the existing R-2 zoning 

designation.  Ordinance #2884 was adopted on November 13, 2006, and later recorded. 

 

On July 8, 2008 the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints was granted a Special Use Permit to construct a 

religious facility on a 5 (+/-) acre parcel located at the southeast corner of this property. On April 25, 2012 the 

Planning & Zoning Commission reactivated Special Use Permit #1102. As of this date the church has not been 

constructed. 

 

The WS&V Conveyance Plat, consisting of 30 (+/-) acres and 2 lots, was approved & later recorded on March 12, 

2009.  The Xavier Charter School was granted a Special Use Permit on December 16, 2008 to develop a public 

charter school on the southwest corner of this property.  The Xavier Subdivision, consisting of 1 - 8.5(+/-) acre 

lot, was approved by the City Council and recorded on August 19, 2009.   The school has been in operation since 

2010.   

 

The Cottages, a residential R-4 PUD, was approved by the City Council on Feb 9, 2009.   Ordinance #2964 was 

adopted on March 23, 2009 and later recorded.  The project consisted of 6 (+/-) acres located north of the LDS 

church site and on the west side of Field Stream Way.  The project was not developed and was included with a 

zoning request to rezone 20 acres, including the cottages, in 2010 under an R-6 PRO PUD designation.    

 

A Preliminary PUD presentation for a Zoning District and Zoning Map Amendment from R-2 & R-4 PUD to R-6 PRO 

PUD was given to the Planning and Zoning Commission on Tuesday, August 10, 2010 followed by a public 

hearing on August 24, 2010. The City Council approved the request on Sept 20, 2010.  Ord #2992 was later 

recorded.  The PUD Agreement was adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2012/recorded on April 18, 2012. 

 

On February 6, 2012 The Council approved the final plat of the WS&V Subdivision – A PUD, subject to seven 

conditions.  

 

A Preliminary Presentation for a request to allow a PUD Agreement Amendment, for a 60-unit residential apartment 

complex on Lot 1, +/- 5 acres within the subdivision, was held on September 11, 2012. This was followed by a 

public hearing on September 25, 2012 for PUD Agreement Amendment. The City Council approved the request 

for the PUD Amendment on October 22, 2013. 

 

On November 2, 2012 the WS&V Subdivision – A PUD plat was recorded; approval had been given in February of 

2012. 

 

On January 28th 2014, a preliminary presentation was given to the Planning and Zoning Commission on a PUD 

Agreement Amendment to allow a mixed use development on lots 2-5 of the WS&V Subdivision – A PUD. 
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Analysis: 

A Preliminary Presentation for the Commission to consider a request for a PUD Agreement Amendment to amend 

the WS&V PUD Agreement #263 to allow a mixed use development; consisting of professional office and 

residential uses, on the remaining undeveloped lots within the WS&V First Amended Subdivision -A PUD, 

consisting of lots 2-5 Block 1 and totaling 16 (+/-) acres, located west of the 1000 block of Field Stream Way and 

southwest of Cheney Drive West, extended. 

There are multiple proposed changes to Exhibit “C” in the PUD Agreement. For organizational purposes 

staff has numbered and annotated the proposed changes as follows: 

#1. Land Use Regulations – (A) Permitted Uses and (B) Special Uses: “Doctor’s Office” was listed under 

both the Permitted Uses and Special Uses sections; the amendment has eliminated the listing 

under Special Uses, leaving the use in the Permitted Uses section. In so doing, the numbering of 

categories in the Permitted Section was also amended to reflect that “Doctor’s Office” is a type of 

use found under the category of “Medical Facility” and not a separate use unto itself.  

 

According to the applicant, this amendment was performed in order to eliminate conflict within the 

document. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this change. 

 

#2. Land Use Regulations – (A) Permitted Uses:  

6. Residential (Unrestricted hours of operation): 

  a. Detached Accessory accessory buildings (less than 1,000 square feet), 

 

According to the applicant, this amendment was performed in order to clarify that accessory buildings 

are to be detached accessory buildings. Current City code does make a distinction between these two 

types of accessory buildings. Current City Code 10-4-6: R-6 Residential Multi-Household: lists accessory 

buildings (under 1,000 square feet) as a permitted use. The Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of this change. 

 

#3. Land Use Regulations – (A) Permitted Uses:  

 6. Residential (Unrestricted hours of operation): 

  e. Dwellings – multiple household (max 6 8 units), 

 

According to the applicant, this amendment originated from the applicants original application. The 

applicant points towards the Devon Senior Housing Project located at 1338 North College Road East as 

an example of a conceptual design of a portion of this subject property. Specifically, this amendment 

changes the outright permitted use of a multiple household from 6 dwelling units per building, to 8 

dwelling units per building. The Planning and Zoning Commission did not recommend approval of this 

change. The Commission amended this section during deliberations and voted to remove the proposed 

change from the document. 

 

#4. Land Use Regulations – (B) Special Uses: 

7. Residential 
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 a. Detached accessory buildings (more than 1,000 square feet) associated to a residential use 

i.e., carports, garages, clubhouse and other accessory buildings, 

 

According to the applicant, this amendment was performed in order to clarify the types of detached 

accessory buildings that may need a special use permit if they are more than 1,000 square feet. The 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this change. 

 

#5. Land Use Regulations – (B) Special Uses: 

7. Residential 

 f. Dwellings – Multiple household (more than 8 units to a maximum of 12 units) 

 

According to the applicant, this amendment originated from the applicants original application. The 

applicant points towards the Devon Senior Housing Project located at 1338 North College Road East as 

an example of a conceptual design of a portion of this subject property. Specifically, this amendment 

will require a project that wishes to have more than the outright permitted number of 8 dwelling units 

per building to get a Special Use Permit before establishing the use. It also places a maximum of 12 

dwelling units per building on the project. The Planning and Zoning Commission did not recommend 

approval of this change. The Commission amended this section during deliberations and voted to 

remove the proposed change from the document. 

 

 

#6. Land Use Regulations – (D) Property Development Standards: 

1. Use of Lots: Under section (A) PERMITTED USES hereinabove, Each each building, except 

accessory structures buildings, shall be located on a separate lot and each such lot and the 

buildings or structures thereon shall conform to the minimum dimensional standards contained 

herein. Under section (B) SPECIAL USES hereinabove, multiple buildings, including accessory 

buildings, may be located on a lot and each such lot and the buildings or structures thereon 

shall conform to the minimum dimensional standards contained herein. 

 

According to the applicant, this amendment was performed to facilitate WS&V’s development and 

marketing of the subject property in a manageable process yet providing governmental oversight, input 

and approvals, including opportunity for public comment, without having to trudge through the process 

to amend the PUD Agreement on a project by project or proposal by proposal basis. The applicant 

further explains that this amendment would provide the opportunity for a proposed array of multiple 

buildings consisting of permitted 6 units/building to be constructed on a single lot through the Special 

Use Permit process. The applicant believes this request is wholly consistent with the City of Twin Falls 

desire and intention to allow certain uses outright and other uses only with its oversight and approval, 

including public comment. The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this 

change. 

 

#7. Land Use Regulations – (D) Property Development Standards: 
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7. Access: all lots shall have a vehicular access on a dedicated improved public street with a fifty 

foot (50’) minimum right of way, unless a secondary means of permanent vehicular access has 

been approved on a subdivision plat, or by a recorded easement. 

 

The applicant did not provide a reason for requesting this amendment to the PUD. During the 

presentation with the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant withdrew this change to the 

document. All language associated with this particular request has been removed from the analysis and 

the conditions due to the withdrawal.  

 

#8. Land Use Regulations – (D) Property Development Standards: 

12. Building Standards:  

 a. Buildings: New buildings are to be designed in such a way as to conform with the general 

residential nature of the neighborhood. All buildings shall be of residential character with the 

exteriors of architectural masonry, stone, stucco, or architectural steel siding, wood or 

cementitious materials (e.g. Hardie board). Building faces shall include windows, setbacks, 

awnings, parapet variations, material variations, color variations and other architectural 

treatments to break up large uniform surfaces. 

 

The applicant did not provide a reason for requesting this amendment to the PUD. The Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended approval of this change. 

 

#9 Land Use Regulations – (D) Property Development Standards: 

12. Building Standards:  

 d. Buildings shall have exteriors of architectural masonry, stone, stucco, or architectural steel 

siding, wood, or cementitious materials (e.g. Hardie board). 

 

The applicant did not provide a reason for requesting this amendment to the PUD. The Planning and 

Zoning Commission recommended approval of this change. 

 

Possible Impacts of the PUD Amendment as listed above: 

 

#1: Staff does not feel this amendment has a significant impact on the development in terms of design and use 

of the property. The changes being made are consistent with Current City Code and the overall design of 

surrounding neighborhoods and existing zoning districts. 

 

#2 & #4: Although City Code does identify detached accessory and accessory buildings differently in our 

definitions, this amendment will clarify any discrepancy that may have existed. Staff does not feel this 

amendment will have a significant impact on the surrounding area in terms of overall design or use of the 

property. 

 

#3, #5, & #6: In 8 years this area has been up-zoned to include a dramatic increase in available dwelling units 

and density. In 2006 the area was annexed as an R-2 zoning designation that requires separate lots for each 

building, and a maximum of 2 dwelling units per building, and no commercial aspect to the development. In 
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2009, a portion of that area was zoned R-4, which still requires separate lots for buildings, and a maximum of 4 

dwelling units in one building (per special use permit). This rezone also brought an inclusion of some 

commercial/office aspect into a portion of the property. In 2010 the entirety (both R-2 and R-4 PRO areas) was 

again rezoned to R-6 PRO, this too required each building to be on its own lot, and put a permitted maximum 

of 6 dwelling units per building. In 2012, a PUD Amendment was approved for a +/- 5 acre portion of the 

project that allowed multiple buildings on one lot, with a maximum of 6 units per building. This current 

amendment is asking to increase the permitted number of units per building as well as allow multiple 

buildings on one lot through a Special Use Permit Process. 

 

The allowance of multiple buildings on one lot is a type of design language not found in any Residential Zone 

in the Twin Falls City Code. This language is found in the Commercial and Industrial zoning code sections. The 

Devon Senior Housing project mentioned by the applicant in their letter is found in the C-1: Commercial 

Highway zoning district. 

 

The amendment to allow 8 dwelling units per building is significantly different from the total allowable units 

that were possible in 2006 when this area was annexed under the R-2 Zoning district, as well as the 

subsequent rezone to R-4 PRO that took place in 2009. The approved R-6 PRO PUD currently in effect does 

place a maximum of 6 dwelling units per building. The base R-6 Zoning District does not have a maximum 

dwelling unit built into the current code. However, the increase in available density from 6 to 8 units will have 

an impact on the current uses in the area as well as the potential surrounding uses if approved. Per City Code 

10-6-1.3(A): “In residential zoning subdistricts, the number of units per building shall be determined by 

commission and council action.”  

 

The potential for an increase in the amount of possible dwelling units will have an impact on water and sewer 

services in the area. The recorded subdivision and its lots were calculated at a certain rate of usage for water 

and sewer. We are unable to determine the actual impacts that may occur due to the conceptual nature of the 

submitted development plan. Typically, we would be able to ascertain the impacts of these types of 

developments on a case by case basis when they went through the subdivision process. If the amendment to 

allow multiple buildings on a lot is approved, we do not have a mechanism that provides for this modeling to 

be required prior to development of the land. Therefore the extent of the impacts on the surrounding area 

cannot be determined at this time. We need a new infrastructure model of the water and sewer systems take 

place prior to any development on Lots 2-5 of the WS&V Subdivision First Amended, due to the changes in 

capacity being proposed, because there is no way to responsibly size the infrastructure. The flexibility sought 

by the applicant means the infrastructure size is likely to be too big or too small. 

 

#8: Staff does not feel this amendment has a significant impact on the development in terms of design and use 

of the property. The changes being made are consistent with Current City Code and the overall design of 

surrounding neighborhoods and existing zoning districts. 

 

On February 11, 2014 the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on this request.  There 

were numerous comments from the public which can be reviewed in the approved Minutes (see 

Attachment #7). Upon conclusion of the public hearing, a motion and recommendation were made by 

the Planning and Zoning Commission as follows: 
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Motion: 

Commissioner Tatum made a motion to approve the request, as presented, with the following amendments: 

to allow Dwellings-Multiple household with a maximum of 6 units as a permitted use, and to remove the 

Dwellings-multiple household allowing more than 8 units to a maximum of 12 units as allowed through 

Special Use Permit. Commissioners Boyd, Derricott, Frank, Grey, Munoz, Sharp, Tatum & DeVore voted in 

favor of the motion, and Commissioner Woods voted against the motion. 

 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST, AS AMENDED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING 

COMMISSION, AND AS PRESENTED, WITH STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.  Subject to amendments as required by Building, Engineering, Fire, and Zoning Officials to ensure 

compliance with all applicable City Code requirements and standards and the WS&V PUD #263; a R-

6 PRO Planned Unit Development. 

2.  Subject to a new infrastructure model for sewer and water systems, and corresponding 

construction plans, being approved by the City prior to any development occurring on lots 2-5 of 

the WS&V Subdivision First Amended. 

 

Attachments: 

 

1. Letter of Request (5) 

2. Zoning Vicinity & Aerial Map (1) 

3. Applicant Submitted Development Plan (1) 

4. Current WS&V PUD Agreement (9) 

5. Proposed Amendment / Changes (6) 

6. Site Photos (2) 

7. Feb 11, 2014 P&Z minutes (8) 

8. Applicant Submitted Site Overview (1) 
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Planning & Zoning Commission Minutes 
February 11, 2014 
 

Deliberations Followed:  

 Commissioner Munoz stated that he reviewed the sign code and what is allowed currently. The 
sign code makes enforcement easier and  rather  than studying a massive PUD  to make sure  it 
meets the PUD Agreement criteria. The current sign code is much more restrictive than what is 
in  the PUD Agreement.  It won’t  fix signs  that are not  in currently  in compliance but  it will be 
much easier to enforce in the future.  

 
Motion: 
Commissioner Tatum made a motion  to  recommend approval of  the  request, as presented, with 
staff recommendations. Commissioner Woods seconded the motion. All members present voted in 
favor of the motion.  
 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL, AS PRESENTED, WITH STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS  
1. Subject to Master Development Plan amendments as required by Building, Fire, Engineering and 

Zoning Officials to ensure compliance with all applicable City Code requirements and standards. 

2. Subject to recordation of Magic Valley Mall, LLC PUD Agreement #215; 2014 Amendment, as 

approved by the City Council, prior to development of this site. 

SCHEDULE FOR PUBLIC HEARING WITH CITY COUNCIL MARCH 10, 2014 
 

2. Request for the Commission’s recommendation on a request for a PUD Agreement Amendment to 
amend  the  WS&V  PUD  Agreement  #263  to  allow  a  mixed  use  development;  consisting  of 
professional office and residential uses, on the remaining undeveloped  lots within the WS&V First 
Amended Subdivision‐A PUD, consisting of lots 2‐5 Block 1 and totaling 16 (+/‐) acres, located west 
of  the 1000 block of Field Stream Way and  southwest of Cheney Drive West, extended  c/o  John O 
Fitzgerald, II on behalf of WS&V, LLC (app. 2614) 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
John Fitzgerald,  II, representing the applicant, stated they are here to request an amendment that 
will  help  to  move  the  process  forward  with  some  clarification.  He  reviewed  the  area  on  the 
overhead and what  is surrounding the property. The property to the east of this development has 
been rezoned to R‐4 PRO through a PUD Agreement. The first amendment is a clarification making  
 
Dr.  Office’s  an  allowed  use without  a  Special  Use  Permit  process.  The  second  amendment  is  a 
clarification that detached accessory buildings be allowed without a Special Use Permit  if  less than 
1000 sq.  ft  in size. The next amendment  is an amendment  to  the  land use  regulations  the PUD  is 
written presently it provides for 6 units per building. The applicant is asking that this be amended to 
allow for 8 units per building as a permitted use. This is in line with the concept initially presented; 
the Devon Senior Housing project would be the concept that they have for the development. Part of 
the problem with this project  in and of  itself  is that  it  is conceptual  in nature. This  is not a typical 
PUD in which a master development plan is presented. What they are looking for is to provide a list 
of  permitted  uses  and  special  uses  consistent with  the  concept  of  how  the  property would  be 
marketed  and  developed.  To  be  consistent with  that  concept  is  amending  the  PUD  Agreement 
allowing  8  units  which  would  be  consistent  with  the  Devon  Senior  Housing  project.  The  next 
amendment #4 is a clarification associated with detached accessory building larger than 1000 sq. ft. 
associated with  residential  carports  and  clubhouses.    The next  item  in  conjunction with  taking 6 
units up  to 8 units  they would  like  to allow anything about 8 units  to a maximum of 12 units be 
allowed by Special Use Permit.  In  the previous hearings  there has been objection associated with 
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this process and it has been misrepresented. It has been implied that the developer is seeking carte 
blanche approval  in other words this  is our concept give us permitted uses and  let us go; thereby 
eliminating governmental oversight and public input. Part of the amendment is to seek a process by 
which this is a less cumbersome process to go through rather than each time a project comes up a 
concept comes up that they have to come back and seek amendments to the PUD Agreement. What 
they have done in this amendment is make seeking a Special Use Permit part of the process which 
allows for governmental oversight and public input. For example if there is a concept or project that 
would fall under the Special Use list then they would come back and request approval through the 
Special  Use  Permit  process  providing  for  input  and  oversight.  That  is  the  item  that  is  listed  as 
number 6  in the staff report. They are  looking for a mechanism by which this PUD Agreement and 
the projects and conceptual development as  it progresses  into the future  it  is more amenable and 
less burdensome process but  fulfill  the need  for governmental oversight and public  input. One of 
the other  amendments was  the  land use  regulation  associated with  access. They  included  in  the 
statement  “or  by  recorded  easement”  the  applicant  is  willing  to  withdraw  that  from  the 
amendment. The next two  items numbered 8 & 9 were previously approved and  included them  in 
the amendment to show it was part of the previous amendment. That was via a separate document 
he was  trying  to keep all  the changes  together  to make  it all part of one document. These  items 
were approved in October of 2013. With respect to conclusions as it relates to the condition that a 
new water and sewer model be completed, WS&V, LLC  is more  than happy  to cooperate  if  it was 
found to be necessary however with respect to the properties in the area and the owners they are 
working together and in fact have an agreement with respect to the water and sewer systems out in 
the area and Mr. Gerald Martens one of the owners of the land in this area and he can speak more 
specifically  to  that  concern.  In  conclusion  with  respect  to  condition  #2  it  is  being  worked  out 
amongst the property owners.  
 
PZ Questions/Comments: 

 Commissioner Frank asked for clarification of what is being withdrawn. 

 Mr.  Fitzgerald  stated  items  #7  related  to  the  statement  “or  by  recorded  easement” will  be 
removed. 

 
Staff Analysis: 
Planner I Spendlove displayed exhibits on the overhead and review the staff analysis of the request. 
He  stated  this property has  a  long history on  this property  and  in  summary 2006 was when  the 
property was annexed with an R‐2 zone. The applicant is correct in that the property to the ease was 
approved  for  the  rezone,  and  the  rezone  the map  shows R‐2  is because  the ordinance has been 
adopted, once adopted the map will be updated to R‐4 PRO PUD. There have been developments 
surrounding  the  property  Xavier  Charter  School  and  the  LDS  Church  that  is  under  construction. 
There  have  been  various  rezones  and  PUD  amendments  from  approximately  2009‐2012. 
Progressively  these  have  come  through  the  public  hearing  process with  different  items  detailed 
throughout.  As for the analysis the applicant’s representative has reviewed each amendment item 
includes so the staff presentation will be about the possible  impacts this amendment may have on 
the development and surrounding area.  

Possible Impacts of the PUD Amendment as listed above: 

#1: Staff does not feel this amendment has a significant impact on the development in terms of design 

and  use  of  the  property.  The  changes  being made  are  consistent with  Current  City  Code  and  the 

overall design of surrounding neighborhoods and existing zoning districts. 
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#2 & #4: Although City Code does  identify detached accessory and accessory buildings differently  in 

our definitions, this amendment will clarify any discrepancy that may have existed. Staff does not feel 

this amendment will have a significant  impact on the surrounding area  in terms of overall design or 

use of the property. 

 

#3,  #5, &  #6:  In  8  years  this  area  has  been  up‐zoned  to  include  a  dramatic  increase  in  available 

dwelling units and density.  In 2006 the area was annexed as an R‐2 zoning designation that requires 

separate  lots for each building, and a maximum of 2 dwelling units per building, and no commercial 

aspect to the development. In 2009, a portion of that area was zoned R‐4, which still requires separate 

lots  for buildings, and a maximum of 4 dwelling units  in one building  (per  special use permit). This 

rezone also brought an  inclusion of some commercial/office aspect  into a portion of the property. In 

2010 the entirety (both R‐2 and R‐4 PRO areas) was again rezoned to R‐6 PRO, this too required each 

building to be on its own lot, and put a permitted maximum of 6 dwelling units per building. In 2012, a 

PUD Amendment was approved for a +/‐ 5 acre portion of the project that allowed multiple buildings 

on one lot, with a maximum of 6 units per building. This current amendment is asking to increase the 

permitted number of units per building as well as allow multiple buildings on one lot through a Special 

Use Permit Process. 

 

The  allowance  of  multiple  buildings  on  one  lot  is  a  type  of  design  language  not  found  in  any 

Residential Zone  in the Twin Falls City Code. This  language  is found  in the Commercial and Industrial 

zoning code sections. The Devon Senior Housing project mentioned by the applicant  in their  letter  is 

found in the C‐1: Commercial Highway zoning district. 

 

The amendment to allow 8 dwelling units per building is significantly different from the total allowable 

units that were possible in 2006 when this area was annexed under the R‐2 Zoning district, as well as 

the subsequent rezone  to R‐4 PRO that took place  in 2009. The approved R‐6 PRO PUD currently  in 

effect does place a maximum of 6 dwelling units per building. The base R‐6 Zoning District does not 

have a maximum dwelling unit built into the current code. However, the increase in available density 

from  6  to  8  units  will  have  an  impact  on  the  current  uses  in  the  area  as  well  as  the  potential 

surrounding  uses  if  approved.  Per  City  Code  10‐6‐1.3(A):  “In  residential  zoning  subdistricts,  the 

number of units per building shall be determined by commission and council action.”  

 

The potential  for an  increase  in the amount of possible dwelling units will have an  impact on water 

and sewer services in the area. The recorded subdivision and its lots were calculated at a certain rate 

of usage for water and sewer. We are unable to determine the actual impacts that may occur due to 

the conceptual nature of  the submitted development plan. Typically, we would be able  to ascertain 

the  impacts of  these  types of developments on  a  case by  case basis when  they went  through  the 

subdivision process. If the amendment to allow multiple buildings on a lot is approved, we do not have 

a  mechanism  that  provides  for  this  modeling  to  be  required  prior  to  development  of  the  land. 

Therefore the extent of the impacts on the surrounding area cannot be determined at this time. We  
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need  a  new  infrastructure  model  of  the  water  and  sewer  systems  to  take  place  prior  to  any 

development on  Lots  2‐5 of  the WS&V  Subdivision  First Amended, due  to  the  changes  in  capacity 

being proposed, because there  is no way to responsibly size the  infrastructure. The flexibility sought 

by the applicant means the infrastructure size is likely to be too big or too small. 

 

#7: This amendment will have an impact on the design and use of this development. This amendment 

will change the requirement for roadways built within the PUD. They roadways will no longer have the 

requirement to build to City of Twin Falls Standards. The roadways will be private, not maintained or 

accepted by  the City. The development plan does not contain any  internal  roadways, conceptual or 

otherwise. The impacts of allowing roadways to be designated via easement could lead to issues with 

the connectivity to surrounding City Streets. The  impacts cannot be determined at this point due to 

the lack of designated access points on dedicated City Streets.  Has been withdrawn by the applicant 

 

#8: Staff does not feel this amendment has a significant impact on the development in terms of design 

and  use  of  the  property.  The  changes  being made  are  consistent with  Current  City  code  and  the 

overall design of surrounding neighborhoods and existing zoning districts. 

 
 
Planner  I  Spendlove  stated upon  conclusion  should  the Commission  recommend  approval of  the 
request, as presented, staff recommends the following conditions: 

1.  Subject to amendments as required by Building, Engineering, Fire, and Zoning Officials to 

ensure compliance with all applicable City Code requirements and standards and the 

WS&V PUD #263; a R‐6 PRO Planned Unit Development. 

2.  Subject to a new infrastructure model for sewer and water systems, and corresponding 

construction plans, being approved by the City prior to any development occurring on Lots 

2‐5 of the WS&V Subdivision First Amended. 

3.   Subject to a development plan showing private roadway easements, and access points 

onto dedicated public roadways, being approved by the City prior to any development on 

Lots 2‐5 of the WS&V Subdivision First Amended; or proposed amendment “Land Use 

Regulations – (D) Property Development Standards: 7 – Access: …or by a recorded 

easement” being removed from the Amended PUD Agreement. Withdrawn By Applicant 

 
PZ Questions/Comments: 

 Commissioner  Frank  asked Mr. Martens  to  address  the modeling  condition  listed  in  the  staff 
recommendations.  

 Mr. Martens  stated  that  he  is  the  property  owner  to  the  north  of  this  property;  he  is  the 
Engineer  for  this  project  as well  as  the  Fieldstone  Professional development. He  stated  they 
have a new water model dated November 26, 2013 he  is not opposed to review of the model 
and believes it meets all of the requirements.  

 
Public Hearing: Open 

 Gerald Martens state he is here to represent the property owner to the north there have been 
some concerns related to the density and the ability to serve the area. They have worked with 
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this  applicant  on  design.  The water will  serve  both  properties  and  they  are working  to  get 
Cheney Drive West, extended which has taken a long time. There will be additional traffic relief 
concerns  addressed  in  future  plans  for  the  area,  and  from  the  neighbor’s  standpoint  the 
requested amendments will no compromise their property.  

 Megan Humble, 931 Misty Meadows Trail stated she has a couple of concerns with this request. 
In 2006 this was R‐2 zoned, then rezoned to R‐4 then to R‐6 PRO, then 5 acres was allowed to be 
rezoned to allow for 60 apartment units. The request to increase the density is concerning as a 
home  owner  in  the  Fieldstone  Subdivision  to  the  east  of  this  property.  She  believes  the 
comprehensive plan this  is  listed as an urban village mixed use designation. There was already 
an approval  for apartment buildings project on  the  southeast boundary of  this property. She 
realizes this  is a conceptual plan so nobody has any  idea what the development will  look  like; 
with the requested amendments it could conceptually become a big sea of apartments and this 
type of development has already been approved on the other portion of the property. We need 
a different mix of uses  in  this urban village designation. She understands  the need  for  rental 
units in the City it seems there are a lot of other properties that could be used for apartment  
buildings, some on the east side of town that looks great for apartments. There is not a need for 
all of these apartments on this side of town  in this  location. Xavier Charter School generates a 
lot of  traffic  and  this will  just  increase  the  congestion  especially during peak  travel  times.  In 
conclusion  a  similar  request was denied by Planning &  Zoning  and City Council not  long  ago 
nothing has  really changed,  she asked  that  they Commission not  recommend approval of  the 
increased density and multiple apartment buildings on a single lot.  

 Steven Dixon,  1006  Cobble  Creek  Road,  in  the  Fieldstone  Subdivision  he would  like  to  echo 
Megan’s comments and add that he has  issues with adding another  level of complexity to the 
process for someone to request a special use permit every time someone thinks of something 
new. We will be coming back over and over again because there isn’t a plan.   

 City Engineer Fields stated she would like to explain why a water and sewer model in necessary. 
When there is generally known quantity of units being proposed something like with traditional 
subdivision  the  staff can gain an understanding of whether or not  there will be  sufficient  fire 
flow for the neighborhood and to try and avoid any unintended consequences downstream at 
the sewer and water treatment plant. The issue tonight isn’t whether or not the sewage will get 
merely across Pole Line Road the request to be able to look at any proposal that comes out the 
request is to be able to ask that if it looks different that is be modeled to verify that it is or isn’t 
different so that we don’t have an unintended consequence. It is not known to her at this point 
and time how the surrounding neighborhoods are going to develop and what type of fire flow 
needs will have to be met. If the model done in November 2013 is sufficient staff will accept the 
document if it is not sufficient then another model will be requested.  If the model will meet the 
needs and  it matches the needs of the request the staff will work with that  information. If she 
doesn’t understand what the plan is for the large lots then she has to make assumption. This has 
been done in other places around town, and staff has said once the market has been found for 
the property staff will review the plan and figure out what needs to be done to move forward. 
That is the sole purpose for the provision listed in the staff recommendations.  

 Monica  Rojas,  1017  Cobble  Creek  Rd,  a  Fieldstone  resident.  She would  like  to  ask  that  the 
Commission recommend denial. 
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 Kristina Hill, 932 Starlight Loop, stated she is opposed to this request and agrees with previous 
testimony. One  thought  she had  is  that by amending  this document  it makes  it easier  in  the 
future  for  them  to not have  to go  through a process  to approve a project;  there shouldn’t be 
projects  that don’t  fit  into  this  agreement because  the  agreement outlines what was  agreed 
upon at the time of approval. This agreement has changed and the increase density is not what 
we  won’t  in  this  area.  Her  children  attend  the  Xavier  School  and  this  is  her  home,  she  is 
concerned with property values, the feeling that exists currently  in the neighborhood, and she 
asks that this request be denied.  

 Brad Wills, owner of the property to the east of this property stated he has been involved with 
planning out this area and trying to keep  in mind the traffic and construction of Cheney Drive 
West, He  thinks  there  is a need  for more  rentals and  there are other uses  that will probably 
happen  in  this  area  also.  He  requested  that  the  Commission  recommend  approval  of  the 
request. He believes that part of the confusion was that the change involved all of the property 
and it really applied to one lot. He thinks this is a good way to go.  

 Michelle Downard,  933  Rice  Circle  stated  she would  encourage  the  Commission  to  consider 
carefully what makes  it  better  in  the  eyes  of  all  of  the  home  owners  in  the  area when  you 
increase the density. Who  is this benefiting, that  is probably the key  issue and to go from 6 to 
possibly 12  is a huge  jump with existing  traffic problems, and apartment buildings can  impact 
the home values in the area. Consider carefully the little guys instead of the big guys and what is 
best for them and what is best for the neighborhood.  

 Tara Packham, 966 Rice Circle, stated she  lives south of this and was not aware of this request 
previously and she would  like  to echo what Ms. Humble said what  really concerns her  is  that 
plans are being discussed by the developers for property even further west and she hopes that 
she is made aware of those plans. She would request that this be denied.  

 Erika Willsey, 1242 Silver Creek Way, Sunterra Subdivision, she is opposed to this request. There 
was  not  confusion  about  the  changes  that were  approved  for  the  1  lot,  it was  clear.  She  is 
concerned  that  she  has  to  keep  coming  back  to  defend  her  neighborhood;  because  these 
developers want more and more and more slicing more off for their piece of the pie. She would 
request that the public notice signs be posted  in more visible  locations. The neighborhood has 
given enough and they are done.  

 Clint Hales, 213 Edwards, stated he  is building a house  in this area and had he known this was 
the plan he is not sure he would have built in this location. There are a lot of problems with that 
kind of density.  

 
Closing Statement: 

 Mr. Fitzgerald stated the applicant respects the neighbors they are asking for an amendment to 
the process  and  they would  like  to make  the process  less  cumbersome.  They  are  seeking  to 
move  the 6 units  to 8 units and anything above 8 units up  to 12 has  to go  through  the  SUP 
process. It is not carte blanche; they just want to make the process less cumbersome.  

 Commissioner  Frank  asked  if  there  is  anything  that  could  increase  the maximum  allowable 
density with this requested zoning.  

 Planner  I Spendlove stated until a design  is available there  is no way of knowing. The amount 
would be based on the design of the project to determine the amount of land needed for each 
building,  if  the buildings are going  to be upstairs and downstairs or below ground. There  is a 
base number for lot sizes in the R‐6 zone and until staff knows what is going to be there it is not 
possible to calculate the density. 
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 Commissioner Grey the R‐6 Zone takes it from a maximum of six they are requesting a maximum 
of eight. 

 Planner  I Spendlove  stated  that amount would be per  lot under  the R‐6 Zone, what  they are 
requesting  is  to allow multiple units per building and multiple buildings on a  single  lot which 
makes  it  even more  complicated  to  determine  density  calculations  along with  all  the  other 
requirements.  In  summary  this  change  if  approved would  increase  the  number  of  units  in  a 
building and allow multiple buildings on one lot.  

 City Attorney Wonderlich stated he and Planner I Spendlove had a long conversation regarding 
this request and how difficult this is and he is not able to say how dense the project will be with 
all  of  the  additional  requirements  that  have  to  be met. What  is  known  is  that  apartment 
complex  developments  only  have  so  much  room  because  of  parking  and  landscaping 
requirements.  This can’t be calculated without seeing a design for the project.  

 Commissioner Grey wanted to clarify to the audience that until there is a plan there is not a way 
to know what the density will be for the development.  

 City Attorney Wonderlich stated with regards to Mr. Fitzgerald’s presentation he is correct, this 
with the exception of 6‐8 it is primarily a process issue. Currently the way it stands is when they 
choose to develop each lot and decide on a design plan they have to come through the Planning 
&  Zoning  Commission &  City  Council  for  a  PUD  Agreement  Amendment.  This  change would 
require  them  to  come  to  the  Planning  &  Zoning  Commission  through  a  Special  Use  Permit 
process. It would not go to the City Council unless there is an appeal.  

 Commissioner Munoz clarified as the PUD Agreement stands now a 6‐plex is allowed on one lot. 
This change if approved would allow multiple 6‐plexes on a single lot and if they want more than 
6 units and multiple units on one lot they would come through a Special Use Permit process.  

 Planner I Spendlove explained in the current PUD without these changes a 6‐plex can go on one 
lot they would like to raise the number to an 8‐plex and allow multiple buildings on a lot.  

 Commissioner Derricott stated there would still be some restrictions because of the parking and 
landscaping requirements.  

 Commissioner Woods stated he sees a gradual degradation  in a process that the City has used 
for years and only  for  the convenience of  the developer. He would  see  this change making  it 
very difficult for staff to plan for traffic and other development because there is not an existing 
plan. He also  thinks  this would set precedence  if approved and other developers are going  to 
want  the same  thing, and  the City  loses control over  transitioning  from single  family  to multi‐
family.  

 Commissioner Sharp stated his big issue is that the home owners in this area were not aware of 
this plan and was not told that this was going to be the plan and it keeps changing.  

 Commissioner  Munoz  stated  he  agrees  with  the  transitioning  issue  and  this  is  allowing  a 
commercial design in a residential zone. This change is changing the nature of how the property 
will be developed the MV Mall PUD Amendment was not going  to change the development  it 
was going to make their process for sign approval less cumbersome.   

Public Hearing: Closed 

Discussion Followed: 

 Commissioner Boyd stated progress can be messy and there was once upon a time where home 
owners were building next to a golf course and now  it’s a church. We need to  look at what  is 
happening in the area and what is good for the neighbors. She asked for ownership clarification. 
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 Planner Spendlove explained the applicant owns lots 2‐5 they do not own lot 1 it was sold and it 
has its own PUD Agreement with a development plan for that parcel to look like what is shown 
on the exhibit. 

 Commissioner Munoz stated having to change the plan over and over again without a plan is not 
good practice because the planning gets lost in the process. 

 Commissioner  Frank  stated  he  appreciates  the  need  for  flexibility  to  be  able  to market  the 
property but there are too many unknowns. 

 Commissioner Tatum asked  if  there  could a motion  to approve  some of  the  changes without 
approving all of the changes.  

 Commissioner Grey stated for example the portion regarding Dr. Offices and detached accessory 
those  changes were  just  clarifications  and  he  understands  that  part  of  the  request  but  the 
multiple units and density related portion he is not sure about.  

 
Motion: 
Commissioner  Tatum made  a motion  to  approve  the  request,  as  presented, with  the  following 
amendments: to allow Dwellings‐multiple household with a maximum of 6 units as a permitted use, 
and  to  remove  the Dwellings‐multiple household allowing more  than 8 units  to a maximum of 12 
units as allowed  through Special Use Permit. Commissioners Boyd, Derricott, Frank, Grey, Munoz, 
Sharp, Tatum & DeVore voted  in  favor of the motion and Commissioner Woods voted against the 
motion. 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST, AS AMENDED BY THE PLANNING & ZONING 
COMMISSION, AND AS PRESENTED, WITH STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS  

1. Subject to amendments as required by Building, Engineering, Fire, and Zoning Officials to ensure 

compliance with all applicable City Code requirements and standards and the WS&V PUD #263; a 

R‐6 PRO Planned Unit Development. 

2. Subject to a new infrastructure model for sewer and water systems, and corresponding 

construction plans, being approved by the City prior to any development occurring on Lots 2‐5 of 

the WS&V Subdivision First Amended. 

SCHEDULE FOR PUBLIC HEARING WITH CITY COUNCIL MARCH 10, 2014 
 

10 Minute Break 
 

3. WITHDRAWN  Request  for  a  Special  Use  Permit  to  allow  an  impound  yard,  wrecking  yard, 

automobile salvage and junkyard on property  located at 198 Gem Street South c/o Mark Gordoski 
DBA Marky’s Super Tow (app. 2616) 
 

4. Request for a Special Use Permit to allow parking of two pieces of heavy equipment in conjunction 
with an excavation business operating as a home occupation on property located at 911 Rice Circle,  
c/o Jim & Juline Crandall (app. 2617) 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
Jim Crandall, the applicant stated they own an acre  lot  located at 911 Rice Circle  in Twin Falls and 
are  requesting a  Special Use Permit  to operate a home occupation  for Crandall excavation. They 
moved  into  the home  in November of 2000 have operated  their business  from  this  location and 
have  never  had  any  complaints  from  surrounding  neighbors.  The  business  has  not  additional 
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